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18 || .
19 || L’OREAL USA S/D, INC., a Corporation;
and DOES 1 through 50, inclusive, Second Amended Complaint Filed in State
20 Court: April 30, 2019
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21 18CECG00816

22
23 (| TO THE CLERK OF THE ABOVE-ENTITLED COURT AND PLAINTIFFS:

24 Defendant L’OREAL USA S/D, INC., a Corporation ("Defendant™), by and through
25 || the undersigned counsel and pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1441, and 1446, hereby gives notice of
26 || the removal of this lawsuit from the Superior Court of the State of California, County of Fresno, to the
27 || United States District Court for the Fastern District of California. In support of its Notice of Removal,
28 || Defendant respectfully submits to this Honorable Court:
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STATE COURT ACTION

On or about March 6, 2018, Plaintiffs Angela Conti and Justine Mora (“Plaintiffs™)
filed an action in the Fresno County Superior Court entitled ANGELA CONTI and JUSTINE MORA
v. ’OREAL USA S/D, INC., a Corporation; and Does 1 through 50, Inclusive, Superior Court of the
State of California in and for the County of Fresno, Case No. 18CECG00816, which, together with
Defendant’s Answer, and the subsequently filed First Amended Complaint and Answer thereto, is
attached hereto as Exhibit “A.” On April 12, 2019 the Superior Court entered an Order permitting
Plaintiffs to file a Second Amended Complaint and providing Defendant with thirty (30) days from
the date of service to respond. (Attached hereto as Exhibit “B”.) Plaintiffs subsequently filed and
served on Defendant the Second Amended Complaint (“SAC”) for the first time adding claims under
the Federal Labor Standards Act (“FLSA™), attached hereto as Exhibit “C”, on April 30, 2019. On
May 28, 2019, Defendant filed an Answer to the SAC, attached hereto as Exhibit “D”.

The SAC purports to assert eight (8) class, collective, and representative causes of |
action for violation of California and Federal law, failure to pay overtime wages, failure to provide
required meal periods, failure to provide required rest periods, failure to provide itemized wage
statements, failure to provide wages when due, violation of the Private Attorney General Act, and a
separate FLSA claim for failure to pay overtime.

The following pleadings and Orders have also been filed with the Superior Court for
the County of Fresno including: a Summons, Civil Case Cover Sheet, Notice of Case Management
Conference, and Case Management Minute Orders. Copies of these documents are attached as Exhibit
“g

TIMELINESS OF NOTICE OF REMOVAL

An action may be removed from state court by filing a notice of removal, together with
a copy of all process, pleadings, and orders served on the defendant, within thirty days of defendant
receiving an “an amended pleading. ..from which it may first be ascertained that the case is one which
is or has become removable.” 28 US.C. § 1446(b)(3). Service of the SAC was effective April 30,
2019,
iy
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VENUE
Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(a) and 28 U.S.C. § 1441, venue is proper in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of California insofar as Defendant conducts business
within Fresno County, California, which is where Plaintiffs were employed, where the instant action
was originally filed, and which is within this Court’s jurisdiction.
NOTICE TO PLAINTIFFS
As required by 28 U.S.C. § 1446(d), Defendant provided written notice of the filing of
this Notice of Removal to Plaintiffs. (Defendant's Notice to Adverse Party of Removal to Federal _
Court, attached as Exhibit “F.”)

NOTICE TO THE FRESNO COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT

Defendant also filed this Notice of Removal with the Clerk of the Fresno County
Superior Court. (Notice to State Court of Removal of Civil Action to Federal Court, attached as Exhibit
“G").

FEDERAL QUESTION JURISDICTION

28 U.S.C. Section 1331 provides as follows: “The district courts shall have original
Jurisdiction of all civil actions arising under the Constitution, laws, or treaties of the United States.”

This action is a civil action over which this Court has original jurisdiction based upon
the existence of a federal question pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331, and is one which may be removed to
this Court pursuant to the provisions of 28 U.S.C. § 1441(because it is a civil action that presents a
federal question as set forth below).

In this action arising out of Plaintiffs’ employment with Defendant, the Complaint
expressly alleges a claim for relief for violation of the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 201,
207, and 216 and expressly asks for damages to be awarded under those sections. (See Exhibit “B,”
79 96-106.) The FLSA is a federal statute which, in part, governs payment of overtime wages. See
29 U.S.C. §§ 207(a) and 216(b). As such, this Court has original jurisdiction under Section 1331 as a
cause of action “arising under the Constitution, laws, or treaties of the United States.”
Iy
v
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Accordingly, this case may be removed to this Court by Defendant pursuant to Section
1331 and 28 U.S.C. section 1441(b) because it is a civil action that arises under the laws of the United
States.

Plaintiffs’ other claims for violations of California overtime and other wage-and-hour
laws, are related to Plaintiffs’ employment with Defendant, are based on the same facts, events,
transactions and occurrences as Plaintiffs’ FLSA-based claim, and are so related to Plaintiffs’ FLSA-
based claim as to form part of the same case and controversy. Therefore, the Court has supplemental
jurisdiction over these claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. section 1367(a). Additionally, the Court has

jurisdiction of the remaining claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. section 1441(c).

Dated: May =Y, 2019 LITTLER MENDELSON, P.C.

ANGELA J. RAFOTH

By: k”
ANGEYA J, H
I “FITZGERALD

Attorneys for Defendant
L’OREAL USA S/D, INC.

FIRMWIDE: 164562702.1 0549931110
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BLUMENTHAL NORDREHAUG BHOWMIK DE BLOUW LLP
Norman B. Blumenthal (State Bar #068687)

Kyle R. Nordrehaug (State Bar #205975)
Aparajit Bhowmik %State Bar #248066)

2255 Calle Clara

La Jolla, CA 92037

Telephone: 585 8)551-1223

Facsimile: (858) 551-1232

Website: www.bamlawca.com

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

E-FILED
3/6/2018 2:30 PM

FRESNO COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT
By: R Garcia, Deputy

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF FRESNO

ANGELA CONTI and JUSTINE MORA,
individuals, on behalf of themselves, and
on behalf of all persons similarly situated,

Plaintiffs,
vs.

L’OREAL USA S/D, INC., a Corporation;
and Does 1 through 50, Inclusive,

Defendants.

Case No. 18CECG00816

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT FOR:

1. UNFAIR COMPETITION IN
VIOLATION OF CAL. BUS. & PROF.
CODE §§ 17200, et seq.;

2. FAILURE TO PAY OVERTIME
WAGES IN VIOLATION OF CAL.
LAB. CODE §§ 510, et seq.;

3. FAILURE TO PROVIlgE REQUIRED
MEAL PERIODS IN VIOLATION OF
CAL. LAB. CODE §§ 226.7 & 512 AND
THE APPLICABLE IWC WAGE
ORDER;

4. FAILURE TO PROVIDE REQUIRED
REST PERIODS IN VIOLATION OF
CAL. LAB. CODE §§ 226.7 & 512 AND
THE APPLICABLE IWC WAGE
ORDER;

5. FAILURE TO PROVIDE
ACCURATE ITEMIZED STATEMENTS
IN VIOLATION OF CAL. LAB. CODE §
226; and,

6. FAILURE TO PROVIDE WAGES
WHEN DUE IN VIOLATION OF CAL.
LAB. CODE §§ 201, 202 AND 203.

DEMAND FOR A JURY TRIAL

1

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
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Plaintiffs Angela Conti and Justine Mora (“PLAINTIFFS™), individuals, on behalf of
themselves and all other similarly situated current and former employees, allege on information
and belief, except for their own acts and knowledge which are based on personal knowledge,

the following:

THE PARTIES
1. Defendant L.’Oreal USA S/D, Inc. (“DEFENDANT”} is a Corporation and at all

relevant times mentioned herein conducted and continues to conduct substantial and regular
business throughout California.

2. DEFENDANT was founded in 1999. DEFENDANT’s line of business includes
the retail sale of specialized lines of merchandise.

3. Plaintiff Conti was employed by DEFENDANT in California as a non-exempt
employee entitled to overtime pay and meal and rest periods from June of 2010 to December
8, 2017.

4. Plaintiff Mora was employed by DEFENDANT in California as a non-exempt
employee entitled to overtime pay and meal and rest periods from July of 2015 to November
of 2017.

5. PLAINTIFFS bring this Class Action on behalf of themselves and a California
class, defined as all individuals who are or previously were employed by DEFENDANT in
California and classified as non-exempt employees (the “CALIFORNIA CLASS”) at any time
during the period beginning four (4) years prior to the filing of this Complaint and ending on
the date as determined by the Court (the “CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD”).

6. PLAINTIFFS bring this Class Action on behalf of themselves and a
CALIFORNIA CLASS in order to fully compensate the CALIFORNIA CLASS for their losses
incurred during the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD caused by DEFENDANT’s uniform policy
and practice which failed to lawfully compensate these employees for all their overtime worked.
DEFENDANT’s uniform policy and practice alleged herein is an unlawful, unfair and deceptive

2
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
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business practice whereby DEFENDANT retained and continues to retain wages due
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS. PLAINTIFFS and the
other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS seek an injunction enjoining such conduct by
DEFENDANT in the future, relief for the named PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS who have been economically injured by DEFENDANT’s past and
current unlawful conduct, and all other appropriate legal and equitable relief.

7. The true names and capacities, whether individual, corporate, subsidiary,
partnership, associate or otherwise of defendants DOES 1 through 50, inclusive, are presently
unknown to PLAINTIFFS who therefore sues these Defendants by such fictitious names
pursuant to Cal. Civ. Proc. Code § 474. PLAINTIFFS will seek leave to amend this Complaint
to allege the true names and capacities of Does 1 through 50, inclusive, when they are
ascertained. PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe, and based upon that information and belief
allege, that the Defendants named in this Complaint, including DOES 1 through 50, inclusive,
are responsible in some manner for one or more of the events and happenings that proximately
caused the injuries and damages hereinafter alleged.

8. The agents, servants and/or employees of the Defendants and each of them acting
on behalf of the Defendants acted within the course and scope of his, her or its authority as the
agent, servant and/or employee of the Defendants, and personally participated in the conduct
alleged herein on behalf of the Defendants with respect to the conduct alleged herein.
Consequently, the acts of each Defendant are legally attributable to the other Defendants and
all Defendants are jointly and severally liable to PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS, for the loss sustained as a proximate result of the conduct of the

Defendants’ agents, servants and/or employees.

THE CONDUCT
9. Pursuant to the Industrial Welfare Commission Wage Orders, DEFENDANT is
required to pay PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS Members for all time worked,

3
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meaning the time during which an employee is subject to the control of an employer, including
all the time the employee is suffered or permitted to work. DEFENDANT required
PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS Members to work off the clock without paying them
for all the time they were under DEFENDANT’s control. PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA
CLASS Members would clock out of DEFENDANT’s timekeeping system, in order to perform
additional work for DEFENDANT as required to meet DEFENDANT’s job requirements.
Specifically, During the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD, DEFENDANT engaged in the
uniform and systematic practice of requiring PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS
Members to perform work off the clock after clocking out in that DEFENDANT, as a condition
of employment, required these employees to wait for and submit to loss prevention inspections
after clocking out for meal breaks and at the end of each scheduled shift for which
DEFENDANT did not provide compensation for time spent awaiting and performing the loss
prevention inspections off the clock. As a result, PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA
CLASS Members forfeited overtime wages by working without their time being correctly
recorded and without compensation at the applicable overtime rates. DEFENDANT’s uniform
policy and practice not to pay PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members for all
overtime worked, is evidenced by DEFENDANT’s business records.

10. In violation of the applicable sections of the California Labor Code and the
requirements of the Industrial Welfare Commission ("IWC") Wage Order, DEFENDANT as
a matter of company policy, practice and procedure, intentionally and knowingly failed to
compensate PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS at the correct
rate of pay for all overtime worked. This uniform policy and practice of DEFENDANT is
intended to purposefully avoid the payment of the correct overtime compensation as required
by California law which allowed DEFENDANT to illegally profit and gain an unfair advantage
over competitors who complied with the law. To the extent equitable tolling operates to toll
claims by the CALIFORNIA CLASS against DEFENDANT, the CALIFORNIA CLASS
PERIOD should be adjusted accordingly.

4
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
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11.  As a result of their rigorous work schedules, PLAINTIFFS and other
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were also from time to time unable to take off duty meal
breaks and were not fully relieved of duty for meal periods. PLAINTIFFS and other
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were required to perform work as ordered by DEFENDANT
for more than five (5) hours during a shift without receiving an off-duty meal break. Further,
DEFENDANT failed to provide PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS Members with a
second off-duty meal period each workday in which these employees were required by
DEFENDANT to work ten (10) hours of work. PLAINTIFFS and the other CALIFORNIA
CLASS Members therefore forfeited meal breaks without additional compensation and in
accordance with DEFENDANT s strict corporate policy and practice.

12.  During the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD, from time to time, PLAINTIFFS
and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were also required to work in excess of four (4)
hours without being provided ten (10) minute rest periods. Further, these employees were
denied their first rest periods of at least ten (10) minutes for some shifts worked of at least two
(2) to four (4) hours, a first and second rest period of at least ten (10) minutes for some shifts
worked of between six (6) and eight (8) hours, and a first, second and third rest period of at least
ten (10) minutes for some shifts worked of ten (10) hours or more. PLAINTIFFS and other
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were also not provided with one hour wages in lieu thereof.
As a result of their rigorous work schedules, PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS
Members were periodically denied their proper rest periods by DEFENDANT and
DEFENDANT’s managers.

13.  When PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members worked off the
clock overtime and/or missed meal and rest breaks, DEFENDANT also failed to provide
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS with complete and
accurate wage statements which failed to show, among other things, the correct overtime rate
for overtime worked, including, work performed in excess of eight (8) hours in a workday
and/or forty (40) hours in any workweek, and the correct penalty payments or missed meal and

3
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rest periods. Cal. Lab. Code § 226 provides that every employer shall furnish each of his or her
employees with an accurate itemized wage statement in writing showing, among other things,
gross wages earned and all applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay period and the
corresponding amount of time worked at each hourly rate. Aside, from the violations listed
above in this paragraph, DEFENDANT failed to issue to PLAINTIFES an itemized wage
statement that lists all the requirements under California Labor Code 226 ef seq. As aresult,
from time to time DEFENDANT provided PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS with wage statements which violated Cal. Lab. Code § 226.

14. By reason of this uniform conduct applicable to PLAINTIFFS and all
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members, DEFENDANT committed acts of unfair competition in
violation of the California Unfair Competition Law, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, et seq.
(the “UCL”), by engaging in a company-wide policy and procedure which failed to accurately
calculate and record the correct overtime rate for the overtime worked by PLAINTIFFS and
other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members. The proper calculation of these employees’ overtime
hour rates is the DEFENDANT’s burden. As aresult of DEFENDANT’s intentional disregard
of the obligation to meet this burden, DEFENDANT failed to properly calculate and/or pay all
required overtime compensation for work performed by the members of the CALIFORNIA
CLASS and violated the California Labor Code and regulations promulgated thereunder as
herein alleged.

15.  Specifically as to PLAINTIFFS, they were from time to time unable to take off
duty meal and rest breaks and were not fully relieved of duty for their meal and rest periods and
were not paid all overtime wages due to them as aresult of DEFENDANT’s policy that required
them to work off the clock. PLAINTIFFS were required to perform work as ordered by
DEFENDANT for more than five (5) hours during a shift without receiving an off-duty meal
break. Further, DEFENDANT failed to provide PLAINTIFFS with a second off-duty meal
period each workday in which they were required by DEFENDANT to work ten (10} hours of
work. PLAINTIFFS therefore forfeited meal and rest breaks without additional compensation

6
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and in accordance with DEFENDANT’s strict corporate policy and practice. DEFENDANT
also provided PLAINTIFFS with a pay stub that failed to accurately display PLAINTIFFS’
correct rates of overtime pay and payments for missed meal and rest periods for certain pay
periods in violation of Cal. Lab. Code § 226(a). To date, DEFENDANT has not fully paid
PLAINTIFFS the overtime compensation still owed to them or any penalty wages owed to them
under Cal. Lab. Code § 203. The amount in controversy for PLAINTIFFS individually does

not exceed the sum or value of $75,000.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

16.  This Court has jurisdiction over this Action pursuant to California Code of Civil
Procedure, Section 410.10 and California Business & Professions Code, Section 17203. This
action is brought as a Class Action on behalf of PLAINTIFFS and similarly situated employees
of DEFENDANT pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc, § 382.

17.  Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure,
Sections 395 and 395.5, because DEFENDANT (i) currently maintains and at all relevant times
maintained offices and facilities in this County and/or conducts substantial business in this
County, and (ii) committed the wrongful conduct herein alleged in this County against members

of the CALIFORNIA CLASS and CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS.

THE CALIFORNIA CLASS
18.  PLAINTIFFS bring the First Cause of Action for Unfair, Unlawful and Deceptive
Business Practices pursuant to Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, ef seq. (the "UCL")as aClass
Action, pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382, on behalf of a California class, defined as
all individuals who are or previously were employed by DEFENDANT in California and
classified as non-exempt employees (the “CALIFORNIA CLASS”) at any time during the
period beginning four (4) years prior to the filing of this Complaint and ending on the date as

determined by the Court (the “CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD”).

7
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19. To the extent equitable tolling operates to toll claims by the CALIFORNIA
CLASS against DEFENDANT, the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD should be adjusted
accordingly.

20. The California Legislature has commanded that “all wages... ...earned by any
person in any employment are due and payable twice during each calendar month, on days
designated in advance by the employer as the regular paydays”, and further that “[a]ny work
in excess of eight hours in one workday and any work in excess of 40 hours in any one
workweek . . . shall be compensated at the rate of no less than one and one-half times the
regular rate of pay for an employee.” (Lab. Code § 204 and § 510(a).) The Industrial Welfare
Commission (IWC), however, is statutorily authorized to “establish exemptions from the
requirement that an overtime rate of compensation be paid... ...for executive, administrative, and
professional employees, provided [inter alia] that the employee is primarily engaged in duties
that meet the test of the exemption, [and] customarily and regularly exercises discretion and
independent judgment in performing those duties...” (Lab. Code § 510(a).) Neither the
PLAINTIFFS nor the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS and/or the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS qualify for exemption from the above requirements.

21. DEFENDANT, as a matter of company policy, practice and procedure, and in
violation of the applicable Labor Code, Industrial Welfare Commission (“IWC”) Wage Order
requirements, and the applicable provisions of California law, intentionally, knowingly, and
wilfully, engaged in a practice whereby DEFENDANT systematically failed to correctly
calculate and record overtime compensation for overtime worked by PLAINTIFFS and the
other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, even though DEFENDANT enjoyed the benefit
of this work, required employees to perform this work and permitted or suffered to permit this
overtime work.

22. DEFENDANT has the legal burden to establish that each and every
CALIFORNIA CLASS Member is paid the applicable rate for all overtime worked.
DEFENDANT, however, as a matter of uniform and systematic policy and procedure failed to

8
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT




OO0 =~ N o R W N

TSI S R T S S T = T N T S R e e B e B e S o e g
OO\JO\M&DJN'—‘O\OOO\JONKII&WM'—‘C

Case 1:19-cv-00769-LJO-SKO Document1 Filed 05/30/19 Page 14 of 214

have in place during the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD and still fails to have in place a policy
or practice to ensure that each and every CALIFORNIA CLASS Member is paid the applicable
overtime rate for all overtime worked, so as to satisfy their burden. This common business
practice applicable to each and every CALIFORNIA CLASS Member can be adjudicated on
a class-wide basis as unlawful, unfair, and/or deceptive under Cal. Business & Professions Code
§§ 17200, ef seq. (the “UCL”) as causation, damages, and reliance are not elements of this
claim.

23.  Atnotime during the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD was the compensation for
any member of the CALIFORNIA CLASS properly recalculated so as to compensate the
employee for all overtime worked at the applicable rate, as required by California Labor Code
§§ 204 and 510, et seq. At no time during the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD was the
overtime compensation for any member of the CALIFORNIA CLASS properly recalculated
50 as to include all earnings in the overtime compensation calculation as required by California
Labor Code §§ 510, et seq.

54. The CALIFORNIA CLASS, is so numerous that joinder of all CALIFORNIA
CLASS Members is impracticable.

25. DEFENDANT uniformly violated the rights ofthe CALIFORNIA CLASS under
California law by:

(@)  Violating the California Unfair Competition Laws, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code
§§ 17200, et seq., by unlawfully, unfairly and/or deceptively having in
place company policies, practices and procedures that failed to pay all
wages due the CALIFORNIA CLASS for all overtime worked, and failed
to accurately record the applicable rates of all overtime worked by the
CALIFORNIA CLASS;

(b) Committing an act of unfair competition in violation of the California
Unfair Competition Laws, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, ef seq., by
unlawfully, unfairly, and/or deceptively having in place a company policy,

9
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practice and procedure that failed to correctly calculate overtime
compensation due to PLAINTIFFS and the members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS; and,

Committing an act of unfair competition in violation of the California
Unfair Competition Laws, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, ef seq., by
failing to provide mandatory meal and/or rest breaks to PLAINTIFFS and
the CALIFORNIA CLASS members.

26.  This Class Action meets the statutory prerequisites for the maintenance of a Class

Action as set forth in Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382, in that:

The persons who comprise the CALIFORNIA CLASS are so numerous
that the joinder of all such persons is impracticable and the disposition of
their claims as a class will benefit the parties and the Court;

Nearly all factual, legal, statutory, declaratory and injunctive relief issues
that are raised in this Complaint are common to the CALIFORNIA
CLASS will apply uniformly to every member of the CALIFORNIA
CLASS;

The claims of the representative PLAINTIFFS are typical of the claims of
each member of the CALIFORNIA CLASS. PLAINTIFFS, like all the
other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, were subjected to the
uniform employment practices of DEFENDANT and were non-exempt
employees paid on an hourly basis who were subjected to
DEFENDANT’s practice and policy which failed to pay the correct rate
of overtime wages due to the CALIFORNIA CLASS for all overtime
worked by the CALIFORNIA CLASS and thereby systematically
underpays overtime compensation to the CALIFORNIA CLASS.
PLAINTIFFS sustained economiic injury as a result of DEFENDANT’s
employment practices. PLAINTIFFS and the members of the
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CALIFORNIA CLASS were and are similarly or identically harmed by
the same unlawful, deceptive, unfair and pervasive pattern of misconduct
engaged in by DEFENDANT; and,

The representative PLAINTIFFS will fairly and adequately represent and
protect the interest of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, and has retained
counsel who are competent and experienced in Class Action litigation.
There are no material conflicts between the claims of the representative
PLAINTIFFS and the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS that would
make class certification inappropriate. Counsel for the CALIFORNIA
CLASS will vigorously assert the claims of all CALIFORNIA CLASS

Members.

27.  In addition to meeting the statutory prerequisites to a Class Action, this action

is properly maintained as a Class Action pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382, in that:

Without class certification and determination of declaratory, injunctive,

statutory and other legal questions within the class format, prosecution of

separate actions by individual members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS will
create the risk of:

1) Inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to individual
members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS which would establish
incompatible standards of conduct for the parties opposing the
CALIFORNIA CLASS; and/or,

2) Adjudication with respect to individual members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS which would as a practical matter be
dispositive of interests of the other members not party to the
adjudication or substantially impair or impede their ability to
protect their interests.

The parties opposing the CALIFORNIA CLASS have acted or refused to

11
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(c)

act on grounds generally applicable to the CALIFORNIA CLASS, making

appropriate class-wide relief with respect to the CALIFORNIA CLASS

as a whole in that DEFENDANT uniformly failed to pay all wages due.

Including the correct overtime rate, for all worked by the members of the

CALIFORNIA CLASS as required by law;

1) With respect to the First Cause of Action, the final relief on behalf
of the CALIFORNIA CLASS sought does not relate exclusively to
restitution because through this claim PLAINTIFFS seeks
declaratory relief holding that the DEFENDANT’s policy and
practices constitute unfair competition, along with declaratory
relief, injunctive relief, and incidental equitable relief as may be
necessary to prevent and remedy the conduct declared to constitute
unfair competition;

Common questions of law and fact exist as to the members of the

CALIFORNIA CLASS, with respect to the practices and violations of

California law as listed above, and predominate over any question

affecting only individual CALIFORNIA CLASS Members, and a Class

Action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient

adjudication of the controversy, including consideration of:

1) The interests of the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS in
individually controlling the prosecution or defense of separate
actions in that the substantial expense of individual actions will be
avoided to recover the relatively small amount of economic losses
sustained by the individual CALIFORNIA CLASS Members when
compared to the substantial expense and burden of individual
prosecution of this litigation;

2) Class certification will obviate the need for unduly duplicative

12
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litigation that would create the risk of:

A. Inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to
individual members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, which
would establish incompatible standards of conduct for the
DEFENDANT; and/or,

B. Adjudications with respect to individual members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS would as a practical matter be
dispositive of the interests of the other members not parties
to the adjudication or substantially impair or impede their
ability to protect their interests;

In the context of wage litigation because a substantial number of
individual CALIFORNIA CLASS Members will avoid asserting
their legal rights out of fear of retaliation by DEFENDANT, which
may adversely affect an individual’s job with DEFENDANT or
with a subsequent employer, the Class Action is the only means to
assert their claims through a representative; and,

A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair

and efficient adjudication of this litigation because class treatment

will obviate the need for unduly and unnecessary duplicative
litigation that is likely to result in the absence of certification of

this action pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382.

28.  This Court should permit this action to be maintained as a Class Action pursuant
to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382 because:
(a) The questions of law and fact common to the CALIFORNIA CLASS
predominate over any question affecting only individual CALIFORNIA
CLASS Members because the DEFENDANT’s employment practices are
uniform and systematically applied with respect to the CALIFORNIA

13
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

(2

(h)

@

CLASS;

A Class Action is superior to any other available method for the fair and
efficient adjudication of the claims of the members of the CALIFORNIA
CLASS because in the context of employment litigation a substantial
number of individual CALIFORNIA CLASS Members will aveid
asserting their rights individually out of fear of retaliation or adverse
impact on their employment;

The members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS are so numerous that it is
impractical to bring all members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS before the
Court;

PLAINTIFFS, and the other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members, will not be
able to obtain effective and economic legal redress unless the action is
maintained as a Class Action;

There is a community of interest in obtaining appropriate legal and
equitable relief for the acts of unfair competition, statutory violations and
other improprieties, and in obtaining adequate compensation for the
damages and injuries which DEFENDANT’s actions have inflicted upon
the CALIFORNIA CLASS;

There is a community of interest in ensuring that the combined assets of
DEFENDANT are sufficient to adequately compensate the members of
the CALIFORNIA CLASS for the injuries sustained;

DEFENDANT has acted or refused to act on grounds generally applicable
to the CALIFORNIA CLASS, thereby making final class-wide relief
appropriate with respect to the CALIFORNIA CLASS as a whole;

The members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS are readily ascertainable from
the business records of DEFENDANT; and,

Class treatment provides manageable judicial treatment calculated to bring
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a efficient and rapid conclusion to all litigation of all wage and hour
related claims arising out of the conduct of DEFENDANT as to the
members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS.

29. DEFENDANT maintains records from which the Court can ascertain and identify
by job title each of DEFENDANT’s employees who as have been systematically, intentionally
and uniformly subjected to DEFENDANT’s company policy, practices and procedures as herein
alleged. PLAINTIFFS will seek leave to amend the Complaint to include any additional job

titles of similarly situated employees when they have been identified.

THE CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS

30. PLAINTIFFS further bring the Second, Third, Fourth, Fifth and Sixth causes of
Action on behalf of a California sub-class, defined as all individuals who are or previously were
employed by DEFENDANT in California and classified as non-exempt employees (the
“CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS”) at any time during the period three (3) years prior to
the filing of the complaint and ending on the date as determined by the Court (the
“CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS PERIOD”) pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382.

31. DEFENDANT, as a matter of company policy, practice and procedure, and in
violation of the applicable Labor Code, Industrial Welfare Commission (“IWC”) Wage Order
requirements, and the applicable provisions of California law, intentionally, knowingly, and
wilfully, engaged in a practice whereby DEFENDANT failed to provide off duty meal and rest
periods to PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS Members and failed to correctly calculate
overtime compensation for the overtime worked by PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, even though DEFENDANT enjoyed the benefit of this
work, required employees to perform this work and permitted or suffered to permit this
overtime work. DEFENDANT has uniformly denied these CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS Members overtime wages at the correct amount to which these employees are entitled

in order to unfairly cheat the competition and unlawfuily profit. To the extent equitable tolling
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operates to toll claims by the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS against DEFENDANT, the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS PERIOD should be adjusted accordingly.

32. DEFENDANT maintains records from which the Court can ascertain and identify
by name and job title, each of DEFENDANT’s employees who have been systematically,
intentionally and uniformly subjected to DEFENDANT’s company policy, practices and
procedures as herein alleged. PLAINTIFFS will seek leave to amend the complaint to include
any additional job titles of similarly situated employees when they have been identified.

33. The CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS is so numerous that joinder of all
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members is impracticable.

34. Common questions of law and fact exist as to members of the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS, including, but not limited, to the following:

(a) Whether DEFENDANT unlawfully failed to correctly calculate and pay
overtime compensation to members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS in violation of the California Labor Code and California
regulations and the applicable California Wage Order;

(b)  Whether the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS are
entitled to overtime compensation for overtime worked under the overtime
pay requirements of California law;

(c) Whether DEFENDANT failed to accurately record the applicable
overtime rates for all overtime worked PLAINTIFFS and the other
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS;

(d) Whether DEFENDANT failed to provide PLAINTIFFS and the other
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS with legally
required uninterrupted thirty (30) minute meal breaks and rest periods;

()  Whether DEFENDANT failed to provide PLAINTIFFS and the other
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS with accurate

itemized wage statements;
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()  Whether DEFENDANT has engaged in unfair competition by the
above-listed conduct;

(2) Theproper measure of damages and penalties owed to the members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS; and,

(h)  Whether DEFENDANT’s conduct was willful.

35. DEFENDANT, as a matter of company policy, practice and procedure, failed to
accurately calculate overtime compensation for the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS
Members and failed to provide accurate records of the applicable overtime rates for the
overtime worked by these employees. All of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS
Members, including PLAINTIFFS, were non-exempt employees who were paid on an hourly
basis by DEFENDANT according to uniform and systematic company procedures as alleged
herein above. This business practice was uniformly applied to each and every member of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, and therefore, the propriety of this conduct can be
adjudicated on a class-wide basis.

36. DEFENDANT violated the rights of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS
under California law by:

(a)  Violating Cal. Lab. Code §§ 510, ef seq., by failing to accurately pay
PLAINTIFFS and the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS the correct overtime pay for which DEFENDANT is liable
pursuant to Cal. Lab. Code § 1194 & § 1198;

(b)  Violating Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7 and 512, by failing to provide
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS with
all legally required off-duty, uninterrupted thirty (30) minute meal breaks
and the legally required rest breaks;

(c)  Violating Cal. Lab. Code § 226, by failing to provide PLAINTIFFS and
the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS with an

accurate itemized statement in writing showing all accurate and applicable
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overtime rates in effect during the pay period and the corresponding
amount of time worked at each overtime rate by the employee; and,
Violating Cal. Lab. Code §§ 201, 202 and/or 203, which provides that
when an employee is discharged or quits from employment, the employer
must pay the employee all wages due without abatement, by failing to
tender full payment and/or restitution of wages owed or in the manner
required by California law to the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR
SUB-CLASS who have terminated their employment.

37.  This Class Action meets the statutory prerequisites for the maintenance of a Class

Action as set forth in Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382, in that:

The persons who comprise the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS are
so numerous that the joinder of all CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS
Members is impracticable and the disposition of their claims as a class
will benefit the parties and the Court;

Nearly all factual, legal, statutory, declaratory and injunctive relief issues
that are raised in this Complaint are common to the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS and will apply uniformly to every member of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS;

The claims of the representative PLAINTIFFS are typical of the claims of
each member of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS.
PLAINTIFFS, like all the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR
SUB-CLASS, were non-exempt employees paid on an hourly basis who
were subjected to the DEFENDANT’s practice and policy described
herein. PLAINTIFFS sustained economic injury as a result of
DEFENDANT’s employment practices. PLAINTIFFS and the members
of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS were and are similarly or

identically harmed by the same unlawful, deceptive, unfair and pervasive
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pattern of misconduct engaged in by DEFENDANT; and,

The representative PLAINTIFFS will fairly and adequately represent and
protect the interest of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, and has
retained counsel who are competent and experienced in Class Action
litigation. There are no material conflicts between the claims of the
representative PLAINTIFFS and the members of the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS that would make class certification inappropriate.
Counsel for the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS wili vigorously
assert the claims of all CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members.

38.  In addition to meeting the statutory prerequisites to a Class Action, this action is

properly maintained as a Class Action pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382, in that:

Without class certification and determination of declaratory, injunctive,
statutory and other legal questions within the class format, prosecution of
separate actions by individual members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR
SUB-CLASS will create the risk of:

1) Inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to individual
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS which
would establish incompatible standards of conduct for the parties
opposing the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS; or,

2) Adjudication with respect to individual members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS which would as a practical
matter be dispositive of interests of the other members not party to
the adjudication or substantially impair or impede their ability to
protect their interests.

The parties opposing the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS have acted

or refused to act on grounds generally applicable to the CALIFORNIA

LABOR SUB-CLASS, making appropriate class-wide relief with respect
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(c)

to the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS as a whole in that

DEFENDANT uniformly failed to pay all wages due. Including the

correct overtime rate, for all overtime worked by the members of the

CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS as required by law;

Common questions of law and fact predominate as to the members of the

CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, with respect to the practices and

violations of California Law as listed above, and predominate over any

question affecting only individual CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS

Members, and a Class Action is superiot to other available methods for

the fair and efficient adjudication of the controversy, including

consideration of:

1) The interests of the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS in individually controlling the prosecution or defense of
separate actions in that the substantial expense of individual
actions will be avoided to recover the relatively small amount of
economic losses sustained by the individual CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS Members when compared to the substantial
expense and burden of individual prosecution of this litigation;

2) Class certification will obviate the need for unduly duplicative
litigation that would create the risk of:

A. Inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to
individual members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS, which would establish incompatible standards of
conduct for the DEFENDANT; and/or,

B. Adjudications with respect to individual members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS would as a practical

matter be dispositive of the interests of the other members
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not parties to the adjudication or substantially impair or

impede their ability to protect their interests;
In the context of wage litigation because a substantial number of
individual CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members will
avoid asserting their legal rights out of fear of retaliation by
DEFENDANT, which may adversely affect an individual’s job
with DEFENDANT or with a subsequent employer, the Class
Action is the only means to assert their claims through a
representative; and,
A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair
and efficient adjudication of this litigation because class treatment
will obviate the need for unduly and unnecessary duplicative
litigation that is likely to result in the absence of certification of

this action pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382.

39.  This Court should permit this action to be maintained as a Class Action pursuant
to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382 because:

(a)  The questions of law and fact common to the CALIFORNIA LABOR
SUB-CLASS predominate over any question affecting only individual
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members;

(b) A Class Action is superior to any other available method for the fair and
efficient adjudication of the claims of the members of the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS because in the context of employment litigation a
substantial number of individual CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS
Members will avoid asserting their rights individually out of fear of
retaliation or adverse impact on their employment;

(¢) The members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS are so

numerous that it is impractical to bring all members of the CALIFORNIA
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LABOR SUB-CLASS before the Court;

PLAINTIFFS, and the other CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS
Members, will not be able to obtain effective and economic legal redress
unless the action is maintained as a Class Action;

There is a community of interest in obtaining appropriate legal and
equitable relief for the acts of unfair competition, statutory violations and
other improprieties, and in obtaining adequate compensation for the
damages and injuries which DEFENDANT’s actions have inflicted upon
the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS;

There is a community of interest in ensuring that the combined assets of
DEFENDANT are sufficient to adequately compensate the members of
the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS for the injuries sustained;
DEFENDANT has acted or refused to act on grounds generaily applicable
to the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, thereby making final class-
wide relief appropriate with respect to the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS as a whole;

The members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS are readily
ascertainable from the business records of DEFENDANT. The
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS consists of all CALIFORNIA
CLASS Members classified as non-exempt employees during the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS PERIOD; and,

Class treatment provides manageable judicial treatment calculated to bring
a efficient and rapid conclusion to all litigation of all wage and hour
related claims arising out of the conduct of DEFENDANT as to the
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS.
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FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
For Unlawful Business Practices
[Cal. Bus. And Prof. Code §§ 17200, ef seq.]
(By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA CLASS and Against All Defendants)

40. PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, reallege and
incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior paragraphs of this
Complaint.

41. DEFENDANT is a “person” as that term is defined under Cal. Bus. and Prof.
Code § 17021.

42.  California Business & Professions Code §§ 17200, ef seq. (the “UCL”) defines
unfair competition as any unlawful, unfair, or fraudulent business act or practice. Section
17203 authorizes injunctive, declaratory, and/or other equitable relief with respect to unfair
competition as follows:

Any person who engages, has engaged, or proposes to engage in unfair

competition may be enjoined in any court of competent jurisdiction. The court

may make such orders or judgments, including the appointment of a receiver, as

may be necessary to prevent the use or employment by any person of any practice

which constitutes unfair competition, as defined in this chapter, or as may be

necessary to restore to any person in interest any money or property, real or

personal, which may have been acquired by means of such untair competition.
Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17203.

43. By the conduct alleged herein, DEFENDANT has engaged and continues to
engage in a business practice which violates California law, including but not limited to, the
applicable Wage Order(s), the California Code of Regulations and the California Labor Code
including Sections 204, 206.5, 226.7, 510, 512, 558, 1194 & 1198, for which this Court should
issue declaratory and other equitable relief pursuant to Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17203 as may
be necessary to prevent and remedy the conduct held to constitute unfair competition, including
restitution of wages wrongfully withheld.

44. By the conduct alleged herein, DEFENDANT’s practices were unlawful and

unfair in that these practices violated public policy, were immoral, unethical, oppressive,
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unscrupulous or substantially injurious to employees, and were without valid justification or
utility for which this Court should issue equitable and injunctive relief pursuant to Section
17203 of the California Business & Professions Code, including restitution of wages wrongfully
withheld.

45. By the conduct alleged herein, DEFENDANT’s practices were deceptive and
fraudulent in that DEFENDANTs uniform policy and practice failed to pay PLAINTIFFS, and
other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, wages due for overtime worked, failed to
accurately to record the applicable rate of all overtime worked, and failed to provide the legally
required off duty meal and rest periods due to a systematic business practice that cannot be
justified, pursuant to the applicable Cal. Lab. Code, and Industrial Welfare Commission
requirements in violation of Cal. Bus. Code §§ 17200, ef seq., and for which this Court should
issue injunctive and equitable relief, pursuant to Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17203, including
restitution of wages wrongfully withheld.

46. By the conduct alleged herein, DEFENDANT’s practices were also unlawful,
unfair and deceptive in that DEFENDANT’s employment practices caused PLAINTIFFS and
the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS to be underpaid during their employment with
DEFENDANT.

47. By the conduct alleged herein, DEFENDANT’s practices were also unfair and
deceptive in that DEFENDANT’s uniform policies, practices and procedures failed to provide
mandatory meal and/or rest breaks to PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA CLASS members.

48.  Therefore, PLAINTIFFS demand on behalf of themselves and on behalf of each
CALIFORNIA CLASS member, one (1) hour of pay for each workday in which an off-duty
meal period was not timely provided for each five (5) hours of work, and/or one (1) hour of pay
for each workday in which a second off-duty meal period was not timely provided for each ten
(10) hours of work.

49. PLAINTIFFS further demand on behalf of themselves and on behalf of each
CALIFORNIA CLASS member, one (1) hour of pay for each workday in which a rest period
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was not timely provided as required by law.

50. By and through the unlawful and unfair business practices described herein,
DEFENDANT has obtained valuable property, money and services from PLAINTIFFS and the
other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, including earned wages for all overtime worked,
and has deprived them of valuable rights and benefits guaranteed by law and contract, all to the
detriment of these employees and to the benefit of DEFENDANT so as to allow DEFENDANT
to unfairly compete against competitors who comply with the law.

51.  All the acts described herein as violations of, among other things, the Industrial
Welfare Commission Wage Orders, the California Code of Regulations, and the California
Labor Code, were unlawful and in violation of public policy, were immoral, unethical,
oppressive and unscrupulous, were deceptive, and thereby constitute unlawful, unfair and
deceptive business practices in violation of Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, ef seq.

52.  PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS are entitled
to, and do, seek such relief as may be necessary to restore to them the money and property
which DEFENDANT has acquired, or of which PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS have been deprived, by means of the above described unlawful and
unfair business practices, including earned but unpaid wages for all overtime worked.

53.  PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS are further
entitled to, and do, seek a declaration that the described business practices are unlawful, unfair
and deceptive, and that injunctive relief should be issued restraining DEFENDANT from
engaging in any unlawful and unfair business practices in the future.

54. PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS have no plain,
speedy and/or adequate remedy at law that will end the unlawful and unfair business practices
of DEFENDANT. Further, the practices herein alleged presently continue to occur unabated.
As a result of the unlawful and unfair business practices described herein, PLAINTIFFS and
the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS have suffered and will continue to suffer

irreparable legal and economic harm unless DEFENDANT is restrained from continuing to
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engage in these unlawful and unfair business practices.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
For Failure To Pay Overtime Compensation
[Cal. Lab. Code §§ 204, 510, 1194 and 1198]
(By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS and Against All
Defendants)

55. PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS, reallege and incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior
paragraphs of this Complaint.

56. PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS bring a claim for DEFENDANT’s willful and intentional violations of the California
Labor Code and the Industrial Welfare Commission requirements for DEFENDANT’s failure
to accurately calculate the applicable rates for all overtime worked by PLAINTIFFS and other
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS and DEFENDANTs failure to properly
compensate the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS for overtime worked,
including, work performed in excess of eight (8) hours in a workday and/or forty (40) hours in
any workweek.

57. Pursuant to Cal. Lab. Code § 204, other applicable laws and regulations, and
public policy, an employer must timely pay its employees for all hours worked.

58.  Cal. Lab. Code § 510 further provides that employees in California shall not be
employed more than eight (8) hours per workday and/or more than forty (40) hours per
workweek unless they receive additional compensation beyond their regular wages in amounts
specified by law.

59,  Cal. Lab. Code § 1194 establishes an employee’s right to recover unpaid wages,
including overtime compensation and interest thereon, together with the costs of suit. Cal. Lab.

Code § 1198 further states that the employment of an employee for longer hours than those
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fixed by the Industrial Welfare Commission is unlawful.

60. DEFENDANT maintained a uniform wage practice of paying PLAINTIFFS and
the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS without regard to the correct
amount of overtime worked. As set forth herein, DEFENDANT’s uniform policy and practice
was to unlawfully and intentionally deny timely payment of wages due for the overtime worked
by PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, and
DEFENDANT in fact failed to pay these employees the correct applicable overtime wages for
all overtime worked.

61. DEFENDANT’suniform pattern of unlawful wage and hour practices manifested,
without limitation, applicable to the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS as a whole, as a
result of implementing a uniform policy and practice that denied accurate compensation to
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS for all
overtime worked, including, the work performed in excess of eight (8) hours in a workday
and/or forty (40) hours in any workweek.

62. In committing these violations of the California Labor Code, DEFENDANT
inaccurately calculated the amount of overtime worked and the applicable overtime rates and
consequently underpaid the actual time worked by PLAINTIFFS and other members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS. DEFENDANT acted in an illegal attempt to avoid the
payment of all earned wages, and other benefits in violation of the California Labor Code, the
Industrial Welfare Commission requirements and other applicable laws and regulations.

63. As adirect result of DEFENDANT’s unlawful wage practices as alleged herein,
PLAINTIFES and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS did not
receive full compensation for all overtime worked.

64.  Cal. Lab. Code § 515 sets out various categories of employees who are exempt
from the overtime requirements of the law. None of these exemptions are applicable to
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS. Further,
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS are not
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subject to a valid collective bargaining agreement that would preclude the causes of action
contained herein this Complaint. Rather, the PLAINTIFFS bring this Action on behalf of
themselves and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS based on DEFENDANT’s violations
of non-negotiable, non-waiveable rights provided by the State of California.

65. During the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS PERIOD, PLAINTIFFS and
the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS were paid less for time worked
that they were entitled to, constituting a failure to pay all earned wages.

66. DEFENDANT failed to accurately pay PLAINTIFFS and the other members of
the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS overtime wages for the time they worked which was
in excess of the maximum hours permissible by law as required by Cal. Lab. Code §§ 510, 1194
& 1198, even though PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR
SUB-CLASS were required to work, and did in fact work, overtime as to which DEFENDANT
failed to accurately record and pay using the applicable overtime rate as evidenced by
DEFENDANT’s business records and witnessed by employees.

67. By virtue of DEFENDANT's unlawful failure to accurately pay all earned
compensation to PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS for the true time they worked, PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS have suffered and will continue to suffer an economic
injury in amounts which are presently unknown to them and which will be ascertained
according to proof at trial.

68. DEFENDANT knew or should have known that PLAINTIFFS and the other
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS are under compensated for their overtime
worked. DEFENDANT systematically elected, either through intentional malfeasance or gross
nonfeasance, to not pay employees for their labor as a matter of uniform company policy,
practice and procedure, and DEFENDANT perpetrated this systematic scheme by refusing to
pay PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS the

applicable overtime rate.
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69.  Inperforming the acts and practices herein alleged in violation of California labor
laws, and refusing to compensate the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS for
all time worked and provide them with the requisite overtime compensation, DEFENDANT
acted and continues to act intentionally, oppressively, and maliciously toward PLAINTIFFS and
the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS with a conscious of and utter
disregard for their legal rights, or the consequences to them, and with the despicable intent of
depriving them of their property and legal rights, and otherwise causing them injury in order
to increase company profits at the expense of these employees.

70. PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS therefore request recovery of all unpaid wages, including overtime wages, according
to proof, interest, statutory costs, as well as the assessment of any statutory penalties against
DEFENDANT, in a sum as provided by the California Labor Code and/or other applicable
statutes. To the extent overtime compensation is determined to be owed to the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS Members who have terminated their employment, DEFENDANT’S
conduct also violates Labor Code §§ 201 and/or 202, and therefore these individuals are also
be entitled to waiting time penalties under Cal. Lab. Code § 203, which penalties are sought
herein on behalf of these CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members. DEFENDANT’s
conduct as alleged herein was willful, intentional and not in good faith. Further, PLAINTIFFS
and other CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members are entitled to seek and recover
statutory costs.

i
i
I
i
"
i
"
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THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
For Failure to Provide Required Meal Periods
[Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7 & 512 |
(By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS and Against All
Defendants)

71. PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS, reallege and incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior
paragraphs of this Complaint.

72.  During the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD, DEFENDANT failed to provide
all the legally required off-duty meal breaks to PLAINTIFFS and the other CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS Members as required by the applicable Wage Order and Labor Code.
The nature of the work performed by PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS MEMBERS did not prevent these employees from being relieved of all of their
duties for the legally required off-duty meal periods. As a result of their rigorous work
schedules, PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members were
often not fully relieved of duty by DEFENDANT for their meal periods. Additionally,
DEFENDANT’s failure to provide PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS Members with legally required meal breaks prior to their fifth (5th) hour of work is
evidenced by DEFENDANT’s business records. As a result, PLAINTIFFS and other
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS therefore forfeited meal breaks
without additional compensation and in accordance with DEFENDANT’s strict corporate
policy and practice.

73. DEFENDANT further violated California Labor Code §§ 226.7 and the
applicable IWC Wage Order by failing to compensate PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS Members who were not provided a meal period, in accordance with
the applicable Wage Order, one additional hour of compensation at each employee’s regular

rate of pay for each workday that a meal period was not provided.
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74.  As a proximate result of the aforementioned violations, PLAINTIFFS and
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members have been damaged in an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, interest, penalties, expenses and costs of

suit.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
For Failure to Provide Required Rest Periods
[Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7 & 512 ]
(By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS and Against All
Defendants)

75. PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS, reallege and incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior
paragraphs of this Complaint.

76. PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members were
required to work in excess of four (4) hours without being provided ten (10) minute rest
periods. Further, these employees were denied their first rest periods of at least ten (10)
minutes for some shifts worked of at least two (2) to four (4) hours, a first and second rest
period of at least ten (10) minutes for some shifts worked of between six (6) and eight (8)
hours, and a first, second and third rest period of at least ten (10) minutes for some shifts
worked of ten (10) hours or more. PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS Members were also not provided with one hour wages in lieu thereof. As a result of
their rigorous work schedules, PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS Members were periodically denied their proper rest periods by DEFENDANT and
DEFENDANT’s managers.

77. DEFENDANT further violated California Labor Code §§ 226.7 and the
applicable IWC Wage Order by failing to compensate PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS Members who were not provided a rest period, in accordance with
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the applicable Wage Order, one additional hour of compensation at each employee’s regular
rate of pay for each workday that rest period was not provided.

78.  As a proximate result of the aforementioned violations, PLAINTIFFS and
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members have been damaged in an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, interest, penalties, expenses and costs of

suit.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

For Failure to Provide Accurate Itemized Statements
[Cal. Lab. Code § 226]
(By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS and Against All
Defendants)

79.  PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS, reallege and incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior
paragraphs of this Complaint.

80. Cal. Labor Code § 226 provides that an employer must furnish employees with
an “accurate itemized” statement in writing showing:

(1) gross wages earned,

(2) total hours worked by the employee, except for any employee whose compensation

is solely based on a salary and who is exempt from payment of overtime under

subdivision {a) of Section 515 or any applicable order of the Industrial Welfare

Commission,

(3) the number of piecerate units earned and any applicable piece rate if the employee

is paid on a piece-rate basis,

(4) all deductions, provided that all deductions made on written orders of the employee

may be aggregated and shown as one item,

(5) net wages earned,
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(6) the inclusive dates of the period for which the employee is paid,

(7) the name of the employee and his or her social security number, except that by

January 1, 2008, only the last four digits of his or her social security number or an

employee identification number other than a social security number may be shown on

the itemized statement,

(8) the name and address of the legal entity that is the employer, and

(9) all applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay period and the corresponding

number of hours worked at each hourly rate by the employee.

81.  When PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members worked unpaid
overtime and/or missed meal and rest breaks, DEFENDANT also failed to provide
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS with complete and
accurate wage statements which failed to show, among other things, the correct overtime rate
for overtime worked, including, work performed in excess of eight (8) hours in a workday
and/or forty (40) hours in any workweek, and the correct penalty payments or missed meal and
rest periods. Cal. Lab. Code § 226 provides that every employer shall furnish each of his or her
employees with an accurate itemized wage statement in writing showing, among other things,
gross wages earned and all applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay period and the
corresponding amount of time worked at each hourly rate. Aside, from the violations listed
above in this paragraph, DEFENDANT failed to issue to PLAINTIFFS an itemized wage
statement that lists all the requirements under California Labor Code 226 ef seq. As aresult,
from time to time DEFENDANT provided PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS with wage statements which violated Cal. Lab. Code § 226.

82. DEFENDANT knowingly and intentionally failed to comply with Cal. Labor
Code § 226, causing injury and damages to the PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS. These damages include, but are not limited to, costs
expended calculating the correct rates for the overtime worked and the amount of employment

taxes which were not properly paid to state and federal tax authorities. These damages are
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difficult to estimate. Therefore, PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS may elect to recover liquidated damages of fifty dollars ($50.00) for the
initial pay period in which the violation occurred, and one hundred dollars ($100.00) for each
violation in a subsequent pay period pursuant to Cal. Lab. Code § 226, in an amount according
to proof at the time of trial (but in no event more than four thousand dollars ($4,000.00) for
PLAINTIFFS and each respective member of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS

herein).

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
For Failure to Pay Wages When Due
[ Cal. Lab. Code §§ 201, 202, 203]
(By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS and Against All
Defendants)

83. PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS, reallege and incorporate by reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior
paragraphs of this Complaint.

84.  Cal. Lab. Code § 200 provides that:

As used in this article:

(a) "Wages" includes all amounts for labor performed by employees of every

description, whether the amount is fixed or ascertained by the standard of time,

task, piece, Commission basis, or other method of calculation.

(b) "Labor" includes labor, work, or service whether rendered or performed under

contract, subcontract, partnership, station plan, or other agreement if the labor to

be paid for is performed personally by the person demanding payment.

85.  Cal. Lab. Code § 201 provides, in relevant part, that “If an employer discharges
an employee, the wages eamed and unpaid at the time of discharge are due and payable
immediately.”

86. Cal. Lab. Code § 202 provides, in relevant part, that:

If an employee not having a written contract for a definite period quits his or her

employment, his or her wages shall become due and payable not later than 72

hours thereafter, unless the employee has given 72 hours revious notice of his
or her intention to quit, in which case the employee is entitled to his or her wages

34
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT




OO 1 N i R W N

T T NG S NG N R N TR N T S T N R T e e e e
00 -1 O th B W R = S v e 1 N Rk W N - O

Case 1:19-cv-00769-LJO-SKO Document 1 Filed 05/30/19 Page 40 of 214

at the time of quitting. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, an employee

who quits without providing a 72-hour notice shall be entitled to receive payment

by mail if he or she so requests and designates a mailing address. The date of the

mailing shall constitute the date of payment for gurposes of the requirement to

provide payment within 72 hours of the notice of quitting.

87. There was no definite term in PLAINTIFFS’ or any CALIFORNIA LABOR
SUB-CLASS Members’ employment contract.

88.  Cal. Lab. Code § 203 provides:

If an employer willfully fails to pay, without abatement or reduction, in

accordance with Sections 201, 201.5, 202, and 205.5, any wages of an employee

who is discharged or who quits, the wages of the employee shall continue as a

penalty from the due date thereof at the same rate until paid or until an action

therefor is commenced; but the wages shall not continue for more than 30 days.

89.  The employment of PLAINTIFFS and many CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS Members terminated and DEFENDANT has not tendered payment of overtime wages,
to these employees who actually worked overtime, as required by law.

90.  Therefore, as provided by Cal Lab. Code § 203, on behalf of themselves and the
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS whose employment has, PLAINTIFFS
demand up to thirty days of pay as penalty for not paying all wages due at time of termination
for all employees who terminated employment during the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS
PERIOD, and demand an accounting and payment of ail wages due, plus interest and statutory

costs as allowed by law.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS pray for judgment against each Defendant, jointly and
severally, as follows:
1. On behalf of the CALIFORNIA CLASS:
A)  That the Court certify the First Cause of Action asserted by the CALIFORNIA
CLASS as a class action pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382;
B}  An order temporarily, preliminarily and permanently enjoining and restraining
DEFENDANT from engaging in similar unlawful conduct as set forth herein;

C)  An order requiring DEFENDANT to pay all wages and all sums unlawfuly
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D)

withheld from compensation due to PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS; and,

Restitutionary disgorgement of DEFENDANT’s ill-gotten gains into a fluid fund
for restitution of the sums incidental to DEFENDANT’s violations due to

PLAINTIFFS and to the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS.

2. On behalf of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS:

A)

B)

©

D)

E)

That the Court certify the Second, Third, Fourth, Fifth and Sixth Causes of
Action asserted by the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS as a class action
pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382;

Compensatory damages, according to proof at trial, including compensatory
damages for overtime compensation due PLAINTIFFS and the other members
of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, during the applicable
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS PERIOD plus interest thereon at the
statutory rate;

Meal and rest period compensation pursuant to Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7,512 and
the applicable IWC Wage Order;

The greater of all actual damages or fifty dollars ($50) for the initial pay period
in which a violation occurs and one hundred dollars ($100) per each member of
the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS for each violation in a subsequent pay
period, not exceeding an aggregate penalty of four thousand dollars ($4,000), and
an award of costs for violation of Cal. Lab. Code § 226; and,

The wages of all terminated employees from the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS as a penalty from the due date thereof at the same rate until paid or until

an action therefore is commenced, in accordance with Cal. Lab. Code § 203.

3. On all claims:

A)

B)

An award of interest, including prejudgment interest at the legal rate;

Such other and further relief as the Court deems just and equitable; and,
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1 C)  An award of penalties, attorneys’ fees and cost of suit, as allowable under the law,

including, but not limited to, pursuant to Labor Code §218.5, §226, and/or §1194.

Dated: March 6, 2018 BLUMENTHAL NORDREHAUG BHOWMIK
DE BLOUWLLP

Norman B. Blumenthal T~
Attorneys for Plaintiffs
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1 DEMAND FOR A JURY TRIAL

PLAINTIFFS demand a jury trial on issues triable to a jury.

2
3
4
s Dated: March 6, 2018 glé%Nu%I%PNORDREMUG BHOWMIK
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Norman B. Blumenthal

Attorneys for Plaintiffs
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BLUMENTHAL NORDREHAUG BHOWMIK DE BLOUW LLP

Norman B. Blumenthal (State Bar #068687)

Kyle R. Nordrehaug (State Bar #205975)
Aparajit Bhowmik %State Bar #248066)

2255 Calle Clara

La Jolla, CA 92037

Telephone: (858)551-1223

Facsimile: (858) 551-1232

Website: www.bamlawca.com

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

E-FILED

4/9/2018 5:31 PM

FRESNO COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT
By: K. Mendoza, Deputy

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF FRESNO

ANGELA CONTI and JUSTINE MORA,

individuals, on behalf of themselves, and

on behalf of all persons similarly situated,
Plaintiffs,

Vs.

L’OREAL USA S/D, INC., a Corporation;
and Does 1 through 50, Inclusive,

Defendants.

Case No.18CECG00816
FIRST AMENDED CLASS ACTION

COMPLAINT FOR:

1. UNFAIR COMPETITION IN
VIOLATION OF CAL. BUS. & PROF.
CODE §§ 17200, ef seq.,

2. FAILURE TO PAY OVERTIME
WAGES IN VIOLATION OF CAL.
LAB. CODE §§ 510, et se]g.;

3. FAILURE TO PROVIDE REQUIRED
MEAL PERIODS IN VIOLATION OF
CAL. LAB. CODE §§ 226.7 & 512 AND
THE APPLICABLE IWC WAGE
ORDER

4. FAILURE TO PROVIDE REQUIRED
REST PERIODS IN VIOLATION OF
CAL. LAB. CODE §§ 226.7 & 512 AND
THE APPLICABLE IWC WAGE
ORDER,;

5. FAILURE TO PROVIDE
ACCURATE ITEMIZED STATEMENTS
IN6VIOLATION OF CAL. LAB. CODE §
226;

6. FAILURE TO PROVIDE WAGES
WHEN DUE IN VIOLATION OF CAL.
LAB. CODE §§ 201, 202 AND 203; and,
7. VIOLATION OF THE PRIVATE
ATTORNEYS GENERAL ACT [LABOR
CODE §§ 2698, ef seq.]

DEMAND FOR A JURY TRIAL
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Plaintiffs Angela Conti and Justine Mora (“PLAINTIFFS”), individuals, on behalf of
themselves and all other similarly situated current and former employees, allege on information
and belief, except for their own acts and knowledge which are based on personal knowledge,

the following;:

THE PARTIES

1. Defendant L’Oreal USA S/D, Inc. (“‘DEFENDANT”) is a Corporation and at all
relevant times mentioned herein conducted and continues to conduct substantial and regular
business throughout California.

2. DEFENDANT was founded in 1999. DEFENDANT’s line of business includes
the retail sale of specialized lines of merchandise.

3. Plaintiff Conti was employed by DEFENDANT in California as a non-exempt
employee entitled to overtime pay and meal and rest periods from June of 2010 to December
8,2017.

4, Plaintiff Mora was employed by DEFENDANT in California as a non-exempt
employee entitled to overtime pay and meal and rest periods from July of 2015 to November
of 2017.

5. PLAINTIFFS bring this Class Action on behalf of themselves and a California
class, defined as all individuals who are or previously were employed by DEFENDANT in
California and classified as non-exempt employees (the “CALIFORNIA CLASS”) at any time
during the period beginning four (4) years prior to the filing of this Complaint and ending on
the date as determined by the Court (the “CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD”).

6. PLAINTIFFS bring this Class Action on behalf of themselves and a
CALIFORNIA CLASS in order to fully compensate the CALIFORNIA CLASS for their losses
incurred during the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD caused by DEFENDANT’s uniform policy
and practice which failed to lawfully compensate these employees for all their overtime worked.
DEFENDANT’s uniform policy and practice alleged herein is an unlawful, unfair and deceptive

2
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business practice whereby DEFENDANT retained and continues to retain wages due
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS. PLAINTIFFS and the
other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS seek an injunction enjoining such conduct by
DEFENDANT in the future, relief for the named PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS who have been economically injured by DEFENDANT’s past and
current unlawful conduct, and all other appropriate legal and equitable relief.

7. The true names and capacities, whether individual, corporate, subsidiary,
partnership, associate or otherwise of defendants DOES 1 through 50, inclusive, are presently
unknown to PLAINTIFFS who therefore sues these Defendants by such fictitious names
pursuant to Cal. Civ. Proc. Code § 474. PLAINTIFFS will seek leave to amend this Complaint
to allege the true names and capacities of Does 1 through 30, inclusive, when they are
ascertained. PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe, and based upon that information and belief
allege, that the Defendants named in this Complaint, including DOES 1 through 50, inclusive,
are responsible in some manner for one or more of the events and happenings that proximately
caused the injuries and damages hereinafter alleged.

8. The agents, servants and/or employees of the Defendants and each of them acting
on behalf of the Defendants acted within the course and scope of his, her or its authority as the
agent, servant and/or employee of the Defendants, and personally participated in the conduct
alleged herein on behalf of the Defendants with respect to the conduct alleged herein.
Consequently, the acts of each Defendant are legally attributable to the other Defendants and
all Defendants are jointly and severally liable to PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS, for the loss sustained as a proximate result of the conduct of the

Defendants’ agents, servants and/or employees.

THE CONDUCT
0. Pursuant to the Industrial Welfare Commission Wage Orders, DEFENDANT is
required to pay PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS Members for all time worked,

3
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meaning the time during which an employee is subject to the control of an employer, including
all the time the employee is suffered or permitted to work. DEFENDANT required
PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS Members to work off the clock without paying them
for all the time they were under DEFENDANT’s control. PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA
CLASS Members would clock out of DEFENDANT’s timekeeping system, in order to perform
additional work for DEFENDANT as required to meet DEFENDANT’s job requirements.
Specifically, During the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD, DEFENDANT engaged in the
uniform and systematic practice of requiring PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS
Members to perform work off the clock after clocking out in that DEFENDANT, as a condition
of employment, required these employees to wait for and submit to loss prevention inspections
after clocking out for meal breaks and at the end of each scheduled shift for which
DEFENDANT did not provide compensation for time spent awaiting and performing the loss
prevention inspections off the clock. As a result, PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA
CLASS Members forfeited overtime wages by working without their time being correctly
recorded and without compensation at the applicable overtime rates. DEFENDANT’s uniform
policy and practice not to pay PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members for all
overtime worked, is evidenced by DEFENDANT’s business records.

10. In violation of the applicable sections of the California Labor Code and the
requirements of the Industrial Welfare Commission ("IWC") Wage Order, DEFENDANT as
a matter of company policy, practice and procedure, intentionally and knowingly failed to
compensate PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS at the correct
rate of pay for all overtime worked. This uniform policy and practice of DEFENDANT is
intended to purposefully avoid the payment of the correct overtime compensation as required
by California law which aliowed DEFENDANT to illegally profit and gain an unfair advantage
over competitors who complied with the law. To the extent equitable tolling operates to toll
claims by the CALIFORNIA CLASS against DEFENDANT, the CALIFORNIA CLASS
PERIOD should be adjusted accordingly.

4
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11. As a result of their rigorous work schedules, PLAINTIFFS and other
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were also from time to time unable to take off duty meal
breaks and were not fully relieved of duty for meal periods. PLAINTIFFS and other
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were required to perform work as ordered by DEFENDANT
for more than five (5) hours during a shift without receiving an off-duty meal break. Further,
DEFENDANT failed to provide PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS Members with a
second off-duty meal period each workday in which these employees were required by
DEFENDANT to work ten (10) hours of work. PLAINTIFFS and the other CALIFORNIA
CLASS Members therefore forfeited meal breaks without additional compensation and in
accordance with DEFENDANTs strict corporate policy and practice.

12.  During the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD, from time to time, PLAINTIFFS
and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were also required to work in excess of four (4)
hours without being provided ten (10) minute rest periods. Further, these employees were
denied their first rest periods of at least ten (10) minutes for some shifts worked of at least two
(2) to four (4) hours, a first and second rest period of at least ten (10) minutes for some shifts
worked of between six (6) and eight (8) hours, and a first, second and third rest period of at least
ten (10) minutes for some shifts worked of ten (10) hours or more. PLAINTIFFS and other
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were also not provided with one hour wages in lieu thereof.
As a result of their rigorous work schedules, PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS
Members were periodically denied their proper rest periods by DEFENDANT and
DEFENDANT’s managers.

13. When PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members worked off the
clock overtime and/or missed meal and rest breaks, DEFENDANT also failed to provide
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS with complete and
accurate wage statements which failed to show, among other things, the correct overtime rate
for overtime worked, including, work performed in excess of eight (8) hours in a workday
and/or forty (40) hours in any workweek, and the correct penalty payments or missed meal and
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rest periods. Cal. Lab. Code § 226 provides that every employer shall furnish each of his or her
employees with an accurate itemized wage statement in writing showing, among other things,
gross wages earned and all applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay period and the
corresponding amount of time worked at each hourly rate. Aside, from the violations listed
above in this paragraph, DEFENDANT failed to issue to PLAINTIFFS an itemized wage
statement that lists all the requirements under California Labor Code 226 et seq. As a result,
from time to time DEFENDANT provided PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS with wage statements which violated Cal. Lab. Code § 226.

14. By reason of this uniform conduct applicable to PLAINTIFFS and all
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members, DEFENDANT committed acts of unfair competition in
violation of the California Unfair Competition Law, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, et seq.
(the “UCL™), by engaging in a company-wide policy and procedure which failed to accurately
calculate and record the correct overtime rate for the overtime worked by PLAINTIFFS and
other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members. The proper calculation of these employees’ overtime
hour rates is the DEFENDANT’s burden. As aresult of DEFENDANT’s intentional disregard
of the obligation to meet this burden, DEFENDANT failed to properly calculate and/or pay all
required overtime compensation for work performed by the members of the CALIFORNIA
CLASS and violated the California Labor Code and regulations promulgated thereunder as
herein alleged.

15.  Specifically as to PLAINTIFFS, they were from time to time unable to take off
duty meal and rest breaks and were not fully relieved of duty for their meal and rest periods and
were not paid all overtime wages due to them as aresult of DEFENDANT’s policy that required
them to work off the clock. PLAINTIFFS were required to perform work as ordered by
DEFENDANT for more than five (5) hours during a shift without receiving an off-duty meal
break. Further, DEFENDANT failed to provide PLAINTIFFS with a second off-duty meal
period each workday in which they were required by DEFENDANT to work ten (10) hours of
work. PLAINTIFFS therefore forfeited meal and rest breaks without additional compensation

6
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and in accordance with DEFENDANT s strict corporate policy and practice. DEFENDANT
also provided PLAINTIFFS with a pay stub that failed to accurately display PLAINTIFFS’
correct rates of overtime pay and payments for missed meal and rest periods for certain pay
periods in violation of Cal. Lab. Code § 226(a). To date, DEFENDANT has not fully paid
PLAINTIFFS the overtime compensation still owed to them or any penalty wages owed to them
under Cal. Lab. Code § 203. The amount in controversy for PLAINTIFFS individually does

not exceed the sum or value of $75,000.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

16.  This Court has jurisdiction over this Action pursuant to California Code of Civil
Procedure, Section 410.10 and California Business & Professions Code, Section 17203. This
action is brought as a Class Action on behalf of PLAINTIFFS and similarly situated employees
of DEFENDANT pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382.

17.  Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure,
Sections 395 and 395.5, because DEFENDANT (i) currently maintains and at all relevant times
maintained offices and facilities in this County and/or conducts substantial business in this
County, and (ii) committed the wrongful conduct herein alleged in this County against members

of the CALIFORNIA CLASS and CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS.

THE CALIFORNIA CLASS
18.  PLAINTIFFS bring the First Cause of Action for Unfair, Unlawful and Deceptive

Business Practices pursuant to Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, ef seq. {the "UCL") as a Class
Action, pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382, on behalf of a California class, defined as
all individuals who are or previously were employed by DEFENDANT in California and
classified as non-exempt employees (the “CALIFORNIA CLASS”) at any time during the
period beginning four (4) years prior to the filing of this Complaint and ending on the date as
determined by the Court (the “CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD”).

7
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19. To the extent equitable tolling operates to toll claims by the CALIFORNIA
CLASS against DEFENDANT, the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD should be adjusted
accordingly.

20. The California Legislature has commanded that “all wages... ... earned by any
person in any employment are due and payable twice during each calendar month, on days
designated in advance by the employer as the regular paydays”, and further that “[a]ny work
in excess of eight hours in one workday and any work in excess of 40 hours in any one
workweek . . . shall be compensated at the rate of no less than one and one-half times the
regular rate of pay for an employee.” {Lab. Code § 204 and § 510(a).) The Industrial Welfare
Commission (IWC), however, is statutorily authorized to “establish exemptions from the
requirement that an overtime rate of compensation be paid... ...for executive, administrative, and
professional employees, provided [inter alia] that the employee is primarily engaged in duties
that meet the test of the exemption, [and] customarily and regularly exercises discretion and
independent judgment in performing those duties...” (Lab. Code § 510(a).) Neither the
PLAINTIFFS nor the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS and/or the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS qualify for exemption from the above requirements.

71. DEFENDANT, as a matter of company policy, practice and procedure, and in
violation of the applicable Labor Code, Industrial Welfare Commission (“IWC”) Wage Order
requirements, and the applicable provisions of California law, intentionally, knowingly, and
wilfully, engaged in a practice whereby DEFENDANT systematically failed to correctly
calculate and record overtime compensation for overtime worked by PLAINTIFFS and the
other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, even though DEFENDANT enjoyed the benefit
of this work, required employees to perform this work and permitted or suffered to permit this
overtime work.

22.  DEFENDANT has the legal burden to establish that each and every
CALIFORNIA CLASS Member is paid the applicable rate for all overtime worked.
DEFENDANT, however, as a matter of uniform and systematic policy and procedure failed to

3
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have in place during the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD and still fails to have in place a policy
or practice to ensure that each and every CALIFORNIA CLASS Member is paid the applicable
overtime rate for all overtime worked, so as to satisfy their burden. This common business
practice applicable to each and every CALIFORNIA CLASS Member can be adjudicated on
aclass-wide basis as unlawful, unfair, and/or deceptive under Cal. Business & Professions Code
§8§ 17200, et seq. (the “UCL”) as causation, damages, and reliance are not elements of this
claim.

23.  Atnotime during the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD was the compensation for
any member of the CALIFORNIA CLASS properly recalculated so as to compensate the
employee for all overtime worked at the applicable rate, as required by California Labor Code
§§ 204 and 510, ef seq. At no time during the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD was the
overtime compensation for any member of the CALIFORNIA CLASS properly recalculated
so as to include all earnings in the overtime compensation calculation as required by California
Labor Code §§ 510, et seq.

24. The CALIFORNIA CLASS, is so numerous that joinder of all CALIFORNIA
CLASS Members is impracticable.

25. DEFENDANT uniformly violated the rights of the CALIFORNIA CLASS under
California law by:

(a)  Violating the California Unfair Competition Laws, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code
§§ 17200, et seq., by unlawfully, unfairly and/or deceptively having in
place company policies, practices and procedures that failed to pay all
wages due the CALIFORNIA CLASS for all overtime worked, and failed
to accurately record the applicable rates of all overtime worked by the
CALIFORNIA CLASS;

(b) Committing an act of unfair competition in violation of the California
Unfair Competition Laws, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, ef seq., by
unlawfully, unfairly, and/or deceptively having in place a company policy,

9
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practice and procedure that failed to correctly calculate overtime
compensation due to PLAINTIFFS and the members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS; and,

Committing an act of unfair competition in violation of the California
Unfair Competition Laws, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, et seq., by
failing to provide mandatory meal and/or rest breaks to PLAINTIFFS and
the CALIFORNIA CLASS members.

26.  This Class Action meets the statutory prerequisites for the maintenance of a Class

Action as set forth in Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382, in that:

The persons who comprise the CALIFORNIA CLASS are so numerous
that the joinder of all such persons is impracticable and the disposition of
their claims as a class will benefit the parties and the Court;

Nearly all factual, legal, statutory, declaratory and injunctive relief issues
that are raised in this Complaint are common to the CALIFORNIA
CLASS will apply uniformly to every member of the CALIFORNIA
CLASS;

The claims of the representative PLAINTIFFS are typical of the claims of
each member of the CALIFORNIA CLASS. PLAINTIFFS, like all the
other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, were subjected to the
uniform employment practices of DEFENDANT and were non-exempt
employees paid on an hourly basis who were subjected to
DEFENDANT’s practice and policy which failed to pay the correct rate
of overtime wages due to the CALIFORNIA CLASS for all overtime
worked by the CALIFORNIA CLASS and thereby systematically
underpays overtime compensation to the CALIFORNIA CLASS.
PLAINTIFFS sustained economic injury as a result of DEFENDANT’s
employment practices. PLAINTIFFS and the members of the

10
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CALIFORNIA CLASS were and are similarly or identically harmed by
the same unlawful, deceptive, unfair and pervasive pattern of misconduct
engaged in by DEFENDANT; and,

The representative PLAINTIFFS will fairly and adequately represent and
protect the interest of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, and has retained
counsel who are competent and experienced in Class Action litigation.
There are no material conflicts between the claims of the representative
PLAINTIFFS and the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS that would
make class certification inappropriate. Counsel for the CALIFORNIA
CLASS will vigorously assert the claims of all CALIFORNIA CLASS

Members.

27.  In addition to meeting the statutory prerequisites to a Class Action, this action

is properly maintained as a Class Action pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382, in that:

Without class certification and determination of declaratory, injunctive,

statutory and other legal questions within the class format, prosecution of

separate actions by individual members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS will
create the risk of:

1) Inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to individual
members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS which would establish
incompatible standards of conduct for the parties opposing the
CALIFORNIA CLASS; and/or,

2) Adjudication with respect to individual members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS which would as a practical matter be
dispositive of interests of the other members not party to the
adjudication or substantially impair or impede their ability to
protect their interests.

The parties opposing the CALIFORNIA CLASS have acted or refused to

11
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act on grounds generally applicable to the CALIFORNIA CLASS, making

appropriate class-wide relief with respect to the CALIFORNIA CLASS

as a whole in that DEFENDANT uniformly failed to pay all wages due.

Including the correct overtime rate, for all worked by the members of the

CALIFORNIA CLASS as required by law;

1) With respect to the First Cause of Action, the final relief on behalf
of the CALIFORNIA CLASS sought does notrelate exclusively to
restitution because through this claim PLAINTIFFS seeks
declaratory relief holding that the DEFENDANT’s policy and
practices constitute unfair competition, along with declaratory
relief, injunctive relief, and incidental equitable relief as may be
necessary to prevent and remedy the conduct declared to constitute
unfair competition;

Common questions of law and fact exist as to the members of the

CALIFORNIA CLASS, with respect to the practices and violations of

California law as listed above, and predominate over any question

affecting only individual CALIFORNIA CLASS Members, and a Class

Action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient

adjudication of the controversy, including consideration of:

1) The interests of the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS in
individually controlling the prosecution or defense of separate
actions in that the substantial expense of individual actions will be
avoided to recover the relatively small amount of economic losses
sustained by the individual CALIFORNIA CLASS Members when
compared to the substantial expense and burden of individual
prosecution of this litigation;

2) Class certification will obviate the need for unduly duplicative

12
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litigation that would create the risk of:

A. Inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to
individual members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, which
would establish incompatible standards of conduct for the
DEFENDANT; and/or,

B. Adjudications with respect to individual members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS would as a practical matter be
dispositive of the interests of the other members not parties
to the adjudication or substantially impair or impede their
ability to protect their interests;

In the context of wage litigation because a substantial number of
individual CALIFORNIA CLASS Members will avoid asserting
their legal rights out of fear of retaliation by DEFENDANT, which
may adversely affect an individual’s job with DEFENDANT or
with a subsequent employer, the Class Action is the only means to
assert their claims through a representative; and,

A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair

and efficient adjudication of this litigation because class treatment

will obviate the need for unduly and unnecessary duplicative
litigation that is likely to result in the absence of certification of

this action pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382.

28.  This Court should permit this action to be maintained as a Class Action pursuant
to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382 because:
(a) The questions of law and fact common to the CALIFORNIA CLASS
predominate over any question affecting only individual CALIFORNIA
CLASS Members because the DEFENDANT’s employment practices are
uniform and systematically applied with respect to the CALIFORNIA

13
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(b)

(©)

(d)

(f)

(2)

(h)

CLASS;

A Class Action is superior to any other available method for the fair and
efficient adjudication of the claims of the members of the CALIFORNIA
CLASS because in the context of employment litigation a substantial
number of individual CALIFORNIA CLASS Members will avoid
asserting their rights individually out of fear of retaliation or adverse
impact on their employment;

The members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS are so numerous that it is
impractical to bring all members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS before the
Court;

PLAINTIFFS, and the other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members, will not be
able to obtain effective and economic lega! redress unless the action is
maintained as a Class Action;

There is a community of interest in obtaining appropriate legal and
equitable relief for the acts of unfair competition, statutory violations and
other improprieties, and in obtaining adequate compensation for the
damages and injuries which DEFENDANT’s actions have inflicted upon
the CALIFORNIA CLASS;

There is a community of interest in ensuring that the combined assets of
DEFENDANT are sufficient to adequately compensate the members of
the CALIFORNIA CLASS for the injuries sustained,

DEFENDANT has acted or refused to act on grounds generally applicable
to the CALIFORNIA CLASS, thereby making final class-wide relief
appropriate with respect to the CALIFORNIA CLASS as a whole;

The members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS are readily ascertainable from
the business records of DEFENDANT; and,

Class treatment provides manageable judicial treatment calculated to bring

14
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a efficient and rapid conclusion to all litigation of all wage and hour
related claims arising out of the conduct of DEFENDANT as to the
members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS.

29.  DEFENDANT maintains records from which the Court can ascertain and identify
by job title each of DEFENDANT’s employees who as have been systematically, intentionally
and uniformly subjected to DEFENDANT’s company policy, practices and procedures as herein
alleged. PLAINTIFFS will seek leave to amend the Complaint to include any additional job

titles of similarly situated employees when they have been identified.

THE CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS
30. PLAINTIFFS further bring the Second, Third, Fourth, Fifth and Sixth causes of

Action on behalf of a California sub-class, defined as all individuals who are or previously were
employed by DEFENDANT in California and classified as non-exempt employees (the
“CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS”) at any time during the period three (3) years prior to
the filing of the complaint and ending on the date as determined by the Court (the
«CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS PERIOD”™) pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382.

31. DEFENDANT, as a matter of company policy, practice and procedure, and in
violation of the applicable Labor Code, Industrial Welfare Commission (“IWC”) Wage Order
requirements, and the applicable provisions of California law, intentionally, knowingly, and
wilfully, engaged in a practice whereby DEFENDANT failed to provide off duty meal and rest
periods to PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS Members and failed to correctly calculate
overtime compensation for the overtime worked by PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, even though DEFENDANT enjoyed the benefit of this
work, required employees to perform this work and permitted or suffered to permit this
overtime work. DEFENDANT has uniformly denied these CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS Members overtime wages at the correct amount to which these employees are entitled

in order to unfairly cheat the competition and unlawfully profit. To the extent equitable tolling

15
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operates to toll claims by the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS against DEFENDANT, the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS PERIOD should be adjusted accordingly.

32. DEFENDANT maintains records from which the Court can ascertain and identify
by name and job title, each of DEFENDANT’s employees who have been systematically,
intentionally and uniformly subjected to DEFENDANT’s company policy, practices and
procedures as herein alleged. PLAINTIFFS will seek leave to amend the complaint to include
any additional job titles of similarly situated employees when they have been identified.

33. The CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS is so numerous that joinder of all
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members is impracticable.

34. Common questions of law and fact exist as to members of the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS, including, but not limited, to the following;:

(a) Whether DEFENDANT unlawfully failed to correctly calculate and pay
overtime compensation to members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS in violation of the California Labor Code and California
regulations and the applicable California Wage Order;

(b)  Whether the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS are
entitled to overtime compensation for overtime worked under the overtime
pay requirements of California law;

(¢) Whether DEFENDANT failed to accurately record the applicable
overtime rates for all overtime worked PLAINTIFFS and the other
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS;

(d) Whether DEFENDANT failed to provide PLAINTIFFS and the other
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS with legally
required uninterrupted thirty (30) minute meal breaks and rest periods;

(€)  Whether DEFENDANT failed to provide PLAINTIFFS and the other
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS with accurate

itemized wage statements;

16
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()  Whether DEFENDANT has engaged in unfair competition by the
above-listed conduct;

(g) The proper measure of damages and penalties owed to the members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS; and,

(h)  Whether DEFENDANT’s conduct was willful.

35. DEFENDANT, as a matter of company policy, practice and procedure, failed to
accurately calculate overtime compensation for the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS
Members and failed to provide accurate records of the applicable overtime rates for the
overtime worked by these employees. All of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS
Members, including PLAINTIFFS, were non-exempt employees who were paid on an hourly
basis by DEFENDANT according to uniform and systematic company procedures as alleged
herein above. This business practice was uniformly applied to each and every member of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, and therefore, the propriety of this conduct can be
adjudicated on a class-wide basis.

36. DEFENDANT violated the rights of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS
under California law by:

(a)  Violating Cal. Lab, Code §§ 510, et seq., by failing to accurately pay
PLAINTIFFS and the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS the correct overtime pay for which DEFENDANT is liable
pursuant to Cal. Lab. Code § 1194 & § 1198;

(b) Violating Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7 and 512, by failing to provide
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS with
all legally required off-duty, uninterrupted thirty (30) minute meal breaks
and the legally required rest breaks;

(c)  Violating Cal. Lab. Code § 226, by failing to provide PLAINTIFFS and
the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS with an

accurate itemized statement in writing showing all accurate and applicable

17
FIRST AMENDED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT




O 00 ~] O o W N

NMNNNMNNM'—'D—‘?—-‘F—‘I—*I—‘—ID—HD—‘D—‘
OOHJQ\M-QWN_O\DOO\IQ\‘J\&WN'—‘O

(d

(a)

(b

(c)

Case 1:19-cv-00769-LJO-SKO Document1 Filed 05/30/19 Page 61 of 214

overtime rates in effect during the pay period and the corresponding
amount of time worked at each overtime rate by the employee; and,
Violating Cal. Lab. Code §§ 201, 202 and/or 203, which provides that
when an employee is discharged or quits from employment, the employer
must pay the employee all wages due without abatement, by failing to
tender full payment and/or restitution of wages owed or in the manner
required by California law to the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR
SUB-CLASS who have terminated their employment.

37.  This Class Action meets the statutory prerequisites for the maintenance of a Class

Action as set forth in Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382, in that:

The persons who comprise the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS are
so numerous that the joinder of all CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS
Members is impracticable and the disposition of their claims as a class
will benefit the parties and the Court;

Nearly all factual, legal, statutory, declaratory and injunctive relief issues
that are raised in this Complaint are common to the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS and will apply uniformly to every member of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS;

The claims of the representative PLAINTIFFS are typical of the claims of
each member of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS.
PLAINTIFFS, like all the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR
SUB-CLASS, were non-exempt employees paid on an hourly basis who
were subjected to the DEFENDANT’s practice and policy described
herein. PLAINTIFFS sustained economic injury as a result of
DEFENDANT’s employment practices. PLAINTIFFS and the members
of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS were and are similarly or

identically harmed by the same unlawful, deceptive, unfair and pervasive

18
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pattern of misconduct engaged in by DEFENDANT; and,

The representative PLAINTIFFS will fairly and adequately represent and
protect the interest of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, and has
retained counsel who are competent and experienced in Class Action
litigation. There are no material conflicts between the claims of the
representative PLAINTIFFS and the members of the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS that would make class certification inappropriate.
Counsel for the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS will vigorously
assert the claims of all CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members.

38.  In addition to meeting the statutory prerequisites to a Class Action, this action is

properly maintained as a Class Action pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382, in that:

Without class certification and determination of declaratory, injunctive,
statutory and other legal questions within the class format, prosecution of
separate actions by individual members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR
SUB-CLASS will create the risk of:

1) Inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to individual
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS which
would establish incompatible standards of conduct for the parties
opposing the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS; or,

2) Adjudication with respect to individual members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS which would as a practical
matter be dispositive of interests of the other members not party to
the adjudication or substantially impair or impede their ability to
protect their interests.

The parties opposing the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS have acted

or refused to act on grounds generally applicable to the CALIFORNIA

LABOR SUB-CLASS, making appropriate class-wide relief with respect

19
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()

to the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS as a whole in that

DEFENDANT uniformly failed to pay all wages due. Including the

correct overtime rate, for all overtime worked by the members of the

CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS as required by law;

Common questions of law and fact predominate as to the members of the

CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, with respect to the practices and

violations of California Law as listed above, and predominate over any

question affecting only individual CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS

Members, and a Class Action is superior to other available methods for

the fair and efficient adjudication of the controversy, including

consideration of:

1) The interests of the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS in individually controlling the prosecution or defense of
separate actions in that the substantial expense of individual
actions will be avoided to recover the relatively small amount of
economic losses sustained by the individual CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS Members when compared to the substantial
expense and burden of individual prosecution of this litigation;

2) Class certification will obviate the need for unduly duplicative
litigation that would create the risk of:

A. Inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to
individual members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS, which would establish incompatible standards of
conduct for the DEFENDANT; and/or,

B.  Adjudications with respect to individual members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS would as a practical

matter be dispositive of the interests of the other members
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not parties to the adjudication or substantially impair or

impede their ability to protect their interests;
In the context of wage litigation because a substantial number of
individual CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members will
avoid asserting their legal rights out of fear of retaliation by
DEFENDANT, which may adversely affect an individual’s job
with DEFENDANT or with a subsequent employer, the Class
Action is the only means to assert their claims through a
representative; and,
A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair
and efficient adjudication of this litigation because class treatment
will obviate the need for unduly and unnecessary duplicative
litigation that is likely to result in the absence of certification of

this action pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382.

39.  This Court should permit this action to be maintained as a Class Action pursuant
to Cal. Code of Civ, Proc. § 382 because:

(@  The questions of law and fact common to the CALIFORNIA LABOR
SUB-CLASS predominate over any question affecting only individual
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members;

(b) A Class Action is superior to any other available method for the fair and
efficient adjudication of the claims of the members of the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS because in the context of employment litigation a
substantial number of individual CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS
Members will avoid asserting their rights individually out of fear of
retaliation or adverse impact on their employment;

(¢} The members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS are so

numerous that it is impractical to bring all members of the CALIFORNIA

21
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LABOR SUB-CLASS before the Court,

PLAINTIFFS, and the other CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS
Members, will not be able to obtain effective and economic legal redress
unless the action is maintained as a Class Action;

There is a community of interest in obtaining appropriate legal and
equitable relief for the acts of unfair competition, statutory violations and
other improprieties, and in obtaining adequate compensation for the
damages and injuries which DEFENDANT’s actions have inflicted upon
the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS;

There is a community of interest in ensuring that the combined assets of
DEFENDANT are sufficient to adequately compensate the members of
the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS for the injuries sustained;
DEFENDANT has acted or refused to act on grounds generally applicable
to the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, thereby making final class-
wide relief appropriate with respect to the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS as a whole;

The members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS are readily
ascertainable from the business records of DEFENDANT. The
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS consists of all CALIFORNIA
CLASS Members classified as non-exempt employees during the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS PERIOD; and,

Class treatment provides manageable judicial treatment calculated to bring
a efficient and rapid conclusion to all litigation of all wage and hour
related claims arising out of the conduct of DEFENDANT as to the
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS.

22
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FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
For Unlawful Business Practices
[Cal. Bus. And Prof, Code §§ 17200, ef seq.]
By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA CLASS and Against All Defendants)

40. PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, reallege and
incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior paragraphs of this
Complaint.

41. DEFENDANT is a “person” as that term is defined under Cal. Bus. and Prof.
Code § 17021.

42. California Business & Professions Code §§ 17200, et seq. (the “UCL”) defines
unfair competition as any unlawful, unfair, or fraudulent business act or practice. Section
17203 authorizes injunctive, declaratory, and/or other equitable relief with respect to unfair
competition as follows:

Any person who engages, has engaged, or proposes to engage in unfair

competition may be enjoined in any court of competent jurisdiction. The court

may make such orders or judgments, including the appointment of a receiver, as

may be necessary to prevent the use or employment by any person of any practice

which constitutés unfair competition, as defined in this chapter, or as may be

necessary to restore to any person in interest any money or grpperty, real or

personal, which may have been acquired by means of such unfair competition.
Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17203.

43. By the conduct alleged herein, DEFENDANT has engaged and continues to
engage in a business practice which violates California law, including but not limited to, the
applicable Wage Order(s), the California Code of Regulations and the California Labor Code
including Sections 204, 206.5,226.7, 510, 512, 558, 1194 & 1198, for which this Court should
issue declaratory and other equitable relief pursuant to Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17203 as may
be necessary to prevent and remedy the conduct held to constitute unfair competition, including
restitution of wages wrongfully withheld.

44. By the conduct alleged herein, DEFENDANT’s practices were unlawful and

unfair in that these practices violated public policy, were immoral, unethical, oppressive,

23
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unscrupulous or substantially injurious to employees, and were without valid justification or
utility for which this Court should issue equitable and injunctive relief pursuant to Section
17203 of the California Business & Professions Code, including restitution of wages wrongfully
withheld.

45. By the conduct alleged herein, DEFENDANT’s practices were deceptive and
fraudulent in that DEFENDANT’s uniform policy and practice failed to pay PLAINTIFFS, and
other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, wages due for overtime worked, failed to
accurately to record the applicable rate of all overtime worked, and failed to provide the legally
required off duty meal and rest periods due to a systematic business practice that cannot be
justified, pursuant to the applicable Cal. Lab. Code, and Industrial Welfare Commission
requirements in violation of Cal. Bus. Code §§ 17200, et seq., and for which this Court should
issue injunctive and equitable relief, pursuant to Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17203, including
restitution of wages wrongfully withheld.

46. By the conduct alleged herein, DEFENDANT"s practices were also unlawful,
unfair and deceptive in that DEFENDANT’s employment practices caused PLAINTIFFS and
the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS to be underpaid during their employment with
DEFENDANT.

47. By the conduct alleged herein, DEFENDANT’s practices were also unfair and
deceptive in that DEFENDANT’s uniform policies, practices and procedures failed to provide
mandatory meal and/or rest breaks to PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA CLASS members.

48.  Therefore, PLAINTIFFS demand on behalf of themselves and on behalf of each
CALIFORNIA CLASS member, one (1) hour of pay for each workday in which an off-duty
meal period was not timely provided for each five (5) hours of work, and/or one (1) hour of pay
for each workday in which a second off-duty meal period was not timely provided for each ten
(10) hours of work.

49.  PLAINTIFFS further demand on behalf of themselves and on behalf of each
CALIFORNIA CLASS member, one (1) hour of pay for each workday in which a rest period
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was not timely provided as required by law.

50. By and through the unlawful and unfair business practices described herein,
DEFENDANT has obtained valuable property, money and services from PLAINTIFFS and the
other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, including earned wages for all overtime worked,
and has deprived them of valuable rights and benefits guaranteed by law and contract, all to the
detriment of these employees and to the benefit of DEFENDANT so as to allow DEFENDANT
to unfairly compete against competitors who comply with the law.

51.  All the acts described herein as violations of, among other things, the Industrial
Welfare Commission Wage Orders, the California Code of Regulations, and the California
Labor Code, were unlawful and in violation of public policy, were immoral, unethical,
oppressive and unscrupulous, were deceptive, and thereby constitute unlawful, unfair and
deceptive business practices in violation of Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, et seq.

52.  PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS are entitled
to, and do, seek such relief as may be necessary to restore to them the money and property
which DEFENDANT has acquired, or of which PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS have been deprived, by means of the above described unlawful and
unfair business practices, including earned but unpaid wages for all overtime worked.

53. PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS are further
entitled to, and do, seek a declaration that the described business practices are unlawful, unfair
and deceptive, and that injunctive relief should be issued restraining DEFENDANT from
engaging in any unlawful and unfair business practices in the future.

54. PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS have no plain,
speedy and/or adequate remedy at law that will end the unlawful and unfair business practices
of DEFENDANT. Further, the practices herein alleged presently continue to occur unabated.
As a result of the unlawful and unfair business practices described herein, PLAINTIFFS and
the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS have suffered and will continue to suffer

irreparable legal and economic harm unless DEFENDANT is restrained from continuing to
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engage in these unlawful and unfair business practices.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
For Failure To Pay Overtime Compensation
[Cal. Lab. Code §§ 204, 510, 1194 and 1198]
(By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS and Against All
Defendants)

55.  PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS, reallege and incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior
paragraphs of this Complaint.

56. PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS bring a claim for DEFENDANT’s willful and intentional violations of the California
Labor Code and the Industrial Welfare Commission requirements for DEFENDANT’s failure
to accurately calculate the applicable rates for all overtime worked by PLAINTIFFS and other
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS and DEFENDANTs failure to properly
compensate the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS for overtime worked,
including, work performed in excess of eight (8) hours in a workday and/or forty (40) hours in
any workweek.

57. Pursuant to Cal. Lab. Code § 204, other applicable laws and regulations, and
public policy, an employer must timely pay its employees for all hours worked.

58.  Cal. Lab. Code § 510 further provides that employees in California shall not be
employed more than eight (8) hours per workday and/or more than forty (40) hours per
workweek unless they receive additional compensation beyond their regular wages in amounts
specified by law.

59,  Cal. Lab. Code § 1194 establishes an employee’s right to recover unpaid wages,
including overtime compensation and interest thereon, together with the costs of suit. Cal. Lab.

Code § 1198 further states that the employment of an employee for longer hours than those
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fixed by the Industrial Welfare Commission is unlawful.

60. DEFENDANT maintained a uniform wage practice of paying PLAINTIFFS and
the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS without regard to the correct
amount of overtime worked. As set forth herein, DEFENDANT’s uniform policy and practice
was to unlawfully and intentionally deny timely payment of wages due for the overtime worked
by PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, and
DEFENDANT in fact failed to pay these employees the correct applicable overtime wages for
all overtime worked.

61. DEFENDANT’s uniform pattern of unlawful wage and hour practices manifested,
without limitation, applicable to the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS as a whole, as a
result of implementing a uniform policy and practice that denied accurate compensation to
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS for all
overtime worked, including, the work performed in excess of eight (8) hours in a workday
and/or forty (40) hours in any workweek.

62. In committing these violations of the California Labor Code, DEFENDANT
inaccurately calculated the amount of overtime worked and the applicable overtime rates and
consequently underpaid the actual time worked by PLAINTIFFS and other members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS. DEFENDANT acted in an illegal attempt to avoid the
payment of all earned wages, and other benefits in violation of the California Labor Code, the
Industrial Welfare Commission requirements and other applicable laws and regulations.

63.  As a direct result of DEFENDANT’s unlawful wage practices as alleged herein,
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS did not
receive full compensation for all overtime worked.

64. Cal. Lab. Code § 515 sets out various categories of employees who are exempt
from the overtime requirements of the law. None of these exemptions are applicable to
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS. Further,
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS are not
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subject to a valid collective bargaining agreement that would preclude the causes of action
contained herein this Complaint. Rather, the PLAINTIFFS bring this Action on behalf of
themselves and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS based on DEFENDANT’s violations
of non-negotiable, non-waiveable rights provided by the State of California.

65. During the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS PERIOD, PLAINTIFFS and
the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS were paid less for time worked
that they were entitled to, constituting a failure to pay all earned wages.

66. DEFENDANT failed to accurately pay PLAINTIFFS and the other members of
the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS overtime wages for the time they worked which was
in excess of the maximum hours permissible by law as required by Cal. Lab. Code §§ 510, 1194
& 1198, even though PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR
SUB-CLASS were required to work, and did in fact work, overtime as to which DEFENDANT
failed to accurately record and pay using the applicable overtime rate as evidenced by
DEFENDANT’s business records and witnessed by employees.

67. By virtue of DEFENDANT's unlawful failure to accurately pay all earned
compensation to PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS for the true time they worked, PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS have suffered and will continue to suffer an economic
injury in amounts which are presently unknown to them and which will be ascertained
according to proof at trial.

68. DEFENDANT knew or should have known that PLAINTIFFS and the other
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS are under compensated for their overtime
worked. DEFENDANT systematically elected, either through intentional malfeasance or gross
nonfeasance, to not pay employees for their labor as a matter of uniform company policy,
practice and procedure, and DEFENDANT perpetrated this systematic scheme by refusing to
pay PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS the

applicable overtime rate.
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69.  Inperforming the acts and practices herein alleged in violation of California labor
laws, and refusing to compensate the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS for
all time worked and provide them with the requisite overtime compensation, DEFENDANT
acted and continues to act intentionally, oppressively, and maliciously toward PLAINTIFFS and
the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS with a conscious of and utter
disregard for their legal rights, or the consequences to them, and with the despicable intent of
depriving them of their property and legal rights, and otherwise causing them injury in order
to increase company profits at the expense of these employees.

70. PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS therefore request recovery of all unpaid wages, including overtime wages, according
to proof, interest, statutory costs, as well as the assessment of any statutory penalties against
DEFENDANT, in a sum as provided by the California Labor Code and/or other applicable
statutes. To the extent overtime compensation is determined to be owed to the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS Members who have terminated their employment, DEFENDANT’S
conduct also violates Labor Code §§ 201 and/or 202, and therefore these individuals are also
be entitled to waiting time penalties under Cal. Lab. Code § 203, which penalties are sought
herein on behalf of these CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members. DEFENDANT’s
conduct as alleged herein was willful, intentional and not in good faith. Further, PLAINTIFFS
and other CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members are entitled to seek and recover
statutory costs.

"
i
"
"
i
"
"
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THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
For Failure to Provide Required Meal Periods
[Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7 & 512 ]
(By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS and Against All
Defendants)
I 71.  PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-

CLASS, reallege and incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior
paragraphs of this Complaint.

72.  During the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD, DEFENDANT failed to provide
all the legally required off-duty meal breaks to PLAINTIFFS and the other CALIFORNIA
[ LABOR SUB-CLASS Members as required by the applicable Wage Order and Labor Code.
The nature of the work performed by PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS MEMBERS did not prevent these employees from being relieved of all of their
duties for the legally required off-duty meal periods. As a result of their rigorous work
schedules, PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members were
often not fully relieved of duty by DEFENDANT for their meal periods. Additionally,
DEFENDANT’s failure to provide PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS Members with legally required meal breaks prior to their fifth (5th) hour of work is
evidenced by DEFENDANT’s business records. As a result, PLAINTIFFS and other
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS therefore forfeited meal breaks
without additional compensation and in accordance with DEFENDANT’s strict corporate
policy and practice.

73.  DEFENDANT further violated California Labor Code §§ 226.7 and the
applicable IWC Wage Order by failing to compensate PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS Members who were not provided a meal period, in accordance with
the applicable Wage Order, one additional hour of compensation at each employee’s regular

rate of pay for each workday that a meal period was not provided.
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74.  As a proximate result of the aforementioned violations, PLAINTIFFS and
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members have been damaged in an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, interest, penalties, expenses and costs of

suit,

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
For Failure to Provide Required Rest Periods
[Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7 & 512 ]
(By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS and Against All
Defendants)

75.  PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS, reallege and incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior
paragraphs of this Complaint.

76. PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members were
required to work in excess of four (4) hours without being provided ten (10) minute rest
periods. Further, these employees were denied their first rest periods of at least ten (10)
minutes for some shifts worked of at least two (2) to four (4) hours, a first and second rest
period of at least ten (10) minutes for some shifts worked of between six (6) and eight (8)
hours, and a first, second and third rest period of at least ten (10) minutes for some shifts
worked of ten (10) hours or more. PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS Members were also not provided with one hour wages in lieu thereof. As a result of
their rigorous work schedules, PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS Members were periodically denied their proper rest periods by DEFENDANT and
DEFENDANT’s managers.

77. DEFENDANT further violated California Labor Code §§ 226.7 and the
applicable IWC Wage Order by failing to compensate PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS Members who were not provided a rest period, in accordance with
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the applicable Wage Order, one additional hour of compensation at each employee’s regular
rate of pay for each workday that rest period was not provided.

78.  As a proximate result of the aforementioned violations, PLAINTIFFS and
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members have been damaged in an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, interest, penalties, expenses and costs of

suit.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

For Failure to Provide Accurate Itemized Statements
[Cal. Lab. Code § 226]
(By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS and Against All
Defendants)

79.  PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS, reallege and incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior
paragraphs of this Complaint.

80. Cal. Labor Code § 226 provides that an employer must furnish employees with
an “accurate itemized” statement in writing showing:

(1) gross wages earned,

(2) total hours worked by the employee, except for any employee whose compensation

is solely based on a salary and who is exempt from payment of overtime under

subdivision (a) of Section 515 or any applicable order of the Industrial Welfare

Commission,

(3) the number of piecerate units earned and any applicable piece rate if the employee

is paid on a piece-rate basis,

(4) all deductions, provided that all deductions made on written orders of the employee

may be aggregated and shown as one item,

(5) net wages earned,
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(6) the inclusive dates of the period for which the employee is paid,

(7) the name of the employee and his or her social security number, except that by

January 1, 2008, only the last four digits of his or her social security number or an

employee identification number other than a social security number may be shown on

the itemized statement,

(8) the name and address of the legal entity that is the employer, and

(9) all applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay period and the corresponding

number of hours worked at each hourly rate by the employee.

81.  When PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members worked unpaid
overtime and/or missed meal and rest breaks, DEFENDANT also failed to provide
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS with complete and
accurate wage statements which failed to show, among other things, the correct overtime rate
for overtime worked, including, work performed in excess of eight (8) hours in a workday
and/or forty (40) hours in any workweek, and the correct penalty payments or missed meal and
rest periods. Cal. Lab. Code § 226 provides that every employer shall furnish each of his or her
employees with an accurate itemized wage statement in writing showing, among other things,
gross wages earned and all applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay period and the
corresponding amount of time worked at each hourly rate. Aside, from the violations listed
above in this paragraph, DEFENDANT failed to issue to PLAINTIFFS an itemized wage
statement that lists all the requirements under California Labor Code 226 ef seq. As aresult,
from time to time DEFENDANT provided PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS with wage statements which violated Cal. Lab. Code § 226.

82. DEFENDANT knowingly and intentionally failed to comply with Cal. Labor
Code § 226, causing injury and damages to the PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS. These damages include, but are not limited to, costs
expended calculating the correct rates for the overtime worked and the amount of employment

taxes which were not properly paid to state and federal tax authorities. These damages are
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difficult to estimate. Therefore, PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS may elect to recover liquidated damages of fifty dollars ($50.00) for the
initial pay period in which the violation occurred, and one hundred dollars ($100.00) for each
violation in a subsequent pay period pursuant to Cal. Lab. Code § 226, in an amount according
to proof at the time of trial (but in no event more than four thousand dollars ($4,000.00) for
PLAINTIFFS and each respective member of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS

herein).

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

For Failure to Pay Wages When Due
[ Cal. Lab. Code §§ 201, 202, 203]
(By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS and Against All
Defendants)

83. PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS, reallege and incorporate by reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior
paragraphs of this Complaint.

84.  Cal. Lab. Code § 200 provides that:

As used in this article:

(a) "Wages" includes all amounts for labor performed by employees of every
description, whether the amount is fixed or ascertained by the standard of time,
task, piece, Commission basis, or other method of calculation.

(b) "Labor"” includes labor, work, or service whether rendered or performed under
contract, subcontract, partnership, station plan, or other agreement if the labor to
be paid for is performed personally by the person demanding payment.

85.  Cal. Lab. Code § 201 provides, in relevant part, that “If an employer discharges
an employee, the wages earned and unpaid at the time of discharge are due and payable
immediately.”

86. Cal. Lab. Code § 202 provides, in relevant part, that:

If an employee not having a written contract for a definite period quits his or her

employment, his or her wages shall become due and payable not later than 72

hours thereafter, unless the emﬁloyee has given 72 hours previous notice of his
or her intention to quit, in which case the employee is entitled to his or her wages
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at the time of quitting. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, an employee

who quits without providing a 72-hour notice shall be entitled to receive payment

by mail if he or she so requests and designates a mailing address. The date of the

mailing shall constitute the date of payment for purposes of the requirement to

provide payment within 72 hours of the notice of quitting.

87. There was no definite term in PLAINTIFFS’ or any CALIFORNIA LABOR
SUB-CLASS Members’ employment contract.

88.  Cal. Lab. Code § 203 provides:

If an employer willfully fails to pay, without abatement or reduction, in

accordance with Sections 201, 201.5, 202, and 205.5, any wages of an employee

who is discharged or who quits, the wages of the employee shall continue as a

penalty from the due date thereof at the same rate until paid or unti! an action

therefor is commenced; but the wages shall not continue for more than 30 days.

89.  The employment of PLAINTIFFS and many CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS Members terminated and DEFENDANT has not tendered payment of overtime wages,
to these employees who actually worked overtime, as required by law.

90.  Therefore, as provided by Cal Lab. Code § 203, on behalf of themselves and the
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS whose employment has, PLAINTIFFS
demand up to thirty days of pay as penalty for not paying all wages due at time of termination
for all employees who terminated employment during the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS
PERIOD, and demand an accounting and payment of all wages due, plus interest and statutory
costs as allowed by law.

SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

For Violation of the Private Attorneys General Act
[Cal. Lab. Code §§ 2698, et seq.]
(By Plaintiffs and Against All Defendants)
91,  Plaintiffs incorporate by reference the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1-90,
supra, as though fully set forth at this point.
92. PAGA is a mechanism by which the State of California itself can enforce state
labor laws through the employee suing under the PAGA who do so as the proxy or agent of the

state's labor law enforcement agencies. An action to recover civil penalties under PAGA is
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fundamentally a law enforcement action designed to protect the public and not to benefit private
parties. The purpose of the PAGA is not to recover damages or restitution, but to create a
means of "deputizing" citizens as private attorneys general to enforce the Labor Code. In
enacting PAGA, the California Legislature specified that "it was ... in the public interest to
allow aggrieved employees, acting as private attorneys general to recover civil penalties for
Labor Code violations ..." Stats. 2003, ch, 906, § 1. Accordingly, PAGA claims cannot be
subject to arbitration.

93.  Plaintiffs, and such persons that may be added from time to time who satisfy the
requirements and exhaust the administrative procedures under the Private Attorney General Act,
bring this Representative Action on behalf of the State of California with respect to themselves
and all individuals who are or previously were employed by DEFENDANT as non-exempt
employees in California during the time period of March 6, 2017 unti! the present (the
"AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEES").

94.  OnJanuary 29,2018, Plaintiffs gave written notice by electronic mail to the Labor
and Workforce Development Agency (the "Agency") and by certified mail to the employer of
the specific provisions of this code alleged to have been violated as required by Labor Code §
2699.3. See Exhibit #1, attached hereto and incorporated by this reference herein. The
statutory waiting period for PLAINTIFFS to add these allegations to the Complaint has expired.
As a result, pursuant to Section 2699.3, PLAINTIFFS may now commence a representative
civil action under PAGA pursuant to Section 2699 as the proxy of the State of California with
respect to all AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEES as herein defined.

95.  The policies, acts and practices heretofore described were and are an unlawful
business act or practice because Defendant (a) failed to provide PLAINTIFFS and the other
AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEES for all of the hours they worked, including overtime, (b) failed
to properly record and provide legally required meal and rest periods, (c) failed to provide
accurate itemized wage statements, and (d) failed to pay wages when due, all in violation of the

applicable Labor Code sections listed in Labor Code Sections §§ 201, 202, 203, 204, 226(a),
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226.7, 510, 512, 558, 1194, 1198, and the applicable Industrial Wage Order(s), and thereby

gives rise to statutory penalties as a result of such conduct. PLAINTIFFS hereby seek recovery

of civil penalties as prescribed by the Labor Code Private Attorney General Act of 2004 as the

representatives of the State of California for the illegal conduct perpetrated on PLAINTIFFS
and the other AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEES.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS pray for judgment against each Defendant, jointly and

severally, as follows:

On behalf of the CALIFORNIA CLASS:

1.

A)

B)

€)

D)

That the Court certify the First Cause of Action asserted by the CALIFORNIA
CLASS as a class action pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382;

An order temporarily, preliminarily and permanently enjoining and restraining
DEFENDANT from engaging in similar unlawful conduct as set forth herein;
An order requiring DEFENDANT to pay all wages and all sums unlawfuly
withheld from compensation due to PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS; and,

Restitutionary disgorgement of DEFENDANT s ill-gotten gains intoa fluid fund
for restitution of the sums incidental to DEFENDANT’s violations due to
PLAINTIFFS and to the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS.

On behalf of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS:

A)

B)

That the Court certify the Second, Third, Fourth, Fifth and Sixth Causes of
Action asserted by the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS as a class action
pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382;

Compensatory damages, according to proof at trial, including compensatory
damages for overtime compensation due PLAINTIFFS and the other members

of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, during the applicable
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C)

D)

E)

CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS PERIOD plus interest thereon at the
statutory rate;

Meal and rest period compensation pursuant to Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7, 512 and
the applicable IWC Wage Order;

The greater of all actual damages or fifty dollars ($50) for the initial pay period
in which a violation occurs and one hundred dollars ($100) per each member of
the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS for each violation in a subsequent pay
period, not exceeding an aggregate penalty of four thousand dollars {$4,000), and
an award of costs for violation of Cal. Lab. Code § 226; and,

The wages of all terminated employees from the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS as a penalty from the due date thereof at the same rate until paid or until

an action therefore is commenced, in accordance with Cal. Lab. Code § 203.

3. On behalf of the State of California and with respect to all AGGRIEVED

EMPLOYEES:
(A) Recovery of civil penalties as prescribed by the Labor Code Private Attorneys
General Act of 2004.
4. On all claims:
A)  An award of interest, including prejudgment interest at the legal rate;
B)  Such other and further relief as the Court deems just and equitable; and,
O) An award of penalties, attorneys’ fees and cost of suit, as allowable under the law,
including, but not limited to, pursuant to Labor Code §218.5, §226, and/or §1194.
Dated: April 9, 2018 BLUMENTHAL NORDREHAUG BHOWMIK
DE BLOUW LLP
By:
Aparajit Bhowmik
Attorneys for Plaintiffs
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DEMAND FOR A JURY TRIAL
PLAINTIFFS demand a jury trial on issues triable to a jury.

Dated: April 9, 2018 BLUMENTHAL NORDREHAUG BHOWMIK
DE BLOUW LLP

By:

Aparajit Bhowmik
Attorneys for Plaintiffs
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EXHIBIT 1
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Web Site: www.bamlawea.com
San Diego | San Francisco | Sacramento | Los Angeles | Riverside | Chicago

Phone: (858) 551-1223
Fax: (858) 551-1232

WRITERS E-MAIL: WRITERS EXT:
Nick@bamlawca.com 1004
January 29, 2018
CAl514

VIA ONLINE FILING TO LWDA AND CERTIFIED MAIL TO DEFENDANT

Labor and Workforce Development Agency L’Oreal USA S/D, Inc.

Online Filing Certified Mail # 70171450000202536847
CSC Lawyers Incorporating Service
2710 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 150N
Sacramento, CA 95833

Re:  Notice Of Violations Of California Labor Code Sections §§ 201,202,
203, 204, 226(a), 226.7, 510, 512, 558, 1194, 1198, Violation of Applicable
Industrial Welfare Commission Wage Order(s), and Pursuant To California
Labor Code Section 2699.5.

Dear Sir/Madam:

Our offices represent Plaintiffs Angela Conti and Justine Mora (“Plaintiffs™), and
other aggrieved employees in a lawsuit against L’Oreal USA S/D, Inc. (“Defendant”).
Plaintiff Conti was employed by Defendant in California from June of 2010 to December of
2017 as a nonexempt employee entitled to the legally required meal and rest breaks and
payment for all time worked under Defendant’s control, including overtime worked.
Plaintiff Mora was employed by Defendant in California from July 0f 2015 to November of
2017 as a nonexempt employee entitled to the legally required meal and rest breaks and
payment for all time worked under Defendant’s control, including overtime worked.
Defendant, however, unlawfully failed to record and pay Plaintiffs and other aggrieved
employees for all of their time worked, including overtime wages, and for all of their missed
meal and rest breaks. As a consequence of the aforementioned violations, Plaintiffs further
contend that Defendant failed to provide accurate wage statements to them, and other
aggrieved employees, in violation of California Labor Code section 226(a). Additionally,
Plaintiffs contend that Defendant failed to comply with Industrial Wage Order 7(A)(3) in
that Defendant failed to keep time records showing when Plaintiffs began and ended each
shift and meal period. Said conduct, in addition to the foregoing, violates Labor Code §§
201, 202, 203, 204, 226(a), 226.7, 510, 512, 558, 1194, 1198, Violation of the applicable
Industrial Welfare Commission Wage Order(s), and is therefore actionable under California
Labor Code section 2699.3.

A true and correct copy of the Complaint filed by Plaintiffs against Defendant, which
(i) identifies the alleged violations, (ii) details the facts and theories which support the
alleged violations, (iii) details the specific work performed by Plaintiffs, (iii) sets forth the
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people/entities, dates, classifications, violations, events, and actions which are at issue to the
extent known to Plaintiffs, and (iv) sets forth the illegal practices used by Defendant, is
attached hereto. This information provides notice to the Labor and Workforce Development
Agency of the facts and theories supporting the alleged violations for the agency’s reference.
Plaintiffs therefore incorporate the allegations of the attached Complaint into this letter as
if fully set forth herein. If the agency needs any further information, please do not hesitate
to ask.

This notice is provided to enable Plaintiffs to proceed with the Complaint against
Defendant as authorized by California Labor Code section 2695, ef seq. The filing fee of
$75 is being mailed to the Department of Industrial Restations Accounting unit with an
identification of the Plaintiffs, the Defendant and the notice. The pending lawsuit consists
of other aggrieved employees. As counsel, our intention is to vigorously prosecute the
claims as alleged in the Complaint, and to procure civil penalties as provided by the Private
Attorney General Statue of 2004 on behalf of Plaintiffs and all aggrieved California
employees.

Your earliest response to this notice is appreciated. If you have any questions of
concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me at the above number and address.

Respectfully,
{s! Nicholas J. De Blouw

Nicholas J. De Blouw, Esq.

ZA\D\Dropbox (NBB)\Pending Litigation\L'Oreal- Conti\l-paga-01.wpd
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ANGELA J. RAFOTH, Bar No. 241966
LITTLER MENDELSON, P.C.

333 Bush Street, 34th Floor

San Francisco, CA 94104

Telephone: 415.433.1940

Email: ARafoth@littler.com

IRENE V. FITZGERALD, Bar No. 266949

LITTLER MENDELSON, P.C.
5200 North Palm Avenue, Suite 302
Fresno, CA 93704.2225
Telephone:  559.244.7500

Email; Ifitzgerald@littler.com

E-FILED
5/15/2018 2:53 PM

FRESNO COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT
By: A. Ramos, Deputy

Atlorneys for Defendant, L’OREAL USA S/D, INC.

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF FRESNO

ANGELA CONTI and JUSTINE MORA,
individuals, on behalf of themselves, and
on behalf of all persons similarly situated,

Plaintiffs,
v,

L’OREAL USA S/D, INC., a Corporation;
and DOES 1 through 50, inclusive,

Defendant.

Case No. 18CECG00816

DEFENDANT L’OREAL USA S/D, INC.’S
ANSWER TO FIRST AMENDED CLASS
ACTION COMPLAINT

ASSIGNED FOR ALL PURPOSES TO JUDGE
JEFFREY HAMILTON

First Amended Complaint filed: April 9, 2018
Trial Date: TBD

Defendant L'OREAL USA S/D, INC. (“L’OREAL”) hereby answers the unverified
First Amended Class Action Complaint (“FAC") filed by Plaintiffs ANGELA CONTI and JUSTINE
MORA (*Plaintiffs”) on behalf of themselves and all others similarly situated in the above-

referenced action.

GENERAL DENIAL

Pursuant to the provisions of the Califomia Code of Civil Procedure section

431.30(d), L’OREAL denies generally and specifically each and every allegation contained in the

FAC. In addition, L'OREAL denies Plaintiffs have sustained, or will sustain, any loss or damages in

the manner or amount alleged, or otherwise, by reason of any act or omission, or any other conduct

Case No.: 18CECGOD816
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or absence thereof on the part of L"'OREAL. L’OREAL further denies that any of the claims asserted

2 || by Plaintiffs is suitable for class, collective, or representative treatment or adjudication.
3 AFFIRMATIVE AND OTHER DEFENSES
4 L'OREAL asserts the fotlowing affirmative and other defenses, which it designates,
5 || collectively, as “affirmative defenses.” L’OREAL’s designation of its defenses as “affirmative” is
6 || notintended in any way to alter Plaintiffs’ burden of proof with regard to any element of their causes
7 || of action. L’OREAL also expressly denies the existence of any alleged putative class of persons or
8 | “aggrieved employees” that Plaintiffs purport to represent in this lawsuit. L’OREAL incorporates
9 || (as if fully set forth therein) this express denial each and every time it references “Plaintiffs.”

10 FIRST AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

" (Genera! Denial)

12 L’OREAL alleges that Plaintiffs' FAC, and every alleged cause of action therein, fails

13 || to state a claim sufficient to constitute a cause of action.

14 SECOND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

15 (Statute of Limitations)

16 L’OREAL alleges that Plaintiffs’ FAC, and every cause of action therein, is barred by

17 || the applicable statutes of limitations set forth in Code of Civil Procedure sections 338 and 340(a),

18 | Labor Code section 203, Business and Professions Code section 17208, and/or any other applicable

19 || statute of limitations.

20 THIRD AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

7 (PAGA - No Standing)

22 L’OREAL alleges that Plaintiffs lack standing to bring claims for any civil penalties

23 || on behalf of others because they are not an “aggrieved employee” pursuant to the Labor Code

24 || Private Attorneys General Act of 2004 (“PAGA™), Labor Code section 2698 et seq.

25 /11

260 /11

27 || /11

28 1t 117

T e P € Case No.: 1BCECG00816 2.

Mk Flast
fos Frasunes Ca 1L
HH 93 e

ANSWER & AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES OF L'OREAL USA §/D INC., TO IST AMDED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT




—

Case 1:19-cv-00769-LJO-SKO Document1 Filed 05/30/19 Page 88 of 214

FOURTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
(PAGA - Failure To Exhaust)

2
3 L'OREAL alleges that Plaintiffs failed to exhaust all internal grievance procedures
4 | and administrative remedies and failed to timely provide the Labor Workforce Development Agency
5 | (‘LWDA™) and Defendant with proper notification of the claims and/or to adequately describe their
6 || claims or the “aggrieved employees™ on whose behalf they intend to seek penalties, pursuant to the
7 | PAGA.
FIFTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
8 (PAGA - Failure To Identify)
9 L'OREAL alleges that Plaintiffs have failed to adequately identify any other
10 || allegedly “aggrieved employees,” as required by the PAGA.
1i SIXTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
. (PAGA - Determination Of Penalties)
13 L'OREAL alleges that civil penalties that Plaintiffs seek pursuant to the PAGA
14 || cannot be determined on a class-wide or representative basis.
15 SEVENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
16 (PAGA - Determination Of Penalties)
17 L'OREAL alleges that any penalties awarded against it pursuant to the PAGA would
18 {| be unjust, arbitrary, oppressive or confiscatory.
19 EIGHTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
0 (PAGA - No Statutory Penalties)
21 L’OREAL alleges that Plaintiffs cannot recover statutory penalties on behalf of other
22 | “aggrieved employees™ pursuant to the PAGA.
23 NINTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
o (PAGA - Constitutionality)
25 L’OREAL alleges that the imposition of civil penaities pursuant to the PAGA is
26 ! unconstitutional under the California and United States constitutions.
210 11/
28
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1 TENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

5 (Labor Code §226(a) = No Violation)

. L'OREAL alleges that it has provided compliant wage statements because they show
. all of the categories of information required by Labor Code section 226(a).

ELEVENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

3 (Labor Code §226(¢) - No Injury)

6 L’OREAL alleges that, even assuming arguendo Plaintiffs were not provided with a

7 compliant wage statement, Plaintiffs are not entitied to recover any damages or penalties because,

8 pursuant to California Labor Code section 226(e), they did not suffer any injuries as a result.

9 TWELFTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
10 (Labor Code §226(e) — No Intentionality)
1 L’OREAL alleges that, even assuming arguendo Plaintiffs were not provided with a
12 compliant wage statement, Plaintiffs are not entitled to recover any damages or penalties because
13 L’OREAL'’s alleged failure to comply with California Labor Code section 226(a) was not a
14 “knowing and intentional” under California Labor Code section 226(¢).
15 THIRTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

{CCP § 382 ~ Class Action Requirements)
16
17 L’OREAL alleges that this suit may not be properly maintained as a class action
18 || because: (a) Plaintiffs have failed to plead and/or cannot establish the necessary procedural elements
jg { for class treatment; (b} the number of putative class members is too small to meet the numerosity
20 {l vequirement for a class action; (c) a class action is not an appropriate method for the fair and
21 efficient adjudication of the claims described in the FAC; (d) common issues of facts or law do not
97 || predominate and, to the contrary, individual issues predominate; (¢) Plaintiffs’ claims are not
93 || representative or typical of the claims of the putative class; (f) Plaintiffs are not a proper class
24 || representative; (g) the named Plaintiffs and alleged putative class counsel are not adequate
25 || representatives for the alleged putative class; and/or (h) Plaintiffs cannot satisfy any of the
96 || requirements for class action treatment set forth in California Code of Civil Procedure section 382 or
7 || Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23, If the Court certifies a class in this case over L’'OREAL’s
28
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1 || objections, then L’'OREAL asserts the additional defenses set forth herein against each and every
2 || member of the certified class.
3 FOURTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
4| (Equitable Defenses)
5 L'OREAL &alleges that Plaintiffs’ FAC, and every alleged cause of action therein, is
6 || barred in whole or in part to the extent it is subject to the equitable docirines, of laches, unclean
7 || hands, waiver, and estoppel.
8 FIFTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
9 (Claims Subject To Arbitration)
10 | L’OREAL alleges that the Court lacks jurisdiction over the claims alleged in
11 || Plaintiffs’ FAC to the extent that Plaintiffs, and/or some or all of those they purport to represent, are
12 || subject to a valid and enforceable arbitration agreement requiring the arbitration of those
13 || individual’s claims.
14 SIXTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
v {No Class Arbitration Claims)
16 L’OREAL alleges that the class and representative allegations of the FAC are barred
17 || because Plaintiffs, and/or some or all of those they purport to represent, and L.’OREAL agreed to
18 || submit only individual disputes to arbitration.
19 SEVENTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
20 (Satisfaction of Obligations)
21 L’OREAL alleges that Plaintiffs’ FAC, and every alleged cause of action therein, is
22 || barred because, to the extent L'OREAL owed any duties or obligations to Plaintiffs, such duties or
23 || obligations have been fully performed, satisfied or discharged.
24 EIGHTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
25 (Injury Caused by Plaintiff)
26 L’OREAL alleges that Plaintiffs’ FAC, and every alleged cause of action therein,
27 || cannot be maintained against L'OREAL because any alleged losses or harms sustained by Plaintiffs
28 || resulted from causes other than any act or omission of any L’OREAL.
R s P & Case No.: 18CECG00816 5.
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NINTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
(No Equitable Relief)

L’OREAL alleges that Plaintiffs’ FAC, and each and every cause of action alleged
therein, is barred to the extent Plaintiffs seek equitable relief because there is an adequate remedy at

law.

TWENTIETH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
(Voluntary Waiver)

Defendant alleges that, to the extent that Plaintiffs, and/or some or all of the
employees Plaintiffs purport to represent, did not take a meal period or rest break, it was because
he/she: (1) failed to take breaks that were provided to him/her in compliance with California law; (2)
chose not to take breaks that were authorized and permitted; or (3) waived his/her right to meal
periods and/or rest breaks.

TWENTY-FIRST AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
(Bona Fide Dispute)

Defendant alleges that the Complaint fails to state a claim for penaities under the
California Labor Code in that (1) there was a bona fide, good faith dispute as to Defendant’s
obligations under any applicable Labor Code provisions, including, without limitation, Labor Code
section 203, and (2) Defendant did not willfully viclate Labor Code section 203,

TWENTY-SECOND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
(Offset To Injury)

L’OREAL alleges that any recovery by Plaintiffs under any of the causes of action
alleged in the FAC must be offset by any benefits and/or other monies they, and those they seek to
represent, have received from L’OREAL.

11
11
iy
11
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1 ADDITIONAL AFFIRMATIVE AND OTHER DEFENSES

2 L’OREAL presently has insufficient knowledge or information upon which to form a
3 || belief as to whether there may be additional, as yet unstated, defenses and reserves the right to assert
4 || additional defenses or affirmative defenses in the event discovery indicates such defenses are
5 || appropriate,
6 PRAYER FOR RELIEF
7 WHEREFORE, L’OREAL prays for relief as follows:
8 1. That Plaintiffs take nothing and that the FAC be dismissed in its entirety with
9 || prejudice;

10 2, That judgment be entered in L’OREAL's favor;

11 3. That L’OREAL be awarded such other and further relief as the Court deems

12 [ just and proper.
13

14 || Dated: May Y ,2018
15

; e

ANGELA J, RAFOTH
17 IRENE V. FITZGERALD
‘ LITTLER MENDELSON, P.C.
18 ' Attoineys for Defendant
&
19
20

21
22
23
24
25
26
27
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PROOF OF SERVICE

[ am a resident of the State of California, over the age of eighteen years, and not a
arty to the within action. My business address is 5200 North Palm Avenue, Suite 302, Fresno,
California 93704.2225. On May 14, 2018, 1 served the within document(s):

DEFENDANT L’OREAL USA S/D, INC.’S ANSWER TO FIRST
AMENDED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

D By personal service. I personally delivered the documents to the persons at the
addresses listed below. (1) For a party represented by an attorney, delivery was
made to the attorney or at the attorney's office by leaving the documents, in an
envelope or package clearly labeled to identify the attorney being served, with a
receptionist or an individual in charge of the office, between the hours of nine in
the morning and five in the evening. (2) For a party, delivery was made to the
party or by leaving the documents at the party's residence with some person not
younger than 18 years of age between the hours of eight in the morning and six in
the evening.

v 8 = v v oh W W

S

By United States mail. I enclosed the documents in a sealed envelope or
package addressed to the persons at the addresses below and (specify one):

(=

12
13 deposited the sealed envelope with the United States Postal Service, with the
postage fully prepaid.
14
placed the envelope for collection and mailing, following our ordinary
15 business practices. I am readily familiar with this business's practice for
collecting and processing correspondence for mailing. On the same day that
16 correspondence is placed for collection and mailing, it is deposited in the
17 ordinary course of business with the United States Postal Service, in a sealed
envelope with postage fully prepaid.
18
I am a resident or employed in the county where the mailing occurred. The
19 | envelope or package was placed in the mail at: Fresno, Californta.
20 O By overnight delivery. I enclosed the documents in an envelope or package
2 provided by an overnight delivery carrier and addressed to the persons at the
addresses below. I placed the envelope or package for collection and overnight
22 delivery at an office or a regularly utilized drop box of the ovemight delivery
carrier.
23
D By messenger service. [ served the documents by placing them in an envelope
24 or package addressed to the persons at the addresses listed below and providing
them to a professional messenger service for service. (4 declaration by the
25 messenger must accompany this Proof of Service or be contained in the
2% Declaration of Messenger below.)
27
28
e

oo € D04 28 PROOF OF SERVICE

5592447500
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1 ] By fax transmission. Based on an agreement of the parties to accept service by
fax transmission, | faxed the documenis to the persons at the fax numbers listed
2 below. No error was reported by the fax machine that I used. A copy of the
3 record of the fax transmission, which I printed out, is attached.
4 ;| By eclectronic service. Based on a court order or an agreement of the parties to
accept electronic service, I caused the documents to be sent to the persons at the
5 electronic service addresses listed below.
6
Norman B. Blumenthal, Esq. Counsel for Plaintiffs
7 Kyle R. Nordrehaug, Esq.
8 Aparajit Bhowmik, Esq.
2255 Calle Clara
9 La Jolla, CA 92037
Tel: 858.551-1223
10 Fax: 858.551.1232
Email: norm@bamiawca,com
1 Email: kyle@bamlawca.com
12 Email: ai@bamlawlj.com
13 I am readily familiar with the firm's practice of collection and processing
correspondence for mailing and for shipping via overnight delivery service. Under that practice it
14 | would be deposited with the U.S. Postal Service or if an overnight delivery service shipment,
deposited in an overnight delivery service pick-up box or office on the same day with postage or fees
15 | thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of business.
16 I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Califomia that the
above is true and correct. Executed on May 14, 2018, at Fresno, California.
17
18
19 67 ennifer A. Drudge o
90 | Firmwide:154672767.1 0549931110
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
UTTLERMENDELSON, P 2.
E300 et Palm Svere:
P, 04225 PROOF OF SERVICE
559.204.7500
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EXHIBIT “B”
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Norman B. Blumenthal (State Bar #068687)
norm(@hamlawca.com

Il:'.yle Rl; Nordrehaug (State Bar #205975) '
yle@bamlawca.com

Aparajit Bhowmik (State Bar #248066) ) APR 11 20
ai@bamlawca.com i FRESNO COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT
2255 Calle Clara By
La Jolla, CA 92037 DEPT. 501
Telephone: (858) 551-1223

Facsimile: (858) 551-1232

BLUMENTHAL NORDREHAUG BHOWMIK DE BLOUW LLF H L

. RECEIVED
Attorneys for Plaintiffs 41412019 11:04 AM

FRESNO COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT
By: C. York, Deputy

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF FRESNO

ANGELA CONTI and JUSTINE MORA, | Case No. 18CECG00816
individuals, on behalf of themselves, and )
on behalf of all persons similarly situated, | STIPULATION AND [PROPOSED] ORDER
FOR LEAVE FOR PLAINTIFFS TO FILE A

Plaintiffs, SECOND AMENDED CLASS ACTION
COMPLAINT o
vs.
L’OREAL USA S/D, INC., a Corporation; | Judge: Hon. Jeffrey Hamilton
and Does 1 through 50, Inclusive, Dept. 402
' Trial Date: TBD

Date Action Filed: March 6, 2018
Defendants.

STIPULATION FOR LEAVE FOR PLAINTIFFS TO FILE
SECOND AMENDED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

Case No. 18CECG00816
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Plaintiffs ANGELA CONTI and JUSTINE MORA (“Plaintiffs) and Defendant L’OREAL
USA S/D, INC. (“Defendant”), by and through their respective counsel, hereby stipulate as follows:

WHEREAS, Plaintiffs seek to file 2 Second Amended Class Action Complaint, a
copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit #1; _

WHEREAS Defendant will stipulate to allow Plaintiffs to file the proposed Second Amended
Class Action Complaint attached hereto as Exhibit #1;

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereby stipulate and agree as follows:

Upon the Court’s execution of this Order, Plaintiffs may have leave to file the Second
Amended Class Action Complaint, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit #1, and Defendant shall

have thirty (30) days to respond after service of the Second Amended Class Action Complaint.
IT IS SO STIPULATED. |

Dated: April 4, 2019

Angela J. Rafoth
Irene V. Fitzgerald

LITTLER MENDELSON P.C.

Attorneys for Defendant L’OREAL USA S/D,
INC.

Dated: April 4,2019 _ leied, Womor—"

Norman B. Blumenthal
Kyle R, Nordrehaug
Aparajit Bhowmik
Ricardo R. Ehmann

BLUMENTHAL NORDREHAUG
BHOWMIK DE BLOUW LLP

Attorneys for Plaintiffs ANGELA CONTI and
JUSTINE MORA ;

IT IS SO ORDERED. W
paTED: 7 /! ?/Z/ é] &W 7< .
;

e Hoplorable Jeffrey Hamflto
J ofthe Superior Court of California
County of Fresno

STIPULATION FOR LEAVE FOR PLAINTIFFS TO FILE
SECOND AMENDED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

Case No. 18CECGO00816
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BLUMENTHAL NORDREHAUG BHOWMIK DE BLOUW LLP
Norman B. Blumenthal (State Bar #068687)
Kyle R. Nordrehaug (State Bar #205975)
Aparajit Bhowmik (State Bar #248066)

2255 Calle Clara

La Jolta, CA 92037

Telep hone 858)551-1223

Facsmnle (858) 551-1232

Website: www.pamlawca.com

Attorneys for Plaintiffs
SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF FRESNO

ANGELA CONTI and JUSTINE MORA, Case No.18CECG00816
individuals, on behalf of themselves, and on

behalf of all persons similarly situated, SECOND AMENDED CLASS ACTION
COMPLAINT FOR:
Plaintiffs,
1. UNFAIR COMPETITION IN
VS. : VIOLATION OF CAL. BUS. & PROF.

-1 CODE §§ 17200, et seq.;
L’OREAL USA S/D, INC., a Corporation; 2. FAILURE TO PAY OVERTIME WAGES

and Does 1 through 50, Inclusive, IN VIOLATION OF CAL. LAB. CODE §§
510, et seq.;
Defendants. 3, FAILURE TO PROVIDE REQUIRED

MEAL PERIODS IN VIOLATION OF CAL.
LAB. CODE §§ 226.7 & 512 AND THE
APPLICABLE TWC WAGE ORDER

4. FAILURE TO PROVIDE REQUIRED
REST PERIODS IN VIOLATION OF CAL.
LAB. CODE §§ 226.7 & 512 AND THE
APPLICABLE IWC WAGE ORDER;

5. FAILURE TO PROVIDE ACCURATE
ITEMIZED STATEMENTS IN
VIOLATION OF CAL. LAB. CODE § 226,
6. FAILURE TO PROVIDE WAGES |
WHEN DUE IN VIOLATION OF CAL.
LAB. CODE §§ 201, 202 AND 203;

7. VIOLATION OF THE PRIVATE
ATTORNEYS GENERAL ACT [LABOR
CODE §§ 2698, et seq.]; and,

8. FAILURE TO PAY OVERTIME
COMPENSATION IN VIOLATION OF 29
U.S.C. §§ 201, et seq.

DEMAND FOR A JURY TRIAL

1

SECOND AMENDED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
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Plaintiffs Angela Conti and Justine Mora (“PLAINTIFFS”), individuals, on behalf of
themselves and all other similarly situated current and former employees, allege on information
and belief, except for their own acts and knowledge which are based on personal knowledge,

the following;

THE PARTIES

1. Defendant L’Oreal USA S/D, Inc, (“DEFENDANT™) is a Corporation and at all
relevant times mentioned herein conducted and continues to conduct substantial and regular
business throughout California.

2. DEFENDANT was founded in 1999. DEFENDANT’s line of business includes
the retail sale of specializéd lines of merchandise.

3. Plaintiff Conti was employed by DEFENDANT in California as a non-exempt
employee entitled to overtime pay and meal and rest periods from June of 2010 to December
8, 2017. |

4, Plaintiff Mora was employed by DEFENDANT in California as a non-exempt
employee entitled to overtime pay and meal and rest-periods from July of 2015 to November
of 2017, |

S. PLAINTIFFS bring this Class Action on behalf of themselves and a California
clasé, defined as all individuals who are or previouély were employed by Defendant L'Oreal
USA S/D, Inc. who worked in Califomi*ci, were classified as non-exempt, and who separated
from their employment between March 6, 2014 and February 20, 2018 (the “CALIFORNIA
CLASS PERIOD"). |

6. PLAINTIFFS bring this Class | Action on behalf of themselves and a
CALIFORNIA CLASS in order to fully compensate ﬁe CALIFORNIA CLASS for their losses
incurred during the CAL[FORN'IA CLASS PERIOD caused by DEFENDANT’ s uniform policy
and practice which failed to lawfully compensate these employees for all their overtime worked.
DEFENDANT’s uniform policy and practice alleged herein is anunlawful, unfair and deceptive

- 2
SECOND AMENDED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
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‘business practice whereby DEFENDANT retained and continues to retain wages due

PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS. PLAINTIFFS and the
other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS seck an injunction enjoining such conduct by
DEFENDANT in the future, relief for the named PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS who have been economically injured by DEFENDANT’s past aﬁd
current unlawful conduct, and all other appropriate legal and equitable relief.

7. The true names and capacities, whether individual, corporate, subsidiary,
partnership, associate or otherwise of defendants DOES 1 through 50, inclusive, are presently
unknown to PLAINTIFFS who therefore sues these Defendants by such fictitious names
pursuant to Cal. Civ. Proc. Code § 474. PLAINTIFFS will seek leave to amend this Complaint
to allege the true names and capacities of Does 1 through 50, inclusive, when they are
ascertained. PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe, and based upoﬁ that information and belief
allege, that the Defendants named in this Complaint, including DOES 1 through 50, inclusive,
are responsible in some manner for one or more of the events and happenings that proximately
caused the injuries and damages hereinafter alleged.

8. The agents, servants and/or employees of the Defendants and each of them acting
on behalf of the Defeﬁdants acted within the course and scope of his, her or its authority as the
agent, servant and/or employee of the Defendants, and personally participated in the conduct
'alleged herein on behalf of the Defendants with respect to the conduct alleged herein.
Consequently, the acts of each Defendant are legally attributable to the other Defendants and
all Defendants are jointly and severally liable to PLAINTIFFS and fhe other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS, for the loss sustained as a proximate result of the conduct of the

Defendants’ agents, servants and/or employees.

_ THE CONDUCT
9. Pursuant to the Industrial Welfare Commission Wage Orders, DEFENDANT is
required to pay PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS Members for all time worked,

3
SECOND AMENDED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
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meaning the time during which an employee is subject to the control of an employer, including
all the time _ihe employee is suffered or permitted to work. DEFENDANT required
PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS Members to work off the clock without paying them
for all the time they were under DEFENDANT’s control. PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA
CLASS Members would clock out of DEFENDANT s timekeeping system, in order to perform
additional work for DEFENDANT as required to meet DEFENDANT’s job requirements.
Specifically, During the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD, 'DEFENDANT engaged in the
uniform and systematic practice of requiring PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS
Members to perform work off the clock after clocking out in that DEFENDANT, as a condition
of employment, réquired these employees to wait for and submit to loss prevention inspections
after clocking out for meal breaks and at the end of each scheduled shift for which
DEFENDANT did not provide compensation for time spent awaiting and performing. the loss
prevention inspecfions off the clock. As a result, PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA

CLASS Members forfeited overtime wages by working without their time being correctly
recorded and without compensation at the applicable overtime rates. DEFENDANT’s uniform
policy and practice not to pay PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members for all
overtime worked, is evidenced by DEFENDANT’s business records.

10. In violation of the applicable sectioﬁs of the California Labor Code and the
requirements of the Industrial Welfare Commission ("TWC") Wage Order, DEFENDANT as
a matter of company policy, practice and procedure, intentionally and knowingly failed to
compensate PLAINTIFFS a_ﬁd the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS at the correct
rate of pay for all overtime worked. This uniform policy and practice of DEFENDANT is
intended to purposefully avoid the payment of the correct overtime compensation as required
by California law which allowed DEFENDANT to illegally profit and gain an unfair advantage
over competitors who complied with the law. To the extent equitable tolling operates to toll
claims by the CALIFORNIA CLASS against DEFENDANT, the CALIFORNIA CLASS
PERIOD should be adjusted accordingly.

4
SECOND AMENDED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
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_ 11. As a result of their rigorous work schedules, PLAINTIFFS and other
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were also from time to time unable to take off duty meal
breaks and were not fully relieved of duty for meal periods. PLAINTIFFS and other
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were required to perform work as ordered by DEFENDANT
for more than five (5) hours during a shift without receiving an off-duty meal break. Further,
DEFENDANT failed to provide PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS Members with a |
second off-duty meal period each workday in which these employees were required by
DEFENDANT to work ten (10) hours of work. PLAINTIFFS and the other CALIFORNIA
CLASS Members therefore forfeited meal breaks without additional compensation and in
accordance with DEFENDANT’S strict corporate policy and practice.

12.  During the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD, from time to time, PLAINTIFFS
and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were also required to work in excess of four (4)
hours without being provided ten (10) minute rest periods. Further, these employees were
denied their first rest periods of at least ten (10) minutes for some shifts worked of at least two
(2) to four (4) hours, a first and second rest period of at least ten (10) minutes for some shifts
worked of between six (6) and eight (8) hours, and a first, second and third rest period of at least
ten (10) minutes for some shifts worked of ten (10) hours or more. PLAINTIFFS and other
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were also not provided with one hour wages in lieu thereof.
As a result of their rigorous work schedules, PLAINTIFFS and dther CALIFORNIA CLASS
Members were periodically denied their proper rest periods by DEFENDANT and
DEFENDANT’s managers. |

13.  When PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members worked off the
clock overtime and/or missed meal and rest breaks, DEFENDANT also failed to provide
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS with complete and
accurate wage statements which failed to show, among other things, the correct overtime rate
for overtime worked, including, work performed in excess of eight (8) hours in a workday

and/or forty (40) hours in any workweek, and the correct penalty payments or missed meal and

5
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rest periods. Cal. Lab. Code § 226 provides that every employer shall furnish each (;f his or her
employees with an accurate itemized wage statement in writing showing, among other things,
gross wages earned and all applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay period and the
corresponding amount of time worked at each hourly rate. Aside, from the violations listed

above in this paragraph, DEFENDANT failed to issue to PLAINTIFFS an itemized wage

statement that lists all the requirements under California Labor Code 226 et seq. As aresult,
from time to time DEFENDANT provided PLAINTIFFS and the other members -of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS with wage statements which violated Cal. Lab. Code § 226.

14. By reason of this uniform conduc_t applicable to PLAINTIFFS and all
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members, DEFENDANT committed acts of unfair competition in
violation of the California Unfair Competition Law, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, et seq.

(the “UCL™), by engaging in a company-wide policy and procedure which failed to accurately
I} calculate and record the correct overtime rate for the overtime worked by PLAINTIFFS and

other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members. The proper calculation of these employees’ overtime
hour rates is the DEFENDANT’s burden. As a result of DEFENDANT’s intentibnal disregard
of the obligaﬁon to meet this burden, DEFENDANT failed to properly calculate and/or pay all
| required overtime cofnpensation for work performed by the members of the CALIFORNIA
CLASS and violated the California Labor Code and regulations promulgated thereunder as
herein alleged.

15.  Specifically as to PLAINTIFFS, they were from time to time unable to take off
duty meal and rest breaks and were not fully relieved of duty for their meal and rest periods and
were not paid all overtime wages due to them as a result of DEFENDANT s policy that required
them to work off the clock. PLAINTIFFS were required to perform work as (;rdered by
DEFENDANT for more than five (5) hours during a shift without receiving an off-duty meal
break. Further, DEFENDANT failed to provide PLAINTIFFS with a second off-duty meal
period each workday in which they were required by DEFENDANT to work ten (10) hours of
work. PLAINTIFFS therefore forfeited meal and rest breaks without additional compensation

6 i
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and in accordance with DEFENDANTs strict corporate policy and practice. DEFENDANT
also provided PLAINTIFFS with a pay stub that failed to accmatély display PLAINTIFFS’
correct rates of overtime pay and payments for missed meal and rest periods for certain pay
periods in violation of Cal. Lab. Code § 226(a). To date, DEFENDANT.has not ful_ly paid
PLAINTIFFS the overtime compensation still owed to them or any penalty wages owed to them
under Cal. Lab. Code § 203. The amount in controversy for PLAINTIFFS individually does

not exceed the sum or value of $75,000.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE
16.  This Court has jurisdiction over this Action pursuant to California Code of Civil

Procedure, Section 410.10 and California Business & Professions Code, Section 17203. This
action is brought as a Class Action on behalf of PLAINTIFFS and similarly situated employees
of DEFENDANT pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382, |

17.  Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure,
Sections 395 and 395.5, because DEFENDANT (i) currently maintains and at all relevant times
maintained offices and facilities in this County an_dfor conducts substantial businessin this
County, and (ii) committed the wrongful conduct herein alleged in this County against members

of the CALIFORNIA CLASS and CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS.

THE CALIFORNIA CLASS
18.  PLAINTIFFS bring the First Cause of Action for Uﬁfair, Unlawful and Deceptive
Business Practices pursuant to Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, et seq. (the "UCL") as a Class
Action, pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382, on behalf of a California class, defined as
all individuals who are or previously were employed by Defendant L’ Oreal USA S/D, Inc. who

‘workedin California, were classified as non-exempt, and who separated from their emplojn.nent

between March 6, 2014 and February 20, 2018 (the “CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD™).

19. To the extent equitable tolling operates to toll claims by the CALIFORNIA

7
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CLASS against DEFENDANT, the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD should be adjusted
accordlil .y. The California Legislature has commanded that “all wages... ...carned by any
person in any employment are due and payable twice during each calendar month, on days
designated in advance by the employer as the regular paydéys”, and further that “[alny work
in excess of eight hours in one workday and any work in excess of 40 hours in any one
workweek . . . shall be compensated at the rate of no less than one and one-half times the |
regular rate of pay for an employee.” (Lab. Code § 204 and § 510(a).) The Industrial Welfare
Commission (IWC), however, is statutorily authorized. to “establish exemptions from the
requirement that an overtime rate of compcnéation be paid......for executive, administrative, and
professional employees, provided [inter alia] that the employee is primarily engaged in duties
that meet the test of the exemption, [and] customarily and regularly exercises discretion and
independent judgment m performing those duties...” (Lab. Code § 510(a).) Neither the
PLAINTIFFS nor the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS and/or the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS qualify for exemption from the above requirements. |

21. DEFENDANT; as a matter of company policy, pfacﬁce and procedure, and in
violation of the applicable Labor Code, Industrial Welfare Commission (“IWC”) Wage Order
requirements, and the ai;plicable provisions of California law, intentionally, knowingly, and
wilfully, engaged in a practice whereby DEFENDANT systematically failed to cotrectly
calculate and record overtime compensation for overtime worked by PLAINTIFFS and the
other: members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, even thdugh DEFENDANT enjoyed the benefit
of this work, required employees to perform tlus work and permitted or suffered to permit this
overtime work., | _

22. . DEFENDANT has the legal burden to establish that each and every
CALIFORNIA CLASS Member is paid the applicable rate for all .overtime worked.
DEFENDANT, however, as a matter of uniform and systematic policy and procedure failed to
have in place during the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD and still fails to have in place a policy
or practice to ensure that each and every CALIFORNIA CLASS Member is paid the applicable '

: 8
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overtime rate for all overtime worked, so as to satisfy their burden. This common business
practice applicable to each and every CALIFORNIA CLASS Member can be adjudicated on
a class-wide basis as unlawful, unfair, and/or deceptive under Cal. Business & Professions Code
§§ 17200, ef seq. (the “UCL”) as causation, damages, and reliance are not elements of this
claim. _

23.  Atnotime duringthe CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD was the compensation for
any member of the CALIFORNIA CLASS properly recalculated so as to compensate the
employee for all overtime worked at the applicable rate, as required by California Labor Code
§§ 204 and 510, et seq. At no time during the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD was the
overtime compensation for any member of the CALIFORNIA CLASS properly recalculated
so as to include all earnings in the overtime compensation calculation as required by California
Labor Code §§ 510, et seq.

.24, The CALIFORNIA CLASS, is so numerous that joinder of all CALIFORNIA
CLASS Members is impracticable.

25. DEFENDANT uniformly violated the rights of the CALIFORNIA CLASS under
California law by:

(a) Violating the California Unfair Competition Laws, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code
§§ 17200, et seq., by unlaWﬁllly, unfairly and/or deceptively having in
place compaﬁy policies, practices and procedures that failed to pay all

- wages due the CALIFORNIA CLASS for all overtime worked, and failed
to accurately record the applicable rates of all overtime worked by the
CALIFORNIA CLASS; _

(b) Committing an act of unfair competition in violation of the California
Unfair Competition Laws, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, et seq., by
unlawfully, unfairly, and/or deceptively having in place a company policy,
practice and procedure that failed to correctly calculate overtime

compensation due to PLAINTIFFS and the members of the

9
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CALIFORNIA CLASS; and,

Committing an act of unfair competition in violation of the California
Unfair Competition Laws, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, ef seq., by
failing to provide mandatory meal and/or rest breaks to PLAINTIFFS and
the CALIFORNIA CLASS members.

Committing an act of unfair competition in violation of the California
Unfair Competition Laws, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, et seq., by
violating the Fair Labor Standards Act (“FLSA”), 29 U.S.C. §§ 201, et

' seq., by failing to pay the correct overtime wages to the PLAINTIFF and

the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS as legally required by the
FLSA, and retaining the unpaid overtime to the benefit of DEFENDANT.

26.  This Class Action meets the statutory prerequisites for the maintenance of a Class
Action as set forth in Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382, in that:

(a)

(b)

)

The persons who compﬁse the CALIFORNIA CLASS are so numerous
that the joinder of all such .persohs is impracticable and the disposition of
their claims as a class will benefit the parties and the Court;

Nearly all factual, legal, statutory, declaratory and injunctive relief issues
that are raised in this Complaint are common to the CALIFORNIA
CLASS will apply uniformly to every member of the CALIFORNIA
CLASS;

The claims of the representative PLAINTIFFS are typical of the claims of
each member of the CALIFORNIA CLASS. PLAINTIFFS, like all the
other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, were subjected to the
uniform employment practices of DEFENDANT and were non-exempt
employces paid on an hourly basis who were subjected to
DEFENDANT’s practice and policy which failed to pay the correcf rate
of overtime wages due to the CALIFORNIA CLASS for all overtime

10

" SECOND AMENDED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT




L= T TS B - Y A

10
11
12
13
_14
15
16
1
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

~J

ase 1:19-cv-00769;LJO-SKO Docdment 1 Filed 05/3\(\):/'119 Page 109 of 214

@

worked by the CALIFORNIA CLASS and thereby systematically
underpays overtime compensation to the CALIFORNIA CLASS,
PLAINTIFFS sustained economic injury as a result of DEFENDANT’s
employment practices. PLAINTIFFS and the members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS were and are similarly or idéntically harmed by
the same unlawful, deceptive, unfair and pervasive pattefn of misconduct
engaged in by DEFENDANT; and,

The representative PLAINTIFFS will fairly and adequately represent and
protect the interest of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, and has retained
counsel who are compétent and experienced in Class Action litigation.
There are no material conflicts between the claims of the representative
PLAINTIFFS and the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS that would
make class certification inappropriate. Counsel for the CALIFORNIA
CLASS will vigorously assert the claims of all CALIFORNIA CLASS

Members.

27.  In addition to meeting the statutory prerequisites to a Class Action, this action

is properly maintained as a Class Action pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382; in that:

(a)

Without class certification and determination of declaratory, injunctive,

statutory and other legal questic;ns within the class format, présecutiqn of

separate actions by individual members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS will

create the risk of: |

1)  Inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to individual
members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS which would establish
incompatible standards of conduct for the parties opposing the
CALIFORNIA CLASS; and/or,

2)  Adjudication with reépect to individual members of the

CALIFORNIA CLASS which would as a practical matter be

11
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(b)

©

-

dispositive of interests of the other members not party to the
adjudication or substantially impair or impede their ability to
protect their interests. |

The parties opposing the CALIFORNIA CLASS have acted or refused to

acton grounds generally applicable to the CALIFORNIA CLASS, making

appropriate class-wide relief with respect to the CALIFORNIA CLASS
as a whole in that DEFENDANT uniformly failed to pay all wages due.

Inclﬁding the correct overtime rate, for all worked by the members of the

CALIFORNIA CLASS as required by law;

1)  Withrespect to the First Cause of Action, the final relief on béhaif
of the CALIFORNIA CLASS sought does not relate exclusively to
restitution because through this claim PLAINTIFFS seeks
declaratory relief holding that the DEFENDANT’s policy and

'practices constitute unfair competition, along with declaratory
relief, injunctive relief, and incidental equitable relief as may be
necessary to prevent and remedy the conduct declared to constitute
unfair competition; |

Common questions of law and fact exist as to the members of the

CALIFORNIA CLASS, with respect to the practices and violations of

California law as listed above, and predomiﬁate over any question

affecting only individual CALIFORNIA CLASS Members, and a Class

Action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient

adjudication of the controversy, including consideration of:

1) The interests of the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS in
individually controlling the prosecution or defense of separate
actions in that the substantial expense of individual actions will be

avoided to recover the relatively small amount of economic losses

12
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2)

3

4

sustained by the individual CALIFORNIA CLASS Members when

compared to the substantial expense and burden of individual

prosecution of this litigation;

Class certification will obviate the need for unduly duplicative

litigation that would create the risk of:

A. .- Inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to
individual members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS,' which
would establish incompatible standards of conduct for the
DEFENDANT; and/or, |

B.  Adjudications with respect to individual members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS would as. a practical matter be
dispositive of the interests of the other members not parties
to the adjudication or substantially impair or impede their
ability to protect their interests;

In the context of wage litigatioh because a substantial number of
individual CALIFORNIA CLASS Members will avoid asserting
their legal rights out of fear of retaliation by DEFENDANT, which
may adversely affect an individual’s job with DEFENDANT or
with a subsequent employer, the Class Action is the only means to
assert their claims through a representative; and, |

A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair

and efficient adjudication of this, litiga:,tion because class treatment

will obviate the need for unduly and unnecessary duplicative
litigation that is likely to result in the absence of certification of

this action pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382,

28.  This Court should permit this action to be maintained as a Class Action pursuant
to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382 because:

13
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The questions of law and fact common to the CALIFORNIA CLASS

‘predominate over any question affecting only individual CALIFORNIA

CLASS Members because the DEFENDANT’s employment practices are
uniform and systematicaliy applied with respect to the CALIFORNIA
CLASS; |

A Class Action is superior to any other available method for the fair and
efficient adjudication of the claims of the members of the CALIFORNIA
CLASS because in the context of employment litigation a substantial
number of individual CALIFORNIA CLASS Members will avoid
asserting their rights individually out of fear of retaliation or adverse
impact. on their employment;

The members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS are so numerous that it is
impractical to bring all memberé of the CALIFORNIA CLASS before the
Court; '
PLAINTIFFS, and the other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members, will notbe
able to obtain effective and economic legal redress unless the action is
maintained as .a Class Action;

There is a community of interest in obtaining appropriate legal and
equitable relief for the acts of unfair competition, statutory violations and
other improprieties, and in obtaining adequate comﬁensation for the
damages and injuries which DEFENDANT’s actions have inflicted upon
the CALIFORNIA CLASS;

There is a community of interest in ensuring that the combined assets of
DEFENDANT are sufficient to adequately compensate the members of
the CALIFORNIA CLASS for the injuriés sustaiﬁed;

'DEFENDANT has acted or refused to act on grounds generally applicable

to the CALIFORNIA CLASS, thereby making final class-wide relief

14
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appropriate with respect to the CALIFORNIA CLASS as a whole;

(h)  Themembers of the CALIFORNIA CLASS are readily ascertainable from
the business records of DEFENDANT; and, ' |

(i)  Classtreatment provides manageable judicial treatment calculated to bring
a efficient and rapid conclusion to all litigation of all wage and hour
related claims arising out of the conduct of DEFENDANT as to the
members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS.

29. DEFENDANT maintains records from which the Court can ascertain and identify
by job title each of DEFENDANT’s employees who as have been systematically, intentionally
and uniformly subjected to DEFENDANT’s company policy, practices and procedures as herein
alleged. PLAINTIFFS will seek leave to amend the Complaint to include any additional job

titles of similarly situated employees when they have been identified.

THE CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS

30.  PLAINTIFFS further bring the Second, Third, Fourth, Fifth and Sixth causes of
Action on behalf of a California sub-class, defined as all individuals who are or previously were
employed by DEFENDANT in California and classified as non-exempt employees (the
“CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS”) at any time during the period three (3) years prior to
the filing of the complaint and ending on the date as determined by the Court (the
“CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS PERIOD”) pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382.
. 31. DEFENDANT, as a matter of company policy, practice and procedure, and in
violation of the applicable Labor Code, Industrial Welfare Commission (“IWC”) Wage Order
requirements, and the applicable provisions of California law, intentionally, knowingly, and
wilfully, engaged in a practice whereby DEFENDANT failed to provide off duty meal and rest
| periods to PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS Members and failed to correctly calculate
overtime compensation for the overtime worked by PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, even though DEFENDANT enjoyed the benefit of this

15
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work, required employees to perform this work and permitted or suffered to permit this
overtime work. DEFENDANT has uniformly denied these CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS Members overtime wages at the correct amount to which these employees are entitled
in order to uﬁfairly cheat the competition and unlawfully profit. To the extent equitable tolling
operates to toll claims by the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS against DEFENDANT, the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS PERIOD should be adjusted accordingly.
| 32. DEFENDANT maintains records from which the Court can ascertain and identify

by name and job title, each of DEFENDANT’s employees who have been systematically,
intentionally and uniformly subjected to DEFENDANT’s company policy, practices and
procedures as herein alleged. PLAINTIFFS will seek leave to amend the complaint to include
any additional job titles of similarly situﬁted employees when they have been identified.

33. The CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS is so numerous that joinder of all
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members is impracticable.

34.  Common questions of law and fact exist as to members of the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS, including, but not limited, to the following:

(@)  Whether DEFENDANT unlawfully failed to correctly caléulate and pay
overtime compensation to members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS in violation of the California Labor Code and California
regulations and the applicable California Wage Order;

- (b)  Whether the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS are
entitled to overtime compensation for overtime worked under the overtime
pay requirements of California law;

() Whether DEFENDANT failed to accurately record the.applicable
overtime rates for all overtime worked PLAINTIFFS and the other |
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS; :

(d  Whether DEFENDANT failed to provide PLAINTIFFS and the other
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS with legally

16
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required uninterrupted thirty (30) minute méal breaks and rest peri-o.ds;

(6) Whether DEFENDANT failed to provide PLAINTIFFS and the other

- members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS with accurate

itemized wage statements; _

()  Whether DEFENDANT has engaged in unfair competition by the
above-listed conduct;

(g The propef measure of damages and penalties owed to the members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS; and,

(h) Whether DEFENDANT’s conduct was willful.

35. DEFENDANT, as a matter of company policy, practice and procedure, failed to
accurately calculate overtime compensation for the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS
Members and failed to provide accurate records of the applicable overtime rates for the
overtime worked by these employees. All of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS
Members, including PLAINTIFFS, were non-exempt employees who were paid on an hourly
basis by DEFENDANT according to uniform and systematic company procedures as alleged '
herein above. This business practice was uniformly applied to each and every member of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, and therefore, the propriety of this conduct can be
adjudicated oﬁ a class-wide basis.

36. DEFENDANT violated the rights of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS

under California law by:

(a) Violating Cal. Lab. Code §§ 510, et seq., by failing to accurately pay
PLAINTIFFS and the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS the correct overtime pay for which DEFENDANT is liable
pursuant to Cal. Lab. Code § 1194 & § 1198;

(b)  Violating Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7 and 512, by failing to provide
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS with
all legally required off;duty, uninterrupted thirty (30) minute meal breaks

17
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(d)

(2)

(®

(c)

and the legally required rest breaks;

Violating Cal. Lab. Code § 226, by failing to provide PLAINTIFFS and
the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS with an
accurate itemized statement in writing showing all accurate and applicable
overtime rates in effect during the pay period and the corresponding
amount of time worked at each overtime rate by the employee; and,
Violating Cal. Lab. Code §§ 201, 202 and/or 203, which provides that
when an employee is discharged or quits from employment, the employer
must pay the employee all wages due without abatement, by failing to
tender full payment and/or restitution of wages owed or in the manner
required by California law to the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR
SUB-CLASS who have terminated their employment.

37.  This Class Action meets the statutory prerequisites for the maintenance of a Class
Action as set forth in Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382, in that:

The persons who comprise the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS are
so numerous that the joinder of all CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS
Members is impracticable and the disposition of their claims as a class
will benefit the parties and the Court;

Nearly all factual, legal, statutory, declaratory and injunctive relief issues
that are raised in this Complaint are common to the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS and will apply uniformly to every member of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS;

The claims of the representative PLAINTIFFS are typical of the claims of
each member of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS.
PLAINTIFFES, like all the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR
SUB-CLASS, were non-exempt employees paid on an hourly basis who

were subjected to the DEFENDANT’s practice and policy described

18
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herein. PLAINTIFFS sustained economic injury as a result of
DEFENDANT’s employment practices. PLAINTIFFS and the members
of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS were and are similarly or
identically harmed by the same unlawful, deceptive, unfair and pervasive
pattern of misconduct engaged in by DEFENi)ANT; and,

The representative PLAINTIFFS will fairly and adequately represent and
protect the interest of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, and has
retained counsel who are competent and experienced in Class Action
litigation. There are no material conflicts between the claims of the
representative PLAINTIFFS and the members of the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS that would make class certification inappropriate.

. Counsel for the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS will vigorously

assert the claims of all CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members.

38.  Inaddition to meeting the statutory prerequisites to a Class Action, this action is

properly maintained as a Class Action pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382, in that:

(a)

Without class certification and determination of declaratory, injunctive,
statutory and other legal questions within the class format, prosecution of

separate actions by individual members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR

- SUB-CLASS will create the risk of:

1)  Inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to individual
‘members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS which
would establish incompatible standards of conduct for the parties
opposing the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS; or,

2) | Adjlidication with respect to individual members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS which would as a practical
matter be dispositive of interests of the other members not party to

the adjudication or substantially impair or impede their ability to

19
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(b)

(©)

protect their interests.

The parties opposing the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CL ASS have acted

or refused to act on grounds generally applicable to the CALIFORNIA

LABOR SUB-CLASS, making appropriate class-wide relief with respect

to the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS as a whole in that

DEFENDANT uniformly failed to pay all wages due. Including the

cotrect overtime rate, for all overtime worked by the members of the

CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS as required by law;

Common questions of law and fact predominate as to the members of the

CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, with respect to the practices and

violations of California Law as listed above, and predominate over any

question affecting only individual CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS

Members, and a Class Action is superior to other available methods for

the fair and efficient adjudication of the controversy, including

consideration of:

1) The interests of the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS in individually controlling the prosecution or defense of
separate actions in that the substantial expense of individual
actions will be avoided to recover the relatively small amount of
economic losses sustained by the individual CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS Members when compared to the substantial
expense and burden of individual prosecution of this litigation;

2) Class certification will obviate the need for unduly duplicative
litigation that would create the risk of:

A. Inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to
individual members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS, which would establish incompatible standards of

20
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conduct for the DEFENDANT; and/or,

B.  Adjudications with respect to individual members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS would as a practical
matter be dispositive of the interests of the other members
not parties to the adjudication or substantially impair or
impede their ability to protect their interests;

In the context of wage litigation because a substaﬁtial number of

individual CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members will

avoid asserting their legal rights out of fear of retaliation by

DEFENDANT, which may adversely affect an individual’s job

with DEFENDANT or with a subsequent employer, the Class

Action is the only means to assert their claims through a

representative; and,

A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair

and efficient adjudication of this litigation because class treatment

will obviate the need for unduly and unnecessary duplicative
litigation that is likely to result in the absence of certification of

this action pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382.

39.  This Court should permit this action to be maintained as a Class Action pursuant
to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382 because:

(a) The questions of law and fact common to the CALIFORNIA LABOR

SUB-CLASS predominate over any question affecting only individual

CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members;

(b) A Class Action is superior to any other available method for the fair and

efficient adjudication of the claims of the members of the CALIFORNIA

LABOR SUB-CLASS because in the context of employment litigation a
substantial number of individual CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS

21
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Members will avoid asserting their rights individually out of fear of
retaliation or adverse impact on their employment;

The members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS are so
numerous that it is impracﬁcal to bring all members of the CALIFORNIA

LABOR SUB-CLASS before the Court;

PLAINTIFFES, and the other CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS

Members, will not be able to obtain effective and economic legal redress

unless the action is maintained as a Class Action;

There is 2 community of interest in obtaining appropriate legal and

equitable relief for the acts of unfair competition, statutory violations and

other improprieties, and in obtaining adequate compensation for the

damages and injuries which DEFENDANT’s actions have inflicted upon

the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS;

There is a community of interest in ensuring that the combined assets of
DEFENDANT are sufficient to adequately compensate the members of
the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS for the injuries sustained; '
DEFENDANT has acted or refused to act on grounds generally applicable

to the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, thereby making final class-

wide relief appropriate With respect to the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-

CLASS as a whole; :

The members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS are readily

ascertainable from the business records of DEFENDANT.. The

CALIFORNL‘\ LABOR SUB-CLASS consists of all CALIFORNIA'
CLASS Members classified as non-exempt employees during the

CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS PERIOD; and,

Class treatment provides manageable judicial treatment calculated to bring

a efficient and rapid conclusion to all litigation of all wage and hour

22
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related claims arising out of the conduct of DEFENDANT as to the
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
For Unlawful Business Practices
[Cal. Bus. And Prof. Code §§ 17200, et seq.]
(By. PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA CLASS and Against All Defendants)

00 1 O L .p._w N

40. PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, reallege and
incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior paragraphs of this
Complaint.

41, DEFENDANT is a “person” as that term is defined under Cal. Bus. and Prof.
Code § 17021.

42. California Business & Professions Code §§ 17200, et seq. (the “UCL”) defines
unfair competition as any unlawful, unfair, or fraudulent business act or practice. Section
17203 authorizes injunctive, declaratory, and/or other equitable relief with respect to unfair
competition as follows:

Any person who engages, has engaged, or proposes to engage in unfair

competition may be enjoined in any court of competent jurisdiction. The court

may make such orders or j uc{gments, including the appointment of a receiver, as

may be necessary to prevent the use or emplo¥ment_ by any person of any practice

which constitutés unfair competition, as defined in this chapter, or as may be

necessary to restore to any person in interest any money or property, real or

personal, which may have been acquired by means of such unfair competition.
Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17203.

43, By the conduct aileged herein, DEFENDANT has engaged and continues to
engage in a business practice which violates California law, including but not limited to, the
applicable Wage Order(s), the California Code of Regulations and the California-Labor Code
including Sections 204, 206.5, 226.7, 510, 512, 558, 1194 & 1198, the FLSA, for whick this
Court should issue declaratory and other equitable relief pursuant to Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §

17203 as may be necessary to prevent and remedy the conduct held to constitute unfair
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competition, including restitution of wages wrongfully withheld.

44, By the condudt alleged herein, DEFENDANT’s practices were unlawful and
unfair in that these practices violated public policy, were immoral, unethical, oppressive,
unscrupulous or substantially injurious to employees, and were without valid justiﬁbation or
utility for which this Court should issue equitable and injunctive relief pursuant to Section
17203 of the California Business & Professions Code, including restitution of wages wrongfully
withheld.

| 45. - By the conduct alleged herein, DEFENDANT’s practices were deceptive and
fraudulent in that DEFENDANT’s uniform policy and practice failed to pay PLAINTIFFS, and
other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, wages due for overtime worked, failed to
accurately to record the applicable rate of all overtime worked, and failed to provide the legally
required off duty meal and rest periods due to a systematic business practice that cannot be
justified, pursuaﬁt to the applicable Cal. Lab. Code, and Industrial Welfare Commission
requirements in violation of Cal. Bus. Code §§ 17200, et seq., aﬂd for which this Court should
issue injunctivé and equitable relief, pursuant to Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17203, including
restitution of wages wrongfully withheld. |

46. By the conduct alleged herein, DEFENDANTs practices were also unlawful,
unfair and deceptive in that DEFENDANT’s employment practices caused PLAINTIFFS and
the other members of thé CALIFORNIA CLASS to be underpaid during their employment with
DEFENDANT. '

47. Bythe conduct alleged herein, DEFENDANTs practices were also unfair and
deceptive in that DEFENDANT’s uniform policies, practices and procedures failed to provide
mandatory meal and/or rest breaks to PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA CLASS members.

48.  Therefore, PLAINTIFFS demand on behalf of themselves and on behalf of each
CALIFORNIA CLASS member, one (1) hour of pay for each workday in which an off-duty
meal period was not timely provided for each five (5) hours of work, and/or one (1) hour of pay

for each workday in which a second off-duty meal period was not timely prdvided for each ten
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(10) hours of work.

49. PLAINTIFFS further demand on behalf of themselves and on behalf of each
CALIFORNIA CLASS member, one (1) hour of pay for each workday in which a rest period
was not timely provided as required By law.

50. By and through the unlay_vful and unfair business practices described herein,
DEFENDANT has obtained valuable'property, money and services from PLAINTIFFS and the
other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, including earned wages for all ;)vertime worked,
and has deprived them of valuable rights and benefits guaranteed by law and contract, all to the
detriment of these employees and to the benefit of DEFENDANT so as to allow DEFENDANT
to unfairly conipete, against c_bmpetitors who comply with the law.

51. | All the acts described herein as violations of, among other things, the Industrial
Welfare Commission Wage Orders, the California Code of Regulations, and the California
Labor Code, were unlawful and in. violation of public policy, were immoral, unethical,
oppfessive and unscrupulous, were deceptive, and thereby constitute unlawful, unfair and
deceptive business practices in violation of Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, et seq. |

52, PLAINTIFFES and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS are entitled
to, and do, seek such relief as may be necessary to restore to them the money and property
which DEFENDANT has acquired, or of which PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS have been deprived, by means of the above described unlawful and

unfair business practices, including earned but unpaid wages for all overtime worked.

53. PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS are further
entitled to, and do, seek a declaration that the described business practices are unlawful, unfair
and deceptive, and that injunctive relief should be issued restraining DEFENDANT from
engaging in any unlawfu! and unfair business practices in the future. |

54, PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS have no plain,
speedy and/or adequate remedy at law that will end the unlawful and unfair buéiness practices

of DEFENDANT. Further, the practices herein alleged presently continue to occur unabated.

25
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As a result of the unlawful and unfair business practices described herein, PLAINTIFFS and
the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS have suffered and will continue to suffer
irreparable legal and economic harm unless DEFENDANT is restrained from continuing to

engage in these unlawful and unfair business practices.

- SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

For Failure To Pay Overtime Compensation
[Cal. Lab. Code §§ 204, 510, 1194 and 1198]
(By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS and Against All
_ Defendants)

55, PLAINTIFES, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS, reallege and incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior
paragraphs of this. Complaint, : ' _

56. PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS bring a claim for DEFENDANT’s willful and intentional violations of the California
Labor Code and the Industrial Welfare Commission requirements for DEFENDANTs failure
to accurately calculate the applicéble rates for all ovértime worked by PLAINTIFFS and other
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS and DEFENDANTs failure to properly
compensate the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS for overtime worked,
including, work performed in excess of eight (8) hours in a workday and/or forty (40) hours in
any workweek. B

57. Pursuant to Cal. Lab. Code § 204, other applicable laws and regulations, and
public policy, an employer must timely pay its employees for all hours worked.

58. Cal. Lab. Code § 510 further provides that employees in California shall not be
employed more than eight (8) hours per workday and/or more than forty (40) hours per
workweek unless they receive additional compensation beyond their regular wages in amounts

sp,eciﬁed by law..

26 .
SECOND AMENDED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT




o o0 =1 N th b W e

[N T T ' T % R % T G T N B X R N R e e i
00 =) Oh W B W N = S W 00 = N R W N = O

ase 1:19-cv-00769:LJO-SKO Document 1 Filed 05/30/19 Page 125 of 214

59.  Cal. Lab. Code § 1194 establishes an employee’s right to recover unpaid wages,
including overtime compensation and interest thereon, together with the costs of suit. Cal. Lab.
Code § 1198 further states that the employment of an employee for longer hours than those
fixed by the Industrial Welfare Commission is unlawful. 5

60. DEFENDANT maintained a uniform wage practice of paying PLAINTIFFS and
the other members of the CALEOM LABOR SUB-CLASS without regard to the correct
amount of overtime worked. As set forth herein, DEFENDANT’s uniform policy and practice
was to unlawfully and intentionally deﬁy timely payment of wages due for the overtime worked
by PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, and
DEFENDANT in fact failed to pay these employees the correct applicable overtime wages for
all overtime worked.

- 61. DEFENDANT s uniform pattern of unlawful wage and hour préctices manifested,
without limitation, applicable to the. CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS as a whole, as a
result of implementiné a uniform policy and practice that denied accurate compensation to
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS fcI)r all
overtime worked, including, the work performed in excess of eight _(8) hours in a workday
and/or forty (40) hours in any workweek.

62. In committing these violations of the California Labor Code, DEFENDANT
inaccurately calculated the amount of overtime worked and the applicable overtime rates and
consequently underpaid the actual time worked by PLAINTIFFS and other members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS. DEFENDANT acted in an iilegal attempt to avoid the
payment of all earned wages, and other benefits in violation of the California Labor Code, the
Industrial Welfare Commission requirements and other applicable laws and regulations.

63.  Asadirect result of DEFENDANT s unlawful wage practices as alleged herein,
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS did not
receive full compensation for all overtime worked.

64. Cal. Lab. Code § 515 sets out various categories of employees who are exempt

’ 27
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from the overtime requirements of the law. None of these exemptions are applicable to

PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS. Further,

PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS are not
subject to a valid collective bargaining agreement that would preclude the causes of action
contained herein this Complaint. Rather, the PLAINTIFFS bring this Action on behalf of
themselves and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS based on DEFENDANT s violations
of non-negotiable, non-waiveable rights provided by the State of California.

65.  During the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS PERIOD, PLAINTIFFS and
the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SU_B—CLASS were paid.less for time worked
that they were entitled to, constituting a failure to pay all earned wages.

66. DEFENDANT failed to accurately pay PLAINTIFFS and the other members of |
the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS overtime wages for the time they worked which was
in excess of the maximum hours permissible by law as required by Cal. Lab. Code §§ 510, 1194
& 1198, even though PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR
SUB-CLASS were required tb work, and did in fact work, overtime as to which DEFENDANT
failed to accurately record and pay using the applicable overtime rate as evidenced by
DEFENDANT’s business records and witnessed by employees.

67. By virtue of DEFENDANT's unlawful failure to accurately pay all eamed
compensation to PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS for the true time they worked, PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS have suffered and will continue to suffer an economic
d injury in amounts which are presently unknown to them and which will be ascertained
according to proof at trial.

68. DEFENDANT knew or should have known that PLAINTIFFS and the other
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS are under compensated for their overtime
worked. DEFENDANT systematically elected, either through intentional malfeasance or gross

nonfeasance, to not pay employees for their labor as a matter of uniform company policy,

: 28
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practice and procedure, and DEFENDANT perpetrated this systemafic scheme by refusing to
pay PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA_LABOR SUB-CLASS the
applicable ofertime rate. |

69.  Inperforming the acts and practices herein alleged in violation of California labor
laws, and refusing to compensate the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS for
all time worked and provide them with the fequisite overtime conipensation, DEFENDANT
acted and continues to act intentionally, oppressively, and maliciously toward PLAINTIFFS and
the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS with a conscious of and utter
disregard for their legal rights, or the consequences to them, and with the despicable intent of
depriving thein of their property and legal rights, and otherwise causing them injury in order
to increase company profits at the expense of these employees.

70. PLAINT IFF S and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS therefore request recovery of all unpaid wages, including overtime wages, according
to proof, interest, statutory costs, as well as the assessment of any statutory penalties against
DEFENDANT, in a sum as pfovided by the California Labor Code and/or other applicable
statutes. To the extent overtime compensation is determined to be owed to the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS Members who have terminated their employment, DEFENDANT’S
conduct also violates Labor Code §§ 201 and/or 202, and therefore these individuals are also
be entitled to waiting time penalties under Cal. Lab. Code § 203, which penalties are sought
herein on behalf of these CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members. DEFENDANT’s
conduct as alleged herein was willful, intentional and not in good faith. Further, PLAINTIFFS
and other CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members are entitled to seek and recover
statutory costs.

i
" _
THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

For Failure to Provide Required Meal Periods

29
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[Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7 & 512 ]
(By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS and Against All
' Defendants)
71. PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-

CLASS, reallege and incorpdrate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior

paragraphs of this Complaint. _

72.  During the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD, DEFENDANT failed to provide
all the legally required off-duty meal breaks to PLAINTIFFS and the other CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS Mcnﬂb_crs as required by the applicable Wage Order and Labor Code.
The nature of the work performed by PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS MEMBERS did not prevent these employees from being relieved of all of their
duties for the legally required off-duty meal periods. As a result of their rigorous work
schedules, PLAINT TFFS and other CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members were
often not fully relieved of duty by DEFENDANT for their meal periods. Additionally,
DEFENDANT’s failure to provide PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS Members with legally required meal breaks prior to their fifth (5th) hour of work is
evidenced by DEFENDANT's business records. As a result, PLAINTIFFS and other
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS therefore forfeited meal breaks
without additional compensation and in accordance with DEFENDANTs strict corporate
policy and ﬁractice. | _

73. DEFENDANT further violated California Labor Code §§ 226.7 and the
applicable IWC Wage Order by failing to compensate PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA
LABOR éUB-CLASS Members who were not provided a meal period, in accordance with
the applicablé Wage Order, one additional hour of compensation at each employee’s regular
rate of pay for each workday that a2 meal period was not provided.

74.  As a proximate result of the aforementioned violations, PLAINTIFFS and -
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members have been damaged in an amount according

30
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to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, interest, penalties, expenses and costs of

suit.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

For Failure to Pfovide Required Rest Periods
[Cal. Lab, Code §§ 226.7 & 512 |
(By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS and Against All
Defendants) | |
75. PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS, reallege and incorpofate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior

paragraphs of this Complaint.

76. PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members were
required to work in excess of four (4) hours without being provided ten (10) minute rest
periods. Further, these employees were denied their first rest periods of at least ten (10)
minutes for some shifts worked of at least two (2) to four (4) hours, a first and second rest
period of at least ten (10) minutes for some shifts worked of between six (6) and eight (8)
hours, and a first, second and third rest period of at least ten (10) minutes for some shifts
worked of ten (10) hours or more. PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA LABbR SUB-
CLASS Members were also not provided with one hour wages in lieu thereof. As a result of
their rigorous work schedules, PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS Members were periodically denied their proper rest periods by DEFENDANT and
DEFENDANT’s managers.

77. DEFENDANT further violated California Labor Code §§ 226.7 and the
applicable IWC Wage Order by failing to compensate PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS Members who were not provided a rest period, in accordance with
the applicable Wage Order, one additional hour of compensation at each employee’s regular

rate of pay for each workday that rest period was not provided.
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78.  As a proximate result of the aforementioned violations, PLAINTIFFS and
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members have been damaged in an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, interest, penalties, expenses and costs of

suit.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

IFor Failure to Provide Accurate Itemized Statements
[Cal. Lab. Code § 226]
(By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS and Against All |
Defenflants)

79.  PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS, reallege and incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior
paragraphs of this Complaint, ' ' |

80.  Cal. Labor Code § 226 provides that an employer must furnish employees with
an “accurate itemized” statement in writing showing:

(1) gross wages earned, _ |

(2) total hours worked by the employee, except for any employee whose compensation

is solely based on a salary and who is exempt from payment of overtime under

subdivision (a) of Section 515 or any applicable order of the Industrial Welfare

Commission,

(3) the number of piecerate units earned and any applicable piece rate if the employee

is paid on a piece-rate basis,

4 all_ deductions, provided that all deductions made on written orders of the employee

may be aggregated and shown as one item, |

(5) net wages earned,

(6) the inclusive dates of the period for which the employee is paid,

(7) the name of the employee and his or her social security number, except that by

32
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January 1, 2008, only the last four digits of his or her social security number or an

employee identification number other than a social security number may be shown on

the itemized statement,

(8) the name and address of the legal entity that is the employer, and

(9) all applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay peﬁod and the corresponding

number of hours worked at each hourly rate by the employee. |

81.  When PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members worked unpaid
overtime and/or missed meal and rest breaks, DEFENDANT also failed to provide
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS with completé and
accurate wage statements which failed to show, among other things, the correct overtime rate
for overtime worked, including, work performed in excess of eight (8) hours in a workday
and/or forty (40) hours in any workweek, and the correct penalty payments or missed meal and
rest periods. Cal. Lab. Code § 226 provides that every employer shall furnish each of his or her
employees with an accurate itemized wage statement in writing showing, amorig other things,
|| gross wages earned and all applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay period and the
corresponding amount of time worked at each hourly rate. Aside, from the violations listed
above in this paragraph, DEFENDANT failed to issue to PLAINTIFFS an itemized wage
statement that lists all the requirements under California Labor Code 226 e seq. Asa result,
from time to time DEFENDANT provided PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS with wage statements which violated Cal. Lab. Code § 226.

82. DEFENDANT knowingly and intentionally failed to comply with Cal. Labor
Code § 226, causing injury and damages to the PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS. These damages include, but are not limited to, costs
expended calculating the correct rates for the overtime worked and the amount of employment
taxes which were not properly paid to state and federal tax authorities. These damages are
difficult fo estimate. Therefore, PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS may elect to recover liquidated damages of fifty dollars ($50.00).for the
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initial pay period in which the violation occurred, and one hundred dollars ($100.00) for each
violation in a subsequent pay period pursuant to Cal. Lab. Code § 226, in an amount according
to proof at the time of trial (but in no event more than four thousand dollars ($4,000.00) for
PLAINTIFFS and each respective member of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS

herein).

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
. For Failure to Pajr Wages When Due
~ [ Cal. Lab. Code §§ 201, 202, 203])
(By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS and Against All
Defendants)

83. PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS, reallege and incérporate by reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior
paragraphs of this Complaint.

84,  Cal. Lab. Code § 200 provides that:

As used in this article:

ga) "Wages" includes all amounts for labor performed by employees of every
escription, whether the amount is fixed or ascertained by the standard of time,

task, piece, Commission basis, or other method of calculation. :

(b) "Labor" includes labor, work, or service whether rendered or performed under

contract, subcontract, partnership, station plan, or other agreement if the labor to

be paid for is performed personally by the person demanding payment.

85. Cal. Lab. Code § 201 provides, in relevant part, that “If an employer discharges
an employee, the wages eamed and_ unpaid at the time of discharge are due and payable
immediately.”

86. Cal. Lab. Code § 202 provides, in relevant part, that:

If an employee not having a written contract for a definite period quits his or her
employment, his or her wages shall become due and payable not later than 72
hours thereafter, unless the emgloyee has given 72 hours terevious notice of his
or her intention to quit, in which case the employee is entitled to his or her wages
at the time of quitting. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, an employee
who quits without providing a 72-hour notice shall be entitled to receive payment
by mail if he or she so requests and designates a mailing address. The date of the
mailing shall constitute the date of payment for purposes of the requirement to
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provide payment within 72 hours of the notice of quitting.

87. There was no definite term in PLAINTIFFS’ or any CALIFORNIA LABOR
SUB-CLASS Members’ employment contract. '

88, Cal. Lab. Code § 203 provides: |

If an employer willfully fails to pay, without abatement or reduction, in

accordance with Sections 201, 201.5, 202, and 205.5, any wages of an employee

who is discharged or who quits, the wages of the employee shall continue as a

penalty from the due date thereof at the same rate until paid or until an action

therefor is commenced; but the wages shall not continue for more than 30 days.

89. The employment of PLAINTIFFS and many CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS Members terminated and DEFENDANT has not tendered payment of overtime wages,
to these employees who actually worked overtime, as required by law.

90.  Therefore, as provided by Cal Lab. Code § 203, on behalf of themselves and the

members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS whose employment has, PLAINTIFFS

| demand up to thirty days of pay as penalty for not paying all wages due at time of termination
| forallemployees who terminated employment during the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS

PERIOD, and demand an accounting and payment of all wages due, plus interest and statutory
costs as allowed by law.
SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
For Violation of the Private Attorneys General Act
[Cal. Lab. Code §§ 2698, et seq.]

“ | (By Plaintiffs and Against All Defendants)
91

Plaintiffs incorporate by reference the allegations set forth iﬁ paragraphs 1-90,
supra, as though fully set forth at this point.

92. PAGA is a mechanism by which the State of California itself can enforce state
labor laws through the employee suing under the PAGA who do so as the proxy or agent of the
state's labor law enforcement agencies. An action to recover civil penalties under PAGA is
fundamentally a law enforcement action designed to protect the public and not to benefit private
parties. The purpose of the PAGA is not to recover damages; or restitution, but to create a
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means of "deputizing" citizens as private attorneys general to enforce the Labor Code. In
enacting PAGA, the California Legislature specified that "it was ... in the public interest to
allow aggrieved employees, acting as private attorneys general to recover civil penalties for
Labor Code violations ..." Stats. 2003, ch. 906, § 1. Accordingly, PAGA claims cannot be
subject to arbitration,

93.  Plaintiffs, and such persons that may be added from time to time who satisfy the
requirements and exhaust the administrative procedures under the Private Attorney General Act,
bring this Representative Action on behalf of the State of California with respect to themselves
and all individuals who are or previously were employed by Defendant L.’Oreal USA S/D, Inc.
who worked in California and who were classified as non-exempt during the period March 6,
2017 to the earlier of the date of preliminary approval of this settlement or April 20, 2019 (the
“PAGA Period”) (the "AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEES").

94.  OnJanuary29,2018, Plaintiffs gave written notice by electronic mail to the Labor
and Workforce Development Agency (the "Agency") and by certified mail to the employer of
the specific provisions of this code alleged to have been violated as required by Labor Code §
2699.3. See Exhibit #1, attached hereto and incorporated by this reference herein. The
statutory waiting period for PLAINTIFFS to add these allegations to the Complaint has expired.
As a result, pursuant to Section 2699.3, PLAINTIFFS may now commence a representative
ctvil action under PAGA pursuant to Section 2699 as the proxy of the State of California with
respect to all AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEES as herein defined.

95.  The policies, acts and practices heretofore described were and are an unlawful
business act or practice because Defendant (a) failed to provide PLAINTIFFS and the other
AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEES for all of the hours they worked, including overtime, (b} failed
to properly record and provide legally required meal and rest periods, (c) failed to provide
accurate itemized wage statements, and (d) failed to pay wages when due, all in violation of the
applicable Labor Code sections listed in Labor Code Sections §§ 201, 202, 203, 204, 226(a),
226.7, 510, 512, 558, 1194, 1198, and the applicable Industrial Wage Order(s), and thereby
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gives rise to statutory penalties as a result of such conduct. PLAINTIFFS hereby seek recovery
“ of civil penalties as prescribed by the Labor Code Private Attomey General Act of 2004 as the
representatives of the State of California for the illegal conduct perpetrated on PLAINTIFES
and the other AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEES.

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 201, ef seq. ("FLSA'")
(By PLAINTIFFS and the COLLECTIVE CLASS against DEFENDANT)
.96, PLAINTIFEFS, and the other members; of the COLLECTIVE CLASS, reallege
and incorporate by this reference, as though fully sét forth herein, paragraphs 1 _through 95

of this Complaint.

97.. DEFENDANT is engaged in communication, business, and transmission
between the states, and is, therefore, engaged in cdmmerce within the meaning of 29 U.S.C.
§ 203(b). |

08. PLAINTIFFS further bring the Eighth Cause of Action on behalf of a
COLLECTIVE CLASS in accordance with 29 U.S.C. § 216 defined as all persons who are or
were previously employed by DEFENDANT in California as non-exempt empioyees (the
“COLLECTIVE CLASS"”) at any time during the period three (3) years prior to the filing of the
Complaint and ending on the date as determined by the Court (the "COLLECTIVE CLASS
PERIOD").

99. 29U.8.C. § 255 provides that a three-year statute of limitations applies to
willful violations of the FLSA.

100. 29 U.S.C. § 207(a)(1) provides in pertinent part:

Except as otherwise provided in this section, no empl(ziyer shall employ
any of his employees who in any workweek is engaged in commerce or
in the production of goods for commerce, or is employed in an
enterprise engaged in commerce or in the production of goods for
commerce, for a workweek longer than forty hours untess such
employee receives compensation for his employment in excess of the
hours above specified at a rate not less than one and one-half times the
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regular rate at which he is efnployed.

101. Pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 201, et seq., the
PLAINTIFES and the other members of the COLLECTIVE CLASS are entitled to
overtime compensation for all overtime hours acmally worked, at a rate not less than
one and one-half times their regular rate of pay for all.hours worked in excess of forty
(40) hours in any workweek. DEFENDANTS” failure to correctly calculate overtime
wages as required by federal law was willful and not in good faith. _

102. During the COLLECTIVE CLASS PERIOD, PLAINTIFFS, and
other members of the COLLECTIVE CLASS, worked more than forty (40) hours in
a workweek. |

103, At all relevant times, DEFENDANT required PLAINTIFFS and
COLLECTIVE CLASS Members to work off the clt_)ck without paying them for all the
time they were under DEFENDANT’s control. PLAINTIFFS and COLLECTIVE
CLASS Members would clock out of DEFENDANT’s timekeeping system, in order to
perform additional work for DEFENDANT as réquired to meet DEFENDANT’S job
requirements. Specifically, DEFENDANT engaged in the uniform and systematic
practice of requiring PLAINTIFFS and COLLECTIVE CLASS Members to perform
work off thé clock after clocking out in that DEFENDANT, as a condition of
employment, required these employees fo wait for and submit to loss prevention
inspections after clocking out for meal breaks and at the end of each scheduled shift for
which DEFENDANT did not provide 6ompensation for time spent awaiting and
performing the loss prevention inspections off the clock. As aresult, PLAINTIFFS and
other COLLECTIVE CLASS Members forfeited overtime wages by working without
their time being correctly recorded and without compensation at the applicable overtime
rates. DEFENDANT"s uniform policy and practice not to pay PLAINTIFFS and other
COLLECTIVE CLASS Members for all overtime worked, is evidenced by
DEFENDANT s business records. Thus, DEFENDANT failed to pay the PLAINTIFFS,
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and other members of the COLLECTIVE CLASS, overtime compensation for fhe hours
they have worked in excess of the maximum hours permissible by law as required by §
207 of the FLSA, even though the PLAi'NTIFFS, and the other members of the
COLLECTIVE CLASS, were regularly required to work, and did in fact work, overtime
hours.

104. For purposes of the Fair Labor Standards Act, the employment
practices of DEFENDANT were and are uniform throughout California in all
respects material to the claims asserted in this Complaint.

105. As aresult of DEFENDANTs failure to pay the correct overtime
compensation for overtime hours worked, as required by the FLSA, PLAINTIFFS
and the members of the COLLECTIVE CLASS were damaged in an amount to be

|| proved at trial.

106. Theréfore, PLAINTIFFS demand that they and the members of the
COLLECTIVE CLASS be paid the correct overtime compensation as required by the
FLSA for every hour of overtime worked plus interest and statutory costs as provided
by law.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS pray for judgment against each Defendant, jointly and

severally, as follows:
L. On behalf of the CALIFORNIA CLASS:
A)  Thatthe Court certify the First Cause of Action asserted by the CALIFORNIA
CLASS as a class action pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382;
B)  Anorder tempbrarily, preliminarily and permanently enjoining and restraining
DEFENDANT from engaging in similar unlawful conduct as set forth herein;
C)  An order requiring DEFENDANT to pay all wages and all sums unlawfuly
withheld from compensation due to PLAINTIFFS and the other members of

. 39
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D)

the CALIFORNIA CLASS; and,
Restitutionary disgorgement of DEFENDANTs ill-gotten gains into a fluid
fund for restitution of the sums incidental to DEFENDANT’s violations due to
PLAINTIFES and to the other mermbers of the CALIFORNIA CLASS.

2. On behalf of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS:

A)

B)

0

D)

E)

That the Court certify the Second, Third, Fourth, Fifth and Sixth Causes of
Action asserted by the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS as a class action
pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382;

Compensatory damages, according to proof at trial, including cdinpensatory
damages for overtime coﬁpemaﬁoﬁ due PLAINTIFFS and the other members
of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, during the applicable
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS PERIOD plus interest thereon at the
statutory rate; | . '

Meal and rest period compensation pursuant to Cal Lab. Code §§ 226.7, 512
and the applicable IWC Wage Order

The greater of all actual damages or fifty dollars ($50) for the initial pay
period in which a violation occurs and one hundred dollars ($100) per each
member of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS for each violation in a
subsequent pay period, not exceeding an aggregate penalty of four thousand
dollars ($4,000), and an award of costs fpr violation of Cal. Lab. Code § 226;

and,

- The wages of all terminated employees from the CALIFORNIA LABOR

SUB-CLASS as a penalty from the due date thereof at the same rate untii paid
or until an action therefore is commenced, in accordance with Cal. Lab. Code
§ 203.

3. On, behalf of the COLLECTIVE CLASS:

A)

That the Court certify the Eighth Cause of Action asserted by the

40
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1 COLLECTIVE CLASS as an opt-ili Class Action under 29 U.S.C. § 216(b);
2 ‘B)  Issue a declaratory finding that DEFENDANT’s acts, policies, practices and
3 procedures complained of herein violated provisions of the Fair Labor
4 Standards Act; and
5 C)  That the PLAINTIFFS and the COLLECTIVE CLASS members recover
6 compensatory damages and an equal amount of liduidated damages as
7 provided under the law and in 29 U.S.C. § 216(b).
81 4. On behalf of the State of California and with respect to all AGGRIEVED
9 EMPLOYEES: ' :
10 (A)  Recovery of civil penalties as prescribed by the Labor Code Private Attorneys
11 General Act of 2004. |
124 5 On all claims: :
13 A)  Anaward of interest, including prejudgment interest at the legal rate;
14 B)  Such other and further relief as the Court deems just and equitable; and,
15 O An award of penalties, attomeys’ fees and cost of suit, as aliowable under the law,
16 including, but not limited to, pursuant to Labor Code §21 8.5, §226, and/or §1194.
17 |
18 | Dated: April 2019 BLUMENTHAL NORDREHAUG BHOWMIK
9 DE BLOUW LLP
20
21 | 2y Norman Blumenthal
- Attorneys for Plaintiffs
24
25
26
27
e | 41
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1
- DEMAND FOR A JURY TRIAL

PLAINTIFFS demand a jury trial on issues triable to a jury.

Dated: April_ ,2019 BLUMENTHAL NORDREHAUG BHOWMIK
DE BLOUW LLP -

By:

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

Norman Blumenthal

10 Attorneys for Plaintiffs

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
2
25
26
27

28 _ 9
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2255 CALLE CLARA
LA JOLLA, CALIFORNIA 92037

Woeb Site: www.bamlawca.com )
San Diego | San Francisco | Sacramento | Los Angeles | Riverside | Chicago

Phone: (858) 551-1223
Fax: (858) 551-1232

‘WRITERS E-MAIL: ‘WRITERS EXT:
Nick@bamlawea.com . 1004
January 29, 2018
CAl514

VIA ONLINE FILING TO LWDA AND CERTIFIED MAIL TO DEFENDANT

Labor and Workforce Development Agency L’Oreal USA S/D, Inc.

Online Filing Certified Mail # 70171450000202536847
CSC Lawyers Incorporating Service
2710 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 150N
Sacramento, CA 95833

Re:  Notice Of Violations Of California Labor Code Sections §§ 201, 202,
203, 204, 226(a), 226.7, 510, 512,558, 1194, 1198, Violation of Applicable
Industrial Welfare Commission Wage Order(s), and Pursuant To California
Labor Code Section 2699.5.

Dear Sir/Madam:

Our offices represent Plaintiffs Angela Conti and Justine Mora (“Plaintiffs™), and
other aggrieved employees in a lawsuit against L’Oreal USA S/D, Inc. (*Defendant”).
Plaintiff Conti was employed by Defendant in California from June of 2010 to December of
2017 as a nonexempt employee entitled to the legally required meal and rest breaks and
payment for all time worked under Defendant’s control, including overtime worked.
Plaintiff Mora was employed by Defendant in California from July of 2015 to November of
2017 as a nonexempt employee entitled to the legally required meal and rest breaks and
payment for all time worked under Defendant’s control, including overtime worked.
Defendant, however, unlawfully failed to record and pay Plaintiffs and other aggrieved
employees for all of their time worked, including overtime wages, and for all of their missed
meal and rest breaks. As a consequence of the aforementioned violations, Plaintiffs further
contend that Defendant failed to provide accurate wage statements to them, and other
aggrieved employees, in violation of California Labor Code section 226(a). Additionally,
Plaintiffs contend that Defendant failed to comply with Industrial Wage Order 7(A)(3) in
that Defendant failed to keep time records showing when Plaintiffs began and ended each
shift and meal period. Said conduct, in addition to the foregoing, violates Labor Code §§ .
201, 202, 203, 204, 226(a), 226.7, 510, 512, 558, 1194, 1198, Violation of the applicable
Industrial Welfare Commission Wage Order(s), and is therefore actionable under California
Labor Code section 2699.3,

A true and correct copy of the Complaint filed by Plaintiffs against Defendant, which
(i) identifies the alleged violations, (ii) details the facts and theories which support the
alleged violations, (iii) details the specific work performed by Plaintiffs, (iii) sets forth the
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people/entities, dates, classifications, violations, events, and actions which are at issue to the
extent known to Plaintiffs, and (iv) sets forth the illegal practices used by Defendant, is
attached hereto. This information provides notice to the Labor and Workforce Development
Agency of the facts and theories supporting the alleged violations for the agency’s reference,
Plaintiffs therefore incorporate the allegations of the attached Complaint into this letter as
if fully set forth herein. If the agency needs any further information, please do not hesitate
to ask.

This notice is provided to enable Plaintiffs to proceed with the Complaint against
Defendant as authorized by California Labor Code section 2695, et seq. The filing fee of
$75 is being mailed to the Department of Industrial Restations Accounting unit with an
identification of the Plaintiffs, the Defendant and the notice. The pending lawsuit consists
of other aggrieved employees. As counsel, our intention is to vigorously prosecute the
claims as alleged in the Complaint, and to procure civil penalties as provided by the Private
Attorney General Statue of 2004 on behalf of Plaintiffs and all aggrieved California
employees.

Your earliest response to this notice is appreciated. If you have any questions of
concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me at the above number and address.

Respectfully,
/s! Nicholas J. De Blouw

Nicholas J. De Blouw, Esq.

ZAD\Dropbox (NBB)\Pending Litigatiom\L'Oreal- Cont-paga-01,wpd
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BLUMENTHAL NORDREHAUG BHOWMIK DE BLOUW LLP
Norman B. Blumenthal (State Bar #068687)

Kyle R. Nordrehaug (State Bar #205975)
) 2Jgga(r:ajlilt B(ljllowmik (State Bar #248066) E-FILED
alle Clara 2019 2:52 P
La Jolla, CA 92037 Su er:f(gourt of C5a|ifoM i
Telephone: (858)551-1223 P rmia
Facsimile: (858) 551-1232 County of Fresno
Website: www.bamlawca.com By: A. Ramos, Deputy
Attorneys for Plaintiffs
SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF FRESNO
ANGELA CONTI and JUSTINE MORA, Case No.18CECG00816
individuals, on behalf of themselves, and on
behalf of all persons similarly situated, SECOND AMENDED CLASS ACTION
COMPLAINT FOR:
Plaintiffs,

1. UNFAIR COMPETITION IN
Vs, VIOLATION OF CAL. BUS. & PROF.

CODE §§ 17200, et seq.,
L’OREAL USA S/D, INC., a Corporation; 2. FAILURE TO PAY OVERTIME WAGES
and Does 1 through 50, Inclusive, IN VIOLATION OF CAL. LAB. CODE §§
510, et seq.;
Defendants. 3. FAILURE TO PROVIDE REQUIRED

MEAL PERIODS IN VIOLATION OF CAL.
LAB. CODE §§ 226.7 & 512 AND THE
APPLICABLE IWC WAGE ORDER

4. FAILURE TO PROVIDE REQUIRED
REST PERIODS IN VIOLATION OF CAL.
LAB. CODE §§ 226.7 & 512 AND THE
APPLICABLE IWC WAGE ORDER,;

5. FAILURE TO PROVIDE ACCURATE
ITEMIZED STATEMENTS IN
VIOLATION OF CAL. LAB. CODE § 226;
6. FAILURE TO PROVIDE WAGES
WHEN DUE IN VIOLATION OF CAL.
LAB. CODE §§ 201, 202 AND 203,

7. VIOLATION OF THE PRIVATE
ATTORNEYS GENERAL ACT [LABOR
CODE §§ 2698, et seq.]; and,

8. FAILURE TO PAY OVERTIME
COMPENSATION IN VIOLATION OF 29
U.S.C. §§ 201, et seq.

DEMAND FOR A JURY TRIAL

1
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Plaintiffs Angela Conti and Justine Mora (“PLAINTIFFS”), individuals, on behalf of
themselves and all other similarly situated current and former employees, allege on information
and belief, except for their own acts and knowledge which are based on personal knowledge,

the following:

THE PARTIES
1. Defendant L’Oreal USA S/D, Inc. (“DEFENDANT”) is a Corporation and at all

relevant times mentioned herein conducted and continues to conduct substantial and regular
business throughout California.

2. DEFENDANT was founded in 1999. DEFENDANTs line of business includes
the retail sale of specialized lines of merchandise.

3. Plaintiff Conti was employed by DEFENDANT in California as a non-exempt
employee entitled to overtime pay and meal and rest periods from June of 2010 to December
8, 2017.

4. Plaintiff Mora was employed by DEFENDANT in California as a non-exempt
employee entitled to overtime pay and meal and rest periods from July of 2015 to November
of 2017.

5. PLAINTIFFS bring this Class Action on behalf of themselves and a California
class, defined as all individuals who are or previously were employed by Defendant L’Oreal
USA S/D, Inc. who worked in California, were classified as non-exempt, and who separated
from their employment between March 6, 2014 and February 20, 2018 (the “CALIFORNIA
CLASS PERIOD”).

6. PLAINTIFFS bring this Class Action on behalf of themselves and a
CALIFORNIA CLASS in order to fully compensate the CALIFORNIA CLASS for their losses
incurred during the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD caused by DEFENDANT’s uniform policy
and practice which failed to lawfully compensate these employees for all their overtime worked.
DEFENDANT’s uniform policy and practice alleged herein is an unlawful, unfair and deceptive

2
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business practice whereby DEFENDANT retained and continues to retain wages due
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS. PLAINTIFFS and the
other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS seek an injunction enjoining such conduct by
DEFENDANT in the future, relief for the named PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS who have been economically injured by DEFENDANT’s past and
current unlawful conduct, and all other appropriate legal and equitable relief.

7. The true names and capacities, whether individual, corporate, subsidiary,
partnership, associate or otherwise of defendants DOES 1 through 50, inclusive, are presently
unknown to PLAINTIFFS who therefore sues these Defendants by such fictitious names
pursuant to Cal. Civ. Proc. Code § 474. PLAINTIFFS will seek leave to amend this Complaint
to allege the true names and capacities of Does 1 through 50, inclusive, when they are
ascertained. PLAINTIFFS are informed and believe, and based upon that information and belief
allege, that the Defendants named in this Complaint, including DOES 1 through 50, inclusive,
are responsible in some manner for one or more of the events and happenings that proximately
caused the injuries and damages hereinafter alleged.

8. The agents, servants and/or employees of the Defendants and each of them acting
on behalf of the Defendants acted within the course and scope of his, her or its authority as the
agent, servant and/or employee of the Defendants, and personally participated in the conduct
alleged herein on behalf of the Defendants with respect to the conduct alleged herein.
Consequently, the acts of each Defendant are legally attributable to the other Defendants and
all Defendants are jointly and severally liable to PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS, for the loss sustained as a proximate result of the conduct of the

Defendants’ agents, servants and/or employees.

THE CONDUCT
9. Pursuant to the Industrial Welfare Commission Wage Orders, DEFENDANT is
required to pay PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS Members for all time worked,

3
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meaning the time during which an employee is subject to the control of an employer, including
all the time the employee is suffered or permitted to work. DEFENDANT required
PLAINTIFES and CALIFORNIA CLASS Members to work off the clock without paying them
for all the time they were under DEFENDANT’s control. PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA
CLASS Members would clock out of DEFENDANT’s timekeeping system, in order to perform
additional work for DEFENDANT as required to meet DEFENDANT’s job requirements.
Specifically, During the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD, DEFENDANT engaged in the
uniform and systematic practice of requiring PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS
Members to perform work off the clock after clocking out in that DEFENDANT, as a condition
of employment, required these employees to wait for and submit to loss prevention inspections
after clocking out for meal breaks and at the end of each scheduled shift for which
DEFENDANT did not provide compensation for time spent awaiting and performing the loss
prevention inspections off the clock. As a result, PLAINTIFES and other CALIFORNIA
CLASS Members forfeited overtime wages by working without their time being correctly
recorded and without compensation at the applicable overtime rates. DEFENDANT’s uniform
policy and practice not to pay PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members for all
overtime worked, is evidenced by DEFENDANT’s business records.

10.  In violation of the applicable sections of the California Labor Code and the
requirements of the Industrial Welfare Commission ("ITWC") Wage Order, DEFENDANT as
a matter of company policy, practice and procedure, intentionally and knowingly failed to
compensate PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS at the correct
rate of pay for all overtime worked. This uniform policy and practice of DEFENDANT is
intended to purposefully avoid the payment of the correct overtime compensation as required
by California law which allowed DEFENDANT to illegally profit and gain an unfair advantage
over competitors who complied with the law. To the extent equitable tolling operates to toll
claims by the CALIFORNIA CLASS against DEFENDANT, the CALIFORNIA CLASS
PERIOD should be adjusted accordingly.

4
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11. As a result of their rigorous work schedules, PLAINTIFFS and other
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were also from time to time unable to take off duty meal
breaks and were not fully relieved of duty for meal periods. PLAINTIFFS and other
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were required to perform work as ordered by DEFENDANT
for more than five (5) hours during a shift without receiving an off-duty meal break. Further,
DEFENDANT failed to provide PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS Members with a
second off-duty meal period each workday in which these employees were required by
DEFENDANT to work ten (10) hours of work. PLAINTIFFS and the other CALIFORNIA
CLASS Members therefore forfeited meal breaks without additional compensation and in
accordance with DEFENDANT’s strict corporate policy and practice.

12.  During the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD, from time to time, PLAINTIFFS
and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were also required to work in excess of four (4)
hours without being provided ten (10) minute rest periods. Further, these employees were
denied their first rest periods of at least ten (10) minutes for some shifts worked of at least two
(2) to four (4) hours, a first and second rest period of at least ten (10) minutes for some shifts
worked of between six (6) and eight (8) hours, and a first, second and third rest period of at least
ten (10) minutes for some shifts worked of ten (10) hours or more. PLAINTIFFS and other
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members were also not provided with one hour wages in lieu thereof.
As a result of their rigorous work schedules, PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS
Members were periodically denied their proper rest periods by DEFENDANT and
DEFENDANT’s managers.

13. When PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members worked off the
clock overtime and/or missed meal and rest breaks, DEFENDANT also failed to provide
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS with complete and
accurate wage statements which failed to show, among other things, the correct overtime rate
for overtime worked, including, work performed in excess of eight (8) hours in a workday

and/or forty (40) hours in any workweek, and the correct penalty payments or missed meal and

5
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rest periods. Cal. Lab. Code § 226 provides that every employer shall furnish each of his or her
employees with an accurate itemized wage statement in writing showing, among other things,
gross wages earned and all applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay period and the
corresponding amount of time worked at each hourly rate. Aside, from the violations listed
above in this paragraph, DEFENDANT failed to issue to PLAINTIFFS an itemized wage
statement that lists all the requirements under California Labor Code 226 et seq. As a result,
from time to time DEFENDANT provided PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS with wage statements which violated Cal. Lab. Code § 226.

14. By reason of this uniform conduct applicable to PLAINTIFFS and all
CALIFORNIA CLASS Members, DEFENDANT committed acts of unfair competition in
violation of the California Unfair Competition Law, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, et seq.
(the “UCL”), by engaging in a company-wide policy and procedure which failed to accurately
calculate and record the correct overtime rate for the overtime worked by PLAINTIFFS and
other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members. The proper calculation of these employees’ overtime
hour rates is the DEFENDANT s burden. As a result of DEFENDANTs intentional disregard
of the obligation to meet this burden, DEFENDANT failed to properly calculate and/or pay all
required overtime compensation for work performed by the members of the CALIFORNIA
CLASS and violated the California Labor Code and regulations promulgated thereunder as
herein alleged.

15.  Specifically as to PLAINTIFFS, they were from time to time unable to take off
duty meal and rest breaks and were not fully relieved of duty for their meal and rest periods and
were not paid all overtime wages due to them as aresult of DEFENDANT s policy that required
them to work off the clock. PLAINTIFFS were required to perform work as ordered by
DEFENDANT for more than five (5) hours during a shift without receiving an off-duty meal
break. Further, DEFENDANT failed to provide PLAINTIFFS with a second off-duty meal
period each workday in which they were required by DEFENDANT to work ten (10) hours of
work. PLAINTIFFS therefore forfeited meal and rest breaks without additional compensation

6
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and in accordance with DEFENDANT’s strict corporate policy and practice. DEFENDANT
also provided PLAINTIFFS with a pay stub that failed to accurately display PLAINTIFFS’
correct rates of overtime pay and payments for missed meal and rest periods for certain pay
periods in violation of Cal. Lab. Code § 226(a). To date, DEFENDANT has not fully paid
PLAINTIFFS the overtime compensation still owed to them or any penalty wages owed to them
under Cal. Lab. Code § 203. The amount in controversy for PLAINTIFFS individually does

not exceed the sum or value of $75,000.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

16.  This Court has jurisdiction over this Action pursuant to California Code of Civil
Procedure, Section 410.10 and California Business & Professions Code, Section 17203, This
action is brought as a Class Action on behalf of PLAINTIFFS and similarly situated employees
of DEFENDANT pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382,

17.  Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure,
Sections 395 and 395.5, because DEFENDANT (i) currently maintains and at all relevant times
maintained offices and facilities in this County and/or conducts substantial business in this
County, and (ii) committed the wrongful conduct herein alleged in this County against members

of the CALIFORNIA CLASS and CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS.

THE CALIFORNIA CLASS
18.  PLAINTIFFS bring the First Cause of Action for Unfair, Unlawful and Deceptive
Business Practices pursuant to Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, et seq. (the "UCL") as a Class

Action, pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382, on behalf of a California class, defined as
all individuals who are or previously were employed by Defendant L.’ Oreal USA §/D, Inc. who
worked in California, were classified as non-exempt, and who separated from their employment

between March 6, 2014 and February 20, 2018 (the “CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD”).

19. To the extent equitable tolling operates to toll claims by the CALIFORNIA

7
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CLASS against DEFENDANT, the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD should be adjusted
accordlil& v The California Legislature has commanded that “all wages... ...earned by any
person in any employment are due and payable twice during each calendar month, on days
designated in advance by the employer as the regular paydays”, and further that “[a]ny work
in excess of eight hours in one workday and any work in excess of 40 hours in any one
workweek . . . shall be compensated at the rate of no less than one and one-half times the
regular rate of pay for an employee.” (Lab. Code § 204 and § 510(a).) The Industrial Welfare
Commission (IWC), however, is statutorily authorized to “establish exemptions from the
requirement that an overtime rate of compensation be paid... ...for executive, administrative, and
professional employees, provided [inter alia] that the employee is primarily engaged in duties
that meet the test of the exemption, [and] customarily and regularly exercises discretion and
independent judgment in performing those duties...” (Lab. Code § 510(a).) Neither the
PLAINTIFFS nor the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS and/or the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS qualify for exemption from the above requirements.

21. DEFENDANT, as a matter of company policy, practice and procedure, and in
violation of the applicable Labor Code, Industrial Welfare Commission (“TWC”) Wage Order
requirements, and the applicable provisions of California law, intentionally, knowingly, and
wilfully, engaged in a practice whereby DEFENDANT systematically failed to correctly
calculate and record overtime compensation for overtime worked by PLAINTIFFS and the
other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, even though DEFENDANT enjoyed the benefit
of this work, required employees to perform this work and permitted or suffered to permit this
overtime work.

22. DEFENDANT has the legal burden to establish that each and every
CALIFORNIA CLASS Member is paid the applicable rate for all overtime worked.
DEFENDANT, however, as a matter of uniform and systematic policy and procedure failed to
have in place during the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD and still fails to have in place a policy
or practice to ensure that each and every CALIFORNIA CLASS Member is paid the applicable

8
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overtime rate for all overtime worked, so as to satisfy their burden. This common business
practice applicable to each and every CALIFORNIA CLASS Member can be adjudicated on
a class-wide basis as unlawful, unfair, and/or deceptive under Cal. Business & Professions Code
§§ 17200, ef seq. (the “UCL”) as causation, damages, and reliance are not elements of this
claim.

23.  Atnotime during the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD was the compensation for
any member of the CALIFORNIA CLASS properly recalculated so as to compensate the
employee for all overtime worked at the applicable rate, as required by California Labor Code
§§ 204 and 510, et seq. At no time during the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD was the
overtime compensation for any member of the CALIFORNIA CLASS properly recalculated
so as to include all earnings in the overtime compensation calculation as required by California
Labor Code §§ 510, et seq.

24. The CALIFORNIA CLASS, is so numerous that joinder of all CALIFORNIA
CLASS Members is impracticable.

25. DEFENDANT uniformly violated the rights of the CALIFORNIA CLASS under
California law by:

(@  Violating the California Unfair Competition Laws, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code
§§ 17200, et seq., by unlawfully, unfairly and/or deceptively having in
place company policies, practices and procedures that failed to pay all
wages due the CALIFORNIA CLASS for all overtime worked, and failed
to accurately record the applicable rates of all overtime worked by the
CALIFORNIA CLASS;

(b) Committing an act of unfair competition in violation of the California
Unfair Competition Laws, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, ef seq., by
unlawfully, unfairly, and/or deceptively having in place a company policy,
practice and procedure that failed to correctly calculate overtime
compensation due to PLAINTIFFS and the members of the

9
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(c)

(d

CALIFORNIA CLASS; and,

Committing an act of unfair competition in violation of the California
Unfair Competition Laws, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, et seq., by
failing to provide mandatory meal and/or rest breaks to PLAINTIFFS and
the CALIFORNIA CLASS members.

Committing an act of unfair competition in violation of the California
Unfair Competition Laws, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, ef seq., by
violating the Fair Labor Standards Act (“FLSA”), 29 U.S.C. §§ 201, et
seq., by failing to pay the correct overtime wages to the PLAINTIFF and
the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS as legally required by the
FLSA, and retaining the unpaid overtime to the benefit of DEFENDANT.

26.  This Class Action meets the statutory prerequisites for the maintenance of a Class

Action as set forth in Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382, in that:

(a)

(b)

(©)

The persons who comprise the CALIFORNIA CLASS are so numerous
that the joinder of all such persons is impracticable and the disposition of
their claims as a class will benefit the parties and the Court,

Nearly all factual, legal, statutory, declaratory and injunctive relief issues
that are raised in this Complaint are common to the CALIFORNIA
CLASS will apply uniformly to every member of the CALIFORNIA
CLASS;

The claims of the representative PLAINTIFFS are typical of the claims of
each member of the CALIFORNIA CLASS. PLAINTIFFS, like all the
other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, were subjected to the
uniform employment practices of DEFENDANT and were non-exempt
employees paid on an hourly basis who were subjected to
DEFENDANT’s practice and policy which failed to pay the correct rate
of overtime wages due to the CALIFORNIA CLASS for all overtime

10
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@

worked by the CALIFORNIA CLASS and thereby systematically
underpays overtime compensation to the CALIFORNIA CLASS.
PLAINTIFFS sustained economic injury as a result of DEFENDANT’s
employment practices. PLAINTIFFS and the members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS were and are similarly or identically harmed by
the same unlawful, deceptive, unfair and pervasive pattern of misconduct
engaged in by DEFENDANT; and,

The representative PLAINTIFFS will fairly and adequately represent and
protect the interest of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, and has retained
counsel who are competent and experienced in Class Action litigation.
There are no material conflicts between the claims of the representative
PLAINTIFFS and the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS that would
make class certification inappropriate. Counsel for the CALIFORNIA
CLASS will vigorously assert the claims of all CALIFORNIA CLASS

Members.

27.  In addition to meeting the statutory prerequisites to a Class Action, this action

is properly maintained as a Class Action pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382, in that:

(a)

Without class certification and determination of declaratory, injunctive,
statutory and other legal questions within the class format, prosecution of
separate actions by individual members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS will
create the risk of:

1) Inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to individual
members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS which would establish
incompatible standards of conduct for the parties opposing the
CALIFORNIA CLASS; and/or,

2) Adjudication with respect to individual members of the

CALIFORNIA CLASS which would as a practical matter be

11
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G

(©)

dispositive of interests of the other members not party to the
adjudication or substantially impair or impede their ability to
protect their interests.

The parties opposing the CALIFORNIA CLASS have acted or refused to

act on grounds generally applicable to the CALIFORNIA CLASS, making

appropriate class-wide relief with respect to the CALIFORNIA CLASS
as a whole in that DEFENDANT uniformly failed to pay all wages due.

Including the correct overtime rate, for all worked by the members of the

CALIFORNIA CLASS as required by law;

1) With respect to the First Cause of Action, the final relief on behalf
of the CALIFORNIA CLASS sought does not relate exclusively to
restitution because through this claim PLAINTIFFS seeks
declaratory relief holding that the DEFENDANT’s policy and
practices constitute unfair competition, along with declaratory
relief, injunctive relief, and incidental equitable relief as may be
necessary to prevent and remedy the conduct declared to constitute
unfair competition;

Common questions of law and fact exist as to the members of the

CALIFORNIA CLASS, with respect to the practices and violations of

California law as listed above, and predominate over any question

affecting only individual CALIFORNIA CLASS Members, and a Class

Action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient

adjudication of the controversy, including consideration of:

1) The interests of the members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS in
individually controlling the prosecution or defense of separate
actions in that the substantial expense of individual actions will be

avoided to recover the relatively small amount of economic losses

12
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2)

3)

4)

sustained by the individual CALIFORNIA CLASS Members when

compared to the substantial expense and burden of individual

prosecution of this litigation;

Class certification will obviate the need for unduly duplicative

litigation that would create the risk of:

A. Inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to
individual members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, which
would establish incompatible standards of conduct for the
DEFENDANT; and/or,

B.  Adjudications with respect to individual members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS would as a practical matter be
dispositive of the interests of the other members not parties
to the adjudication or substantially impair or impede their
ability to protect their interests;

In the context of wage litigation because a substantial number of
individual CALIFORNIA CLASS Members will avoid asserting
their legal rights out of fear of retaliation by DEFENDANT, which
may adversely affect an individual’s job with DEFENDANT or
with a subsequent employer, the Class Action is the only means to
assert their claims through a representative; and,

A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair

and efficient adjudication of this litigation because class treatment

will obviate the need for unduly and unnecessary duplicative
litigation that is likely to result in the absence of certification of

this action pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382.

28.  This Court should permit this action to be maintained as a Class Action pursuant

to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382 because:

13
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(2)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

(8)

The questions of law and fact common to the CALIFORNIA CLASS
predominate over any question affecting only individual CALIFORNIA
CLASS Members because the DEFENDANT s employment practices are
uniform and systematically applied with respect to the CALIFORNIA
CLASS;

A Class Action is superior to any other available method for the fair and
efficient adjudication of the claims of the members of the CALIFORNIA
CLASS because in the context of employment litigation a substantial
number of individual CALIFORNIA CLASS Members will avoid
asserting their rights individually out of fear of retaliation or adverse
impact on their employment;

The members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS are so numerous that it is
impractical to bring all members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS before the
Court;

PLAINTIFFS, and the other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members, willnotbe
able to obtain effective and economic legal redress unless the action is
maintained as a Class Action;

There is a community of interest in obtaining appropriate legal and
equitable relief for the acts of unfair competition, statutory violations and
other improprieties, and in obtaining adequate compensation for the
damages and injuries which DEFENDANT’s actions have inflicted upon
the CALIFORNIA CLASS;

There is a community of interest in ensuring that the combined assets of
DEFENDANT are sufficient to adequately compensate the members of
the CALIFORNIA CLASS for the injuries sustained;

DEFENDANT has acted or refused to act on grounds generally applicable
to the CALIFORNIA CLASS, thereby making final class-wide relief

14
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appropriate with respect to the CALIFORNIA CLASS as a whole;

(h)  Themembersofthe CALIFORNIA CLASS are readily ascertainable from
the business records of DEFENDANT; and,

(i)  Classtreatment provides manageable judicial treatment calculated tobring
a efficient and rapid conclusion to all litigation of all wage and hour
related claims arising out of the conduct of DEFENDANT as to the
members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS.

29.  DEFENDANT maintains records from which the Court can ascertain and identify
by job title each of DEFENDANT’s employees who as have been systematically, intentionally
and uniformly subjected to DEFENDANT’s company policy, practices and procedures as herein
alleged. PLAINTIFFS will seek leave to amend the Complaint to include any additional job

titles of similarly situated employees when they have been identified.

THE CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS
30. PLAINTIFFS further bring the Second, Third, Fourth, Fifth and Sixth causes of

Action on behalf of a California sub-class, defined as all individuals who are or previously were
employed by DEFENDANT in California and classified as non-exempt employees (the
“CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS”) at any time during the period three (3) years prior to
the filing of the complaint and ending on the date as determined by the Court (the
“CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS PERIOD”) pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382.

31. DEFENDANT, as a matter of company policy, practice and procedure, and in
violation of the applicable Labor Code, Industrial Welfare Commission (“IWC”) Wage Order
requirements, and the applicable provisions of California law, intentionally, knowingly, and
wilfully, engaged in a practice whereby DEFENDANT failed to provide off duty meal and rest
periods to PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA CLASS Members and failed to correctly calculate
overtime compensation for the overtime worked by PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, even though DEFENDANT enjoyed the benefit of this

15
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work, required employees to perform this work and permitted or suffered to permit this
overtime work. DEFENDANT has uniformly denied these CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS Members overtime wages at the correct amount to which these employees are entitled
in order to unfairly cheat the competition and unlawfully profit. To the extent equitable tolling
operates to toll claims by the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS against DEFENDANT, the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS PERIOD should be adjusted accordingly.

32. DEFENDANT maintains records from which the Court can ascertain and identify
by name and job title, each of DEFENDANT’s employees who have been systematically,
intentionally and uniformly subjected to DEFENDANT’s company policy, practices and
procedures as herein alleged. PLAINTIFFS will seek leave to amend the complaint to include
any additional job titles of similarly situated employees when they have been identified.

33. The CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS is so numerous that joinder of all
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members is impracticable.

34.  Common questions of law and fact exist as to members of the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS, including, but not limited, to the following:

(a)  Whether DEFENDANT unlawfully failed to correctly calculate and pay
overtime compensation to members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS in violation of the California Labor Code and California
regulations and the applicable California Wage Order;

(b)  Whether the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS are
entitled to overtime compensation for overtime worked under the overtime
pay requirements of California law;

(¢) Whether DEFENDANT failed to accurately record the applicable
overtime rates for all overtime worked PLAINTIFFS and the other
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS;

(d) Whether DEFENDANT failed to provide PLAINTIFFS and the other
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS with legally

16
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®

(2

(h)

required uninterrupted thirty (30) minute meal breaks and rest periods;
Whether DEFENDANT failed to provide PLAINTIFFS and the other
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS with accurate
itemized wage statements;

Whether DEFENDANT has engaged in unfair competition by the
above-listed conduct;

The proper measure of damages and penalties owed to the members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS; and,

Whether DEFENDANT’s conduct was willful.

35, DEFENDANT, as a matter of company policy, practice and procedure, failed to

accurately calculate overtime compensation for the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS

Members and failed to provide accurate records of the applicable overtime rates for the

overtime worked by these employees. All of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS

Members, including PLAINTIFFS, were non-exempt employees who were paid on an hourly

basis by DEFENDANT according to uniform and systematic company procedures as alleged

herein above. This business practice was uniformly applied to each and every member of the

CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, and therefore, the propriety of this conduct can be

adjudicated on a class-wide basis.

36. DEFENDANT violated the rights of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS

under California law by:

(a)

(b)

Violating Cal. Lab. Code §§ 510, et seq., by failing to accurately pay
PLAINTIFFS and the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS the correct overtime pay for which DEFENDANT is liable
pursuant to Cal. Lab. Code § 1194 & § 1198;

Violating Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7 and 512, by failing to provide
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS with
all legally required off-duty, uninterrupted thirty (30) minute meal breaks

17
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(c)

(d)

and the legally required rest breaks;

Violating Cal. Lab. Code § 226, by failing to provide PLAINTIFFS and
the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS with an
accurate itemized statement in writing showing all accurate and applicable
overtime rates in effect during the pay period and the corresponding
amount of time worked at each overtime rate by the employee; and,
Violating Cal. Lab. Code §§ 201, 202 and/or 203, which provides that
when an employee is discharged or quits from employment, the employer
must pay the employee all wages due without abatement, by failing to
tender full payment and/or restitution of wages owed or in the manner
required by California law to the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR
SUB-CLASS who have terminated their employment.

37.  This Class Action meets the statutory prerequisites for the maintenance of a Class

Action as set forth in Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382, in that:

(a)

(®)

©)

The persons who comprise the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS are
so numerous that the joinder of all CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS
Members is impracticable and the disposition of their claims as a class
will benefit the parties and the Court;

Nearly all factual, legal, statutory, declaratory and injunctive relief issues
that are raised in this Complaint are common to the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS and will apply uniformly to every member of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS;

The claims of the representative PLAINTIFFS are typical of the claims of
each member of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS.
PLAINTIFFS, like all the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR
SUB-CLASS, were non-exempt employees paid on an hourly basis who

were subjected to the DEFENDANT’s practice and policy described

18
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(d)

herein. PLAINTIFFS sustained economic injury as a result of
DEFENDANT’s employment practices. PLAINTIFFS and the members
of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS were and are similarly or
identically harmed by the same unlawful, deceptive, unfair and pervasive
pattern of misconduct engaged in by DEFENDANT; and,

The representative PLAINTIFFS will fairly and adequately represent and
protect the interest of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, and has
retained counsel who are competent and experienced in Class Action
litigation. There are no material conflicts between the claims of the
representative PLAINTIFFS and the members of the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS that would make class certification inappropriate.
Counsel for the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS will vigorously
assert the claims of all CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members.

38.  In addition to meeting the statutory prerequisites to a Class Action, this action is

properly maintained as a Class Action pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382, in that:

(a)

Without class certification and determination of declaratory, injunctive,
statutory and other legal questions within the class format, prosecution of
separate actions by individual members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR
SUB-CLASS will create the risk of:

1) Inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to individual
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS which
would establish incompatible standards of conduct for the parties
opposing the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS; or,

2) Adjudication with respect to individual members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS which would as a practical
matter be dispositive of interests of the other members not party to

the adjudication or substantially impair or impede their ability to

19
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(b)

(c)

protect their interests.

The parties opposing the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS have acted

or refused to act on grounds generally applicable to the CALIFORNIA

LABOR SUB-CLASS, making appropriate class-wide relief with respect

to the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS as a whole in that

DEFENDANT uniformly failed to pay all wages due. Including the

correct overtime rate, for all overtime worked by the members of the

CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS as required by law;

Common questions of law and fact predominate as to the members of the

CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, with respect to the practices and

violations of California Law as listed above, and predominate over any

question affecting only individual CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS

Members, and a Class Action is superior to other available methods for

the fair and efficient adjudication of the controversy, including

consideration of:

1) The interests of the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS in individually controlling the prosecution or defense of
separate actions in that the substantial expense of individual
actions will be avoided to recover the relatively small amount of
economic losses sustained by the individual CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS Members when compared to the substantial
expense and burden of individual prosecution of this litigation;

2) Class certification will obviate the need for unduly duplicative
litigation that would create the risk of:

A. Inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to
individual members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS, which would establish incompatible standards of

20
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conduct for the DEFENDANT; and/or,

B. Adjudications with respect to individual members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS would as a practical
matter be dispositive of the interests of the other members
not parties to the adjudication or substantially impair or
impede their ability to protect their interests;

3) In the context of wage litigation because a substantial number of
individual CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members will
avoid asserting their legal rights out of fear of retaliation by
DEFENDANT, which may adversely affect an individual’s job
with DEFENDANT or with a subsequent employer, the Class
Action is the only means to assert their claims through a
representative; and,

4) A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair
and efficient adjudication of this litigation because class treatment
will obviate the need for unduly and unnecessary duplicative
litigation that is likely to result in the absence of certification of

this action pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382.

39.  This Court should permit this action to be maintained as a Class Action pursuant

to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382 because:

(a)

(b)

The questions of law and fact common to the CALIFORNIA LABOR
SUB-CLASS predominate over any question affecting only individual
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members;

A Class Action is superior to any other available method for the fair and
efficient adjudication of the claims of the members of the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS because in the context of employment litigation a
substantial number of individual CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS

21

SECOND AMENDED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT




O 00 ~1 O v Bk W N

(%] S S S R S e S B e e B e e
RYIBEIRIEN S S 0 o 9 & v & W N~ O

Case 1:19-cv-00769-LJO-SKO Document 1 Filed 05/30/19 Page 166 of 214

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

(2

(h)

@

Members will avoid asserting their rights individually out of fear of
retaliation or adverse impact on their employment;

The members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS are so
numerous that it is impractical to bring all members of the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS before the Court;

PLAINTIFFS, and the other CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS
Members, will not be able to obtain effective and economic legal redress
unless the action is maintained as a Class Action;

There is a community of interest in obtaining appropriate legal and
equitable relief for the acts of unfair competition, statutory violations and
other improprieties, and in obtaining adequate compensation for the
damages and injuries which DEFENDANT’s actions have inflicted upon
the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS;

There is a community of interest in ensuring that the combined assets of
DEFENDANT are sufficient to adequately compensate the members of
the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS for the injuries sustained;
DEFENDANT has acted or refused to act on grounds generally applicable
to the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, thereby making final class-
wide relief appropriate with respect to the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS as a whole;

The members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS are readily
ascertainable from the business records of DEFENDANT. The
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS consists of all CALIFORNIA
CLASS Members classified as non-exempt employees during the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS PERIOD; and,

Class treatment provides manageable judicial treatment calculated to bring

a efficient and rapid conclusion to all litigation of all wage and hour
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related claims arising out of the conduct of DEFENDANT as to the
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

For Unlawful Business Practices
[Cal. Bus. And Prof. Code 8§ 17200, et seq.]
(By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA CLASS and Against All Defendants)

40. PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, reallege and
incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior paragraphs of this
Complaint.

41. DEFENDANT is a “person” as that term is defined under Cal. Bus. and Prof.
Code § 17021.

42. California Business & Professions Code §§ 17200, et seq. (the “UCL”) defines
unfair competition as any unlawful, unfair, or fraudulent business act or practice. Section
17203 authorizes injunctive, declaratory, and/or other equitable relief with respect to unfair
competition as follows:

Any person who engages, has engaged, or proposes to engage in unfair

competition may be enjoined in any court of competent jurisdiction. The court

may make such orders or judgments, including the appointment of a receiver, as

may be necessary to prevent t%gl use or employment by any person of any practice

which constitutes unfair competition, as defined in this chapter, or as may be

necessary to restore to any person in interest any money or property, real or

personal, which may have been acquired by means of such unfair competition.
Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17203.

43. By the conduct alleged herein, DEFENDANT has engaged and continues to
engage in a business practice which violates California law, including but not limited to, the
applicable Wage Order(s), the California Code of Regulations and the California Labor Code
including Sections 204, 206.5, 226.7, 510, 512, 558, 1194 & 1198, the FLSA, for which this
Court should issue declaratory and other equitable relief pursuant to Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §

17203 as may be necessary to prevent and remedy the conduct held to constitute unfair
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competition, including restitution of wages wrongfully withheld.

44. By the conduct alleged herein, DEFENDANT’s practices were unlawful and
unfair in that these practices violated public policy, were immoral, unethical, oppressive,
unscrupulous or substantially injurious to employees, and were without valid justification or
utility for which this Court should issue equitable and injunctive relief pursuant to Section
17203 of the California Business & Professions Code, including restitution of wages wrongfully
withheld.

45. By the conduct alleged herein, DEFENDANTs practices were deceptive and
fraudulent in that DEFENDANT’s uniform policy and practice failed to pay PLAINTIFFS, and
other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, wages due for overtime worked, failed to
accurately to record the applicable rate of all overtime worked, and failed to provide the legally
required off duty meal and rest periods due to a systematic business practice that cannot be
justified, pursuant to the applicable Cal. Lab. Code, and Industrial Welfare Commission
requirements in violation of Cal. Bus. Code §§ 17200, et seg., and for which this Court should
issue injunctive and equitable relief, pursuant to Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17203, including
restitution of wages wrongfully withheld.

46. By the conduct alleged herein, DEFENDANT’s practices were also unlawful,
unfair and deceptive in that DEFENDANT’s employment practices caused PLAINTIFFS and
the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS to be underpaid during their employment with
DEFENDANT.

47. By the conduct alleged herein, DEFENDANT’s practices were also unfair and
deceptive in that DEFENDANT s uniform policies, practices and procedures failed to provide
mandatory meal and/or rest breaks to PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA CLASS members.

48.  Therefore, PLAINTIFFS demand on behalf of themselves and on behalf of each
CALIFORNIA CLASS member, one (1) hour of pay for each workday in which an off-duty
meal period was not timely provided for each five (5) hours of work, and/or one (1) hour of pay

for each workday in which a second off-duty meal period was not timely provided for each ten
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(10) hours of work.

49, PLAINTIFFS further demand on behalf of themselves and on behalf of each
CALIFORNIA CLASS member, one (1) hour of pay for each workday in which a rest period
was not timely provided as required by law.

50. By and through the unlawful and unfair business practices described herein,
DEFENDANT has obtained valuable property, money and services from PLAINTIFFS and the
other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS, including earned wages for all overtime worked,
and has deprived them of valuable rights and benefits guaranteed by law and contract, all to the
detriment of these employees and to the benefit of DEFENDANT so as to allow DEFENDANT
to unfairly compete against competitors who comply with the law.

51.  All the acts described herein as violations of, among other things, the Industrial
Welfare Commission Wage Orders, the California Code of Regulations, and the California
Labor Code, were unlawful and in violation of public policy, were immoral, unethical,
oppressive and unscrupulous, were deceptive, and thereby constitute unlawful, unfair and
deceptive business practices in violation of Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, et seq.

52. PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS are entitled
to, and do, seek such relief as may be necessary to restore to them the money and property
which DEFENDANT has acquired, or of which PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS have been deprived, by means of the above described unlawful and
unfair business practices, including earned but unpaid wages for all overtime worked.

53. PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS are further
entitled to, and do, seek a declaration that the described business practices are unlawful, unfair
and deceptive, and that injunctive relief should be issued restraining DEFENDANT from
engaging in any unlawful and unfair business practices in the future.

54.  PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS have no plain,
speedy and/or adequate remedy at law that will end the unlawful and unfair business practices

of DEFENDANT. Further, the practices herein alleged presently continue to occur unabated.
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As a result of the unlawful and unfair business practices described herein, PLAINTIFFS and
the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS have suffered and will continue to suffer
irreparable legal and economic harm unless DEFENDANT is restrained from continuing to

engage in these unlawful and unfair business practices.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

For Failure To Pay Overtime Compensation
[Cal. Lab. Code §§ 204, 510, 1194 and 1198]
(By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS and Against All
Defendants)

55.  PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS, reallege and incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior
paragraphs of this Complaint.

56. PLAINTIFES and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS bring a claim for DEFENDANT’s willful and intentional violations of the California
Labor Code and the Industrial Welfare Commission requirements for DEFENDANT’s failure
to accurately calculate the applicable rates for all overtime worked by PLAINTIFFS and other
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS and DEFENDANT’s failure to properly
compensate the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS for overtime worked,
including, work performed in excess of eight (8) hours in a workday and/or forty (40) hours in
any workweek.

57.  Pursuant to Cal. Lab. Code § 204, other applicable laws and regulations, and
public policy, an employer must timely pay its employees for all hours worked.

58.  Cal. Lab. Code § 510 further provides that employees in California shall not be
employed more than eight (8) hours per workday and/or more than forty (40) hours per
workweek unless they receive additional compensation beyond their regular wages in amounts

specified by law.
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59.  Cal. Lab. Code § 1194 establishes an employee’s right to recover unpaid wages,
including overtime compensation and interest thereon, together with the costs of suit. Cal. Lab.
Code § 1198 further states that the employment of an employee for longer hours than those
fixed by the Industrial Welfare Commission is unlawful.

60. DEFENDANT maintained a uniform wage practice of paying PLAINTIFFS and
the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS without regard to the correct
amount of overtime worked. As set forth herein, DEFENDANT’s uniform policy and practice
was to unlawfully and intentionally deny timely payment of wages due for the overtime worked
by PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, and
DEFENDANT in fact failed to pay these employees the correct applicable overtime wages for
all overtime worked.

61. DEFENDANT’s uniform pattern of unlawful wage and hour practices manifested,
without limitation, applicable to the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS as a whole, as a
result of implementing a uniform policy and practice that denied accurate compensation to
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS for all
overtime worked, including, the work performed in excess of eight (8) hours in a workday
and/or forty (40) hours in any workweek.

62. In committing these violations of the California Labor Code, DEFENDANT
inaccurately calculated the amount of overtime worked and the applicable overtime rates and
consequently underpaid the actual time worked by PLAINTIFFS and other members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS. DEFENDANT acted in an illegal attempt to avoid the
payment of all earned wages, and other benefits in violation of the California Labor Code, the
Industrial Welfare Commission requirements and other applicable laws and regulations.

63.  Asa direct result of DEFENDANT’s unlawful wage practices as alleged herein,
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS did not
receive full compensation for all overtime worked.

64. Cal. Lab. Code § 515 sets out various categories of employees who are exempt
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from the overtime requirements of the law. None of these exemptions are applicable to
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS. Further,
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS are not
subject to a valid collective bargaining agreement that would preclude the causes of action
contained herein this Complaint. Rather, the PLAINTIFFS bring this Action on behalf of
themselves and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS based on DEFENDANT’s violations
of non-negotiable, non-waiveable rights provided by the State of California.

65. During the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS PERIOD, PLAINTIFFS and
the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS were paid less for time worked
that they were entitled to, constituting a failure to pay all earned wages.

66. DEFENDANT failed to accurately pay PLAINTIFFS and the other members of
the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS overtime wages for the time they worked which was
in excess of the maximum hours permissible by law as required by Cal. Lab. Code §§ 510, 1194
& 1198, even though PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR
SUB-CLASS were required to work, and did in fact work, overtime as to which DEFENDANT
failed to accurately record and pay using the applicable overtime rate as evidenced by
DEFENDANT’s business records and witnessed by employees.

67. By virtue of DEFENDANT's unlawful failure to accurately pay all earned
compensation to PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS for the true time they worked, PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS have suffered and will continue to suffer an economic
injury in amounts which are presently unknown to them and which will be ascertained
according to proof at trial.

68. DEFENDANT knew or should have known that PLAINTIFFS and the other
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS are under compensated for their overtime
worked. DEFENDANT systematically elected, either through intentional malfeasance or gross

nonfeasance, to not pay employees for their labor as a matter of uniform company policy,
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practice and procedure, and DEFENDANT perpetrated this systematic scheme by refusing to
pay PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS the
applicable overtime rate.

69. Inperforming the acts and practices herein alleged in violation of California labor
laws, and refusing to compensate the members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS for
all time worked and provide them with the requisite overtime compensation, DEFENDANT
acted and continues to act intentionally, oppressively, and maliciously toward PLAINTIFFS and
the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS with a conscious of and utter
disregard for their legal rights, or the consequences to them, and with the despicable intent of
depriving them of their property and legal rights, and otherwise causing them injury in order
to increase company profits at the expense of these employees.

70. PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS therefore request recovery of all unpaid wages, including overtime wages, according
to proof, interest, statutory costs, as well as the assessment of any statutory penalties against
DEFENDANT, in a sum as provided by the California Labor Code and/or other applicable
statutes. To the extent overtime compensation is determined to be owed to the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS Members who have terminated their employment, DEFENDANT’S
conduct also violates Labor Code §§ 201 and/or 202, and therefore these individuals are also
be entitled to waiting time penalties under Cal. Lab. Code § 203, which penalties are sought
herein on behalf of these CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members. DEFENDANT’s
conduct as alleged herein was willful, intentional and not in good faith. Further, PLAINTIFFS
and other CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members are entitled to seek and recover
statutory costs.

7
1/
THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

For Failure to Provide Required Meal Periods
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[Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7 & 512 ]
(By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS and Against All
Defendants)

71. PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS, reallege and incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior
paragraphs of this Complaint.

72.  During the CALIFORNIA CLASS PERIOD, DEFENDANT failed to provide
all the legally required off-duty meal breaks to PLAINTIFFS and the other CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS Members as required by the applicable Wage Order and Labor Code.
The nature of the work performed by PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS MEMBERS did not prevent these employees from being relieved of all of their
duties for the legally required off-duty meal periods. As a result of their rigorous work
schedules, PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members were
often not fully relieved of duty by DEFENDANT for their meal periods. Additionally,
DEFENDANT’s failure to provide PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS Members with legally required meal breaks prior to their fifth (Sth) hour of work is
evidenced by DEFENDANT’s business records. As a result, PLAINTIFFS and other
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS therefore forfeited meal breaks
without additional compensation and in accordance with DEFENDANT’s strict corporate
policy and practice.

73.  DEFENDANT further violated California Labor Code §§ 226.7 and the
applicable IWC Wage Order by failing to compensate PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS Members who were not provided a meal period, in accordance with
the applicable Wage Order, one additional hour of compensation at each employee’s regular
rate of pay for each workday that a meal period was not provided.

74.  As a proximate result of the aforementioned violations, PLAINTIFFS and
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members have been damaged in an amount according
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to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, interest, penalties, expenses and costs of

suit.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

For Failure to Provide Required Rest Periods
[Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7 & 512 ]
(By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS and Against All
Defendants)

75.  PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS, reallege and incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior
paragraphs of this Complaint.

76. PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members were
required to work in excess of four (4) hours without being provided ten (10) minute rest
periods. Further, these employees were denied their first rest periods of at least ten (10)
minutes for some shifts worked of at least two (2) to four (4) hours, a first and second rest
period of at least ten (10) minutes for some shifts worked of between six (6) and eight (8)
hours, and a first, second and third rest period of at least ten (10) minutes for some shifts
worked of ten (10) hours or more. PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS Members were also not provided with one hour wages in lieu thereof. As a result of
their rigorous work schedules, PLAINTIFFS and other CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS Members were periodically denied their proper rest periods by DEFENDANT and
DEFENDANT’s managers.

77. DEFENDANT further violated California Labor Code §§ 226.7 and the
applicable IWC Wage Order by failing to compensate PLAINTIFFS and CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS Members who were not provided a rest period, in accordance with
the applicable Wage Order, one additional hour of compensation at each employee’s regular

rate of pay for each workday that rest period was not provided.
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78.  As a proximate result of the aforementioned violations, PLAINTIFFS and
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS Members have been damaged in an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, interest, penalties, expenses and costs of

suit.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

For Failure to Provide Accurate Itemized Statements
[Cal. Lab. Code § 226]
(By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS and Against All
Defendants)

79.  PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS, reallege and incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior
paragraphs of this Complaint.

80. Cal. Labor Code § 226 provides that an employer must furnish employees with
an “accurate itemized” statement in writing showing:

(1) gross wages earned,

(2) total hours worked by the employee, except for any employee whose compensation

is solely based on a salary and who is exempt from payment of overtime under

subdivision (a) of Section 515 or any applicable order of the Industrial Welfare

Commission,

(3) the number of piecerate units earned and any applicable piece rate if the employee

is paid on a piece-rate basis,

(4) all deductions, provided that all deductions made on written orders of the employee

may be aggregated and shown as one item,

(5) net wages earned,

(6) the inclusive dates of the period for which the employee is paid,

(7) the name of the employee and his or her social security number, except that by
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January 1, 2008, only the last four digits of his or her social security number or an
employee identification number other than a social security number may be shown on
the itemized statement,

(8) the name and address of the legal entity that is the employer, and

(9) all applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay period and the corresponding

number of hours worked at each hourly rate by the employee.

81. When PLAINTIFES and other CALIFORNIA CLASS Members worked unpaid
overtime and/or missed meal and rest breaks, DEFENDANT also failed to provide
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS with complete and
accurate wage statements which failed to show, among other things, the correct overtime rate
for overtime worked, including, work performed in excess of eight (8) hours in a workday
and/or forty (40) hours in any workweek, and the correct penalty payments or missed meal and
rest periods. Cal. Lab. Code § 226 provides that every employer shall furnish each of his or her
employees with an accurate itemized wage statement in writing showing, among other things,
gross wages earned and all applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay period and the
corresponding amount of time worked at each hourly rate. Aside, from the violations listed
above in this paragraph, DEFENDANT failed to issue to PLAINTIFFS an itemized wage
statement that lists all the requirements under California Labor Code 226 et seq. As a result,
from time to time DEFENDANT provided PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA CLASS with wage statements which violated Cal. Lab. Code § 226.

82. DEFENDANT knowingly and intentionally failed to comply with Cal. Labor
Code § 226, causing injury and damages to the PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS. These damages include, but are not limited to, costs
expended calculating the correct rates for the overtime worked and the amount of employment
taxes which were not properly paid to state and federal tax authorities. These damages are
difficult to estimate. Therefore, PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the CALIFORNIA
LABOR SUB-CLASS may elect to recover liquidated damages of fifty dollars ($50.00) for the
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initial pay period in which the violation occurred, and one hundred dollars ($100.00) for each
violation in a subsequent pay period pursuant to Cal. Lab. Code § 226, in an amount according
to proof at the time of trial (but in no event more than four thousand dollars ($4,000.00) for
PLAINTIFFS and each respective member of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS

herein).

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
For Failure to Pay Wages When Due
[ Cal. Lab. Code §§ 201, 202, 203]
(By PLAINTIFFS and the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS and Against All
Defendants)

83. PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS, reallege and incorporate by reference, as though fully set forth herein, the prior
paragraphs of this Complaint.

84. Cal. Lab. Code § 200 provides that:

As used in this article:

(a) "Wages" includes all amounts for labor performed by employees of every
description, whether the amount is fixed or ascertained by the standard of time,
task, piece, Commission basis, or other method of calculation.

(b) "Labor" includes labor, work, or service whether rendered or performed under
contract, subcontract, partnership, station plan, or other agreement if the labor to
be paid for is performed personally by the person demanding payment.

85. Cal. Lab. Code § 201 provides, in relevant part, that “If an employer discharges
an employee, the wages earned and unpaid at the time of discharge are due and payable
immediately.”

86. Cal. Lab. Code § 202 provides, in relevant part, that:

If an employee not having a written contract for a definite period quits his or her
employment, his or her wages shall become due and payable not later than 72
hours thereafter, unless the employee has given 72 hours previous notice of his
or her intention to quit, in which case the employee is entitled to his or her wages
at the time of quitting. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, an employee
who quits without providing a 72-hour notice shall be entitled to receive payment
by mail if he or she so requests and designates a mailing address. The date of the
mailing shall constitute the date of payment for purposes of the requirement to
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provide payment within 72 hours of the notice of quitting.

87.  There was no definite term in PLAINTIFFS’ or any CALIFORNIA LABOR
SUB-CLASS Members’ employment contract.

88.  Cal. Lab. Code § 203 provides:

If an employer willfully fails to pay, without abatement or reduction, in

accordance with Sections 201, 201.5, 202, and 205.5, any wages of an employee

who is discharged or who quits, the wages of the employee shall continue as a

penalty from the due date gwreof at the same rate until paid or until an action

therefor is commenced; but the wages shall not continue for more than 30 days.

89. The employment of PLAINTIFFS and many CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-
CLASS Members terminated and DEFENDANT has not tendered payment of overtime wages,
to these employees who actually worked overtime, as required by law.

90. Therefore, as provided by Cal Lab. Code § 203, on behalf of themselves and the
members of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS whose employment has, PLAINTIFFS
demand up to thirty days of pay as penalty for not paying all wages due at time of termination
for all employees who terminated employment during the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS
PERIOD, and demand an accounting and payment of all wages due, plus interest and statutory

costs as allowed by law.

SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

For Violation of the Private Attorneys General Act
[Cal. Lab. Code §§ 2698, ef seq.]
(By Plaintiffs and Against All Defendants)

91. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1-90,
supra, as though fully set forth at this point.

92. PAGA is a mechanism by which the State of California itself can enforce state
labor laws through the employee suing under the PAGA who do so as the proxy or agent of the
state's labor law enforcement agencies. An action to recover civil penalties under PAGA is
fundamentally a law enforcement action designed to protect the public and not to benefit private

parties. The purpose of the PAGA is not to recover damages or restitution, but to create a
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means of "deputizing" citizens as private attorneys general to enforce the Labor Code. In
enacting PAGA, the California Legislature specified that "it was ... in the public interest to
allow aggrieved employees, acting as private attorneys general to recover civil penalties for
Labor Code violations ..." Stats. 2003, ch. 906, § 1. Accordingly, PAGA claims cannot be
subject to arbitration.

93.  Plaintiffs, and such persons that may be added from time to time who satisfy the
requirements and exhaust the administrative procedures under the Private Attorney General Act,
bring this Representative Action on behalf of the State of California with respect to themselves
and all individuals who are or previously were employed by Defendant L’Oreal USA §/D, Inc.
who worked in California and who were classified as non-exempt during the period March 6,
2017 to the earlier of the date of preliminary approval of this settlement or April 20, 2019 (the
“PAGA Period”) (the "AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEES").

94.  OnJanuary 29,2018, Plaintiffs gave written notice by electronic mail to the Labor
and Workforce Development Agency (the "Agency") and by certified mail to the employer of
the specific provisions of this code alleged to have been violated as required by Labor Code §
2699.3. See Exhibit #1, attached hereto and incorporated by this reference herein. The
statutory waiting period for PLAINTIFFS to add these allegations to the Complaint has expired.
As a result, pursuant to Section 2699.3, PLAINTIFFS may now commence a representative
civil action under PAGA pursuant to Section 2699 as the proxy of the State of California with
respect to all AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEES as herein defined.

95.  The policies, acts and practices heretofore described were and are an unlawful
business act or practice because Defendant (a) failed to provide PLAINTIFFS and the other
AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEES for all of the hours they worked, including overtime, (b) failed
to properly record and provide legally required meal and rest periods, (c) failed to provide
accurate itemized wage statements, and (d) failed to pay wages when due, all in violation of the
applicable Labor Code sections listed in Labor Code Sections §§ 201, 202, 203, 204, 226(a),
226.7, 510, 512, 558, 1194, 1198, and the applicable Industrial Wage Order(s), and thereby
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gives rise to statutory penalties as a result of such conduct. PLAINTIFFS hereby seek recovery
of civil penalties as prescribed by the Labor Code Private Attorney General Act of 2004 as the
representatives of the State of California for the illegal conduct perpetrated on PLAINTIFFS
and the other AGGRIEVED EMPLOYEES.

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 201, ef seq. ("FLSA")
(By PLAINTIFFS and the COLLECTIVE CLASS against DEFENDANT)
96. PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the COLLECTIVE CLASS, reallege

and incorporate by this reference, as though fully set forth herein, paragraphs 1 through 95
of this Complaint.

97. DEFENDANT is engaged in communication, business, and transmission
between the states, and is, therefore, engaged in commerce within the meaning of 29 US.C.
§ 203(b).

98. PLAINTIFFS further bring the Eighth Cause of Action on behalf of a
COLLECTIVE CLASS in accordance with 29 U.S.C. § 216 defined as all persons who are or
were previously employed by DEFENDANT in California as non-exempt employees (the
«COLLECTIVE CLASS”) at any time during the period three (3) years prior to the filing of the
Complaint and ending on the date as determined by the Court (the "COLLECTIVE CLASS
PERIOD").

99. 29 U.S.C. § 255 provides that a three-year statute of limitations applies to
willful violations of the FLSA.

100. 29 U.S.C. § 207(a)(1) provides in pertinent part:

Except as otherwise provided in this section, no employer shall employ
any of his employees who in any workweek is engage in commerce or
in the production of goods for commerce, or is emp oyed in an
enterprise engaged in commerce or in the production of goods for
commerce, for a workweek longer than forty hours unless such
employee receives compensation for his employment in excess of the
hours above specified at a rate not less than one and one-half times the
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regular rate at which he is employed.

101. Pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 201, et seq., the
PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the COLLECTIVE CLASS are entitled to
overtime compensation for all overtime hours actually worked, at a rate not less than
one and one-half times their regular rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty
(40) hours in any workweek. DEFENDANTS’ failure to correctly calculate overtime
wages as required by federal law was willful and not in good faith.

102. During the COLLECTIVE CLASS PERIOD, PLAINTIFFS, and
other members of the COLLECTIVE CLASS, worked more than forty (40) hours in
a workweek.

103. At all relevant times, DEFENDANT required PLAINTIFFS and
COLLECTIVE CLASS Members to work off the clock without paying them for all the
time they were under DEFENDANT’s control. PLAINTIFFS and COLLECTIVE
CLASS Members would clock out of DEFENDANT s timekeeping system, in order to
perform additional work for DEFENDANT as required to meet DEFENDANT’s job
requirements. Specifically, DEFENDANT engaged in the uniform and systematic
practice of requiring PLAINTIFFS and COLLECTIVE CLASS Members to perform
work off the clock after clocking out in that DEFENDANT, as a condition of
employment, required these employees to wait for and submit to loss prevention
inspections after clocking out for meal breaks and at the end of each scheduled shift for
which DEFENDANT did not provide compensation for time spent awaiting and
performing the loss prevention inspections off the clock. Asa result, PLAINTIFFS and
other COLLECTIVE CLASS Members forfeited overtime wages by working without
their time being correctly recorded and without compensation at the applicable overtime
rates. DEFENDANT’s uniform policy and practice not to pay PLAINTIFFS and other
COLLECTIVE CLASS Members for all overtime worked, is evidenced by
DEFENDANT s business records. Thus, DEFENDANT failed to pay the PLAINTIFFS,
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and other members of the COLLECTIVE CLASS, overtime compensation for the hours
they have worked in excess of the maximum hours permissible by law as required by §
207 of the FLSA, even though the PLAINTIFFS, and the other members of the
COLLECTIVE CLASS, were regularly required to work, and did in fact work, overtime
hours.

104. For purposes of the Fair Labor Standards Act, the employment
practices of DEFENDANT were and are uniform throughout California in all
respects material to the claims asserted in this Complaint.

105. As a result of DEFENDANT’s failure to pay the correct overtime
compensation for overtime hours worked, as required by the FLSA, PLAINTIFFS
and the members of the COLLECTIVE CLASS were damaged in an amount to be
proved at trial.

106. Therefore, PLAINTIFFS demand that they and the members of the
COLLECTIVE CLASS be paid the correct overtime compensation as required by the
FLSA for every hour of overtime worked plus interest and statutory costs as provided

by law.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS pray for judgment against each Defendant, jointly and

severally, as follows:
1. On behalf of the CALIFORNIA CLASS:
A)  That the Court certify the First Cause of Action asserted by the CALIFORNIA
CLASS as a class action pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382;
B)  An order temporarily, preliminarily and permanently enjoining and restraining
DEFENDANT from engaging in similar unlawful conduct as set forth herein;
C)  An order requiring DEFENDANT to pay all wages and all sums unlawfuly
withheld from compensation due to PLAINTIFFS and the other members of
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3.

D)

the CALIFORNIA CLASS; and,

Restitutionary disgorgement of DEFENDANT’s ill-gotten gains into a fluid
fund for restitution of the sums incidental to DEFENDANT’s violations due to
PLAINTIFFS and to the other members of the CALIFORNIA CLASS.

On behalf of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS:

A)

B)

9

D)

E)

That the Court certify the Second, Third, Fourth, Fifth and Sixth Causes of
Action asserted by the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS as a class action
pursuant to Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 382;

Compensatory damages, according to proof at trial, including compensatory
damages for overtime compensation due PLAINTIFFS and the other members
of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS, during the applicable
CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS PERIOD plus interest thereon at the
statutory rate;

Meal and rest period compensation pursuant to Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7, 512
and the applicable IWC Wage Order;

The greater of all actual damages or fifty dollars (350) for the initial pay
period in which a violation occurs and one hundred dollars ($100) per each
member of the CALIFORNIA LABOR SUB-CLASS for each violation in a
subsequent pay period, not exceeding an aggregate penalty of four thousand
dollars ($4,000), and an award of costs for violation of Cal. Lab. Code § 226;
and,

The wages of all terminated employees from the CALIFORNIA LABOR
SUB-CLASS as a penalty from the due date thereof at the same rate until paid
or until an action therefore is commenced, in accordance with Cal. Lab. Code

§ 203.

On behalf of the COLLECTIVE CLASS:

A)

That the Court certify the Eighth Cause of Action asserted by the

40
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COLLECTIVE CLASS as an opt-in Class Action under 29 U.S.C. § 216(b);
B)  Issue a declaratory finding that DEFENDANT’s acts, policies, practices and
procedures complained of herein violated provisions of the Fair Labor
Standards Act; and
C)  That the PLAINTIFFS and the COLLECTIVE CLASS members recover
compensatory damages and an equal amount of liquidated damages as
provided under the law and in 29 U.S.C. § 216(b). '
4, On behalf of the State of California and with respect to all AGGRIEVED
EMPLOYEES: 1
(A) Recovery of civil penalties as prescribed by the Labor Code Private Attomneys
General Act of 2004.
5. On all claims:
A)  Anaward of interest, including prejudgment interest at the legal rate;
B)  Such other and further relief as the Court deems just and equitable; and,
C)  An award of penalties, attorneys’ fees and cost of suit, as allowable under the law,

including, but not limited to, pursuant to Labor Code §218.5, §226, and/or §1194.

Dated: April 2, 2019 BLUMENTHAL NORDREHAUG BHOWMIK
DE BLOUW LLP

Y:

Norman Blumenthal i
Attorneys for Plaintiffs
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DEMAND FOR A JURY TRIAL

PLAINTIFES demand a jury trial on issues triable fo a jury.

Dated: April 7_0_, 2019

BLUMENTHAL NORDREHAUG BHOWMIK
DE BLOUW LLP

By: T
Norman Blumenthal
Attorneys for Plaintiffs
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EXHIBIT 1
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2255 CALLE CLARA
LA JOLLA, CALIFORNIA 92037

Web Site: www.bamlawca.com
San Diego | San Francisco | Sacramento | Los Angeles | Riverside | Chicago

Phone: (858) 551-1223
Fax: (858) 551-1232

WRITERS E-MAIL WRITERS EXT:
Nick@bamlawca.com 1004

January 29, 2018
CAl514

VIA ONLINE FILING TO LWDA AND CERTIFIED MAIL TO DEFENDANT

Labor and Workforce Development Agency L.’Oreal USA S/D, Inc.

Online Filing Certified Mail # 70171450000202536847
CSC Lawyers Incorporating Service
2710 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 150N
Sacramento, CA 95833

Re: Notice Of Violations Of California Labor Code Sections §§ 201,202,
203, 204, 226(a), 226.7, 510, 512,558, 1194, 1198, Violation of Applicable
Industrial Welfare Commission Wage Order(s), and_ Pursuant To California
Labor Code Section 2699.5.

Dear Sir/Madam:

Our offices represent Plaintiffs Angela Conti and Justine Mora (“Plaintiffs™), and
other aggrieved employees in a lawsuit against L’Oreal USA S/D, Inc. (“Defendant”).
Plaintiff Conti was employed by Defendant in California from June of 2010 to December of
2017 as a nonexempt employee entitled to the legally required meal and rest breaks and
payment for all time worked under Defendant’s control, including overtime worked.
Plaintiff Mora was employed by Defendant in California from July of 2015 to November of
2017 as a nonexempt employee entitled to the legally required meal and rest breaks and
payment for all time worked under Defendant’s control, including overtime worked.
Defendant, however, unlawfully failed to record and pay Plaintiffs and other aggrieved
employees for all of their time worked, including overtime wages, and for all of their missed
meal and rest breaks. As a consequence of the aforementioned violations, Plaintiffs further
contend that Defendant failed to provide accurate wage statements to them, and other
aggrieved employees, in violation of California Labor Code section 226(a). Additionally,
Plaintiffs contend that Defendant failed to comply with Industrial Wage Order 7(A)(3) in
that Defendant failed to keep time records showing when Plaintiffs began and ended each
shift and meal period. Said conduct, in addition to the foregoing, violates Labor Code §§
201, 202, 203, 204, 226(a), 226.7, 510, 512, 558, 1194, 1198, Violation of the applicable
Industrial Welfare Commission Wage Order(s), and is therefore actionable under California
Labor Code section 2699.3.

A true and correct copy of the Complaint filed by Plaintiffs against Defendant, which
(i) identifies the alleged violations, (ii) details the facts and theories which support the
alleged violations, (iii) details the specific work performed by Plaintiffs, (iii) sets forth the
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people/entities, dates, classifications, violations, events, and actions which are at issue to the
extent known to Plaintiffs, and (iv) sets forth the illegal practices used by Defendant, is
attached hereto. This information provides notice to the Labor and Workforce Development
Agency of the facts and theories supporting the alleged violations for the agency’s reference.
Plaintiffs therefore incorporate the allegations of the attached Complaint into this letter as
if fully set forth herein. If the agency needs any further information, please do not hesitate
to ask.

This notice is provided to enable Plaintiffs to proceed with the Complaint against
Defendant as authorized by California Labor Code section 2695, ef seq. The filing fee of
$75 is being mailed to the Department of Industrial Restations Accounting unit with an
identification of the Plaintiffs, the Defendant and the notice. The pending lawsuit consists
of other aggrieved employees. As counsel, our intention is to vigorously prosecute the
claims as alleged in the Complaint, and to procure civil penalties as provided by the Private
Attorney General Statue of 2004 on behalf of Plaintiffs and all aggrieved California
employees.

Your earliest response to this notice is appreciated. If you have any questions of
concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me at the above number and address.

Respectfully,
s/ Nicholas J. De Blouw

Nicholas J. De Blouw, Esq.

ZAD\Dropbox (NBB\Pending LitigationL'Oreal- Conti'l-paga-01 wpd
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BLUMENTHAL NORDREHAUG BHOWMIK DE BLOUW LLP
Norman B. Blumenthal (State Bar #068687)

Facsimile: (858) 551-1232

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF FRESNO

ANGELA CONTI and JUSTINE MORA, | CASE No. 18CECG00816
individuals, on behalf of themselves, and
on behalf of all persons similarly situated,

Plaintiff, PROOF OF SERVICE
VS.

L’OREAL USA S/D, INC., a Corporation,
and Does 1 through 50, Inclusive,

Action Filed: March 6, 2018

Defendants.

Kyle R. Nordrehaug (State Bar #205975) E-FILED

Aparajit Bhowmik (State Bar #248066)
2255 Calle Clara 4/30/2019 2:52 PM
La Jolla, CA 92037 Superior Court of California
Telephone: (858)551-1223 County of Fresno

By: A. Ramos, Deputy

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

PROOF OF SERVICE

CASE No. 18CECG00816
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

I, Ricardo R. Ehmann, am employed in the County of San Diego, State of California. Iam
over the age of 18 and not a party to the within action. My business address is 2255 Calle Clara, La
Jolla, California 92037.

On April 30, 2019, I served the document(s) described as:

1. SECOND AMENDED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

_X_ (BY MAIL): I caused each such envelope, with postage thereon fully prepaid, to be placed in
the United States mail at San Diego, California. [ am readily familiar with this firm’s
business practice for collection and processing of correspondence for mailing with the U.S.
Postal Service pursuant to which practice the correspondence will be deposited with the U.S.
Postal Service this same day in the ordinary course of business (C.C.P. Section 10139a);
2015.5):

Angela J. Rafoth

LITTLER MENDELSON, P.C.
333 Bush St. 34™ Floor

San Francisco, CA 94104

Irene V. Fitzgerald
LITTLER MENDELSON, P.C.
5200 North Palm Ave., Suite 302
Fresno, CA 93704
Attorneys for Defendant
X __ (State): I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the

above is true and correct.

Executed on April 30, 2019, at La Jolla, California.
M shs

Ricardo R. Ehmann

PROOF OF SERVICE

-2- CASE No. 18CECG00816
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ANGELA J. RAFOTH, Bar No. 241966
LITTLER MENDELSON, P.C.

333 Bush Street, 34th Floor

San Francisco, CA 94104

Telephone: 415.433.1940

Email: ARafoth@littler.com

IRENE V. FITZGERALD, Bar No. 266949
LITTLER MENDELSON, P.C.

i E-FILED
%ﬁy‘ﬂ %3'%? §§2§°’ Suite 302 5/28/2019 3:22 PM
Teleph’one: 559:244_7500 Superior Court of California
Email: [fitzgerald@littler.com County of Fresno

By: I. Herrera, Deputy
Attorneys for Defendant, L’'OREAL USA S/D, INC.

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF FRESNO

ANGELA CONTI and JUSTINE MORA, Case No. 13CECGO00816
individuals, on behalf of themselves, and
on behalf of all persons similarly situated, DEFENDANT L'OREAL USA S/D, INC.’S
ANSWER TO SECOND AMENDED CLASS
Plaintiffs, ACTION COMPLAINT
V. ASSIGNED FOR ALL PURPOSES TO JUDGE
JEFFREY HAMILTON
L'OREAL USA S/D, INC., a Corporation;
and DOES 1 through 50, inclusive, First Amended Complaint filed: April 9, 2018
Trial Date: TBD
Defendant.

Defendant L’OREAL USA S/D, INC. (“L’OREAL”) hereby answers the unverified
Second Amended Class Action Complaint (“SAC”) filed by Plaintiffs ANGELA CONTI and
JUSTINE MORA (“Plaintiffs”) on behalf of themselves and all others similarly situated in the
above-referenced action.

GENERAL DENIAL

Pursuant to the provisions of the California Code of Civil Procedure section
431.30(d), L’'OREAL denies generally and specifically each and every allegation contained in the
SAC. In addition, L'OREAL denies Plaintiffs have sustained, or will sustain, any loss or damages in

the manner or amount alleged, or otherwise, by reason of any act or omission, or any other conduct

LITTLER NEMDELSOK. L Case No.: 18CECGO0816

Jth Fpur
Prascrpte CA HIN0
14 403 YHE

GENERAL DENIAL & AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES OF L'OREAL USA S/D INC., TO 2ND AMDED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
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or absence thereof on the part of L’OREAL. L’OREAL further denies that any of the claims asserted

2 || by Plaintiffs is suitable for class, collective, or representative treatment or adjudication.
3 AFFIRMATIVE AND OTHER DEFENSES
4 L’OREAL asserts the following affirmative and other defenses, which it designates,
5 || collectively, as “affirmative defenses.” L’OREAL’s designation of its defenses as “affirmative” is
6 || not intended in any way to alter Plaintiffs* burden of proof with regard to any element of their causes
7 || of action. L’'OREAL also expressly denies the existence of any alleged putative class of persons or
8 || “aggrieved employees” that Plaintiffs purport to represent in this lawsuit. L'OREAL incorporates
9 || (asif fully set forth therein) this express denial each and every time it references “Plaintiffs.”
10 FIRST AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
" (General Denial)
12 L’OREAL alleges that Plaintiffs' SAC, and every alleged cause of action therein, fails
13 || to state a claim sufficient to constitute a cause of action.
14 SEC FIRMATIVE DEFENSE
15 (Statute of Limitations)
16 L’OREAL alleges that Plaintiffs’ SAC, and every cause of action therein, is barred by
17 || the applicable statutes of limitations set forth in Code of Civil Procedure sections 338 and 340(a),
18 || Labor Code section 203, Business and Professions Code section 17208, 29 U.S. Code § 255 and/or
19 || any other applicable statute of limitations.
20 THIRD AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
o (PAGA - No Standing)
22 L’OREAL alleges that Plaintiffs lack standing to bring claims for any civil penalties
23 || on behalf of others because they are not an “aggrieved employee” pursuant to the Labor Code
24 |} Private Attomeys General Act of 2004 (“PAGA”), Labor Code section 2698 et seq.
25 FQURTH \'J
2% (PAGA - Failure To Exhaust)
27 L’OREAL alleges that Plaintiffs failed to exhaust all internal grievance procedures
28 || and administrative remedies and failed to timely provide the Labor Workforce Development Agency
T b teve 7€ Case No.: 18CECG008I6 2,

Fammmen, CA WI04
0343 180
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EY

(“LWDA™) and Defendant with proper notification of the claims and/or to adequately describe their

2 | claims or the “aggrieved employees™ on whose behalf they intend to seek penalties, pursuant to the
3§ PAGA.
FIFTH AFF VE DEFENSE
4 (PAGA - Failure To Identify)
5 L’OREAL alleges that Plaintiffs have failed to adequately identify any other
6 || allegedly “aggrieved employees,” as required by the PAGA.
7 H AFFIRMATIVE D
8 (PAGA -~ Determination Of Penalties)
9 L’OREAL alleges that civil penalties that Plaintiffs seek pursuant to the PAGA
101 cannot be determined on a class-wide or representative basis.
n SEVENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
12 (PAGA — Determination Of Penalties)
13 L’OREAL alleges that any penalties awarded against it pursuant to the PAGA would
14 || be unjust, arbitrary, oppressive or confiscatory.
IS EIGHTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
16 (PAGA ~ No Statutory Penalties)
17 L’OREAL alleges that Plaintiffs cannot recover statutory penalties on behalf of other
18 || “agprieved employees™ pursuant to the PAGA.
19 NINTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
20 (PAGA - Constitutionality)
21 L’OREAL alleges that the imposition of civil penalties pursuant to the PAGA is
22 || unconstitutional under the California and United States constitutions.
23
24 T F ATIVE DEFEN
(Labor Code §226(a) — No Violation)
25
2% L’OREAL alleges that it has provided compliant wage statements because they show
27 || all of the categories of information required by Labor Code section 226(a).
8 R
R e "¢ Case No.: 18CECG00816 3.
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LEVENTH AFFIRMATI FENSE
(Labor Code §226(¢) — No Injury)

2

3 L’OREAL alleges that, even assuming arguendo Plaintiffs were not provided with a
4 || compliant wage statement, Plaintiffs are not entitled to recover any damages or penalties because,

5 || pursuant to California Labor Code section 226(e), they did not suffer any injuries as a result.

6 IWELFTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

7 (Labor Code §226(e) — No Intentionality)

8 L’OREAL alleges that, even assuming arguendo Plaintiffs were not provided with a

9 compliant wage statement, Plaintiffs are not entitled to recover any damages or penalties because
10 f 1’OREAL’s alleged failure to comply with California Labor Code section 226(a) was not a
i “knowing and intentional” under California Labor Code section 226(e).

12 THIRTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

13 (CCP § 382 — Class Action Requirements)

14 L’OREAL alleges that this suit may not be properly maintained as a class action
15 because: (a) Plaintiffs have failed to plead and/or cannot establish the necessary procedural elements
16 for class treatment; (b) the number of putative class members is too small to meet the numerosity
17 requirement for a class action; (c) a class action is not an appropriate method for the fair and
18 efficient adjudication of the claims described in the SAC; (d) common issues of facts or law do not
19 predominate and, to the contrary, individual issues predominate; (e) Plaintiffs’ claims are not
20 || Tepresentative or typical of the claims of the putative class; (f) Plaintiffs are not a proper class
2 representative; (g) the named Plaintiffs and alleged putative class counsel are not adequate
29 representatives for the alleged putative class; and/or (h) Plaintiffs cannot satisfy any of the
23 || requirements for class action treatment set forth in California Code of Civil Procedure section 382 or
2 Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23. If the Court certifies a class in this case over L’OREAL’s
25 objections, then L’OREAL asserts the additional defenses set forth herein against each and every
2% member of the certified class.
a7 | 117
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—

FOURTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

2 (Equitable Defenses)
3 L’OREAL alleges that Plaintiffs’ SAC, and every alleged cause of action therein, is
4 || barred in whole or in part to the extent it is subject to the equitable doctrines, of laches, unclean
5 || hands, waiver, and estoppel.
6 FIFTEE MATIV ENS
- (Claims Subject To Arbitration)
8 L’OREAL alleges that the Court lacks jurisdiction over the claims alleged in
9 [ Plaintiffs’ SAC to the extent that Plaintiffs, and/or some or all of those they purport to represent, are
10 | subject to a valid and enforceable arbitration agreement requiring the arbitration of those
11 [f individual’s claims.
12 SIXTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
13 (No Class Arbitration Claims)
14 L’OREAL alleges that the class and representative allegations of the SAC are barred
15 || because Plaintiffs, and/or some or all of those they purport to represent, and L’OREAL agreed to
16 || submit only individual disputes to arbitration.
17 SEVENTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
18 (Satisfaction of Obligations)
19 L’OREAL alleges that Plaintiffs’ SAC, and every alleged cause of action therein, is
20 || barred because, to the extent L’'OREAL owed any duties or obligations to Plaintiffs, such duties or
21 || obligations have been fully performed, satisfied or discharged.
22 EIGHTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
2 (Injury Caused by Plaintiff)
24 L’OREAL alleges that Plaintiffs’ SAC, and every alleged cause of action therein,
25 [| cannot be maintained against L’OREAL because any alleged losses or harms sustained by Plaintiffs
26 || resulted from causes other than any act or omission of any L’OREAL.
27177/
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NINTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(No Equitable Relief)

L’OREAL alleges that Plaintiffs’ SAC, and each and every cause of action alleged
therein, is barred to the extent Plaintiffs seek equitable relief because there is an adequate remedy at
law,

W IETH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
(Voluntary Waiver)

Defendant alleges that, to the extent that Plaintiffs, and/or some or all of the
employees Plaintiffs purport to represent, did not take a meal period or rest break, it was because
he/she: (1) failed to take breaks that were provided to him/her in compliance with Califoria law; (2)
chose not to take breaks that were authorized and permitted; or (3) waived histher right to meal
periods and/or rest breaks,

TWENTY-FIRST AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Bona Fide Dispute)

Defendant alleges that the Complaint fails to state a claim for penalties under the

California Labor Code in that (1) there was a bona fide, good faith dispute as to Defendant’s
l obligations under any applicable Labor Code provisions, including, without limitation, Labor Code
section 203, and (2) Defendant did not willfully violate Labor Code section 203.

WENTY- ND AFFIRMATIVE DEFEN
(Offset To Injury)

L’OREAL alleges that any recovery by Plaintiffs under any of the causes of action
alleged in the SAC must be offset by any benefits and/or other monies they, and those they seek to
“ represent, have received from L’OREAL.

iy
/17
1117
11/

Case No.: |8CECG00816 6.
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1 TWENTY- D AFFIRMATIVE SE
2 (FLSA Claims ~ Willfulness)
3 AS A SEPARATE DEFENSE, Defendant alleges that Plaintiffs’ purported FLSA
4 || claims are barred in whole or in part in that Defendant’s alleged acts are not willful and that the
5 || claims of Plaintiffs arising under the FLSA more than two years before filing this Second Amended
6 | Complaint are therefore barred by the statute of limitations set forth in the Portal-to-Portal Act.
7 TWENTY-FOURTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
8 (FLSA Claims - No Penzlty)
9 AS A SEPARATE DEFENSE, Defendant alleges that Plaintiffs are not entitled to a
10 penalty award under the FLSA (29 U.S.C. §207).
n TWENTY-FIFTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
12 (Class Certification — Class And Collective Action Mechanisms)
13 AS A SEPARATE DEFENSE, Defendant alleges that a class action is not the
14 superior method of adjudicating Plaintiffs*® alleged state law claims in light of the opt-in mechanism
15 contemplated by the FLSA collective action. Use of both mechanisms will confuse potential class
16 | members and burden the Court and thus a class action should not be permitted. See e.g. Leuthold v.
7 Destination America (N.D. Cal, 2004) 224 F.R.D. 462.
= TWENTY-SIX RMAT. SE
19 (Minimum Wage and Overtime Claims — Good Faith)
20 AS A SEPARATE DEFENSE, Defendant alleges that at all times it acted in good
21 faith to comply with the FLSA and the Califomia Labor Code and Wage Order(s) and with
a9 || reasonable grounds to believe that its actions did not violate the FLSA and/or the California Labor
23 || Code and Wage Order(s), and Defendant asserts a lack of willfulness or intent to violate the FLSA
24 || and/or the California Labor Code and Wage Order(s) as a defense to any claim by Plaintiff for
25 |b liquidated damages.
2% ADDITIONAL AFFIRMATIVE AND OTHER DEFENSES
27 L'OREAL presently has insufficient knowledge or information upon which to form a
28 || belief as to whether there may be additional, as yet unstated, defenses and reserves the right to assert
LTRER WMo P Cuse No.: I8CECG00816 7.
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additional defenses or affirmative defenses in the event discovery indicates such defenses are

appropriate,
PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, L'OREAL prays for relief as follows:

1. That Plaintiffs take nothing and that the SAC be dismissed in its entirety with
prejudice;

2. That judgment be entered in L’'OREAL’s favor;

3. That L’OREAL be awarded such other and further relief as the Court deems
just and proper.

Dated: May P&, 2019

V. FITZGERALD
ER MENDELSON, P.C.
Attorneys for Defendant

FIRMWIDE:164526993.1 054993.1110
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PROOF OF SERVICE

I am a resident of the State of California, over the age of cighteen years, and not a
party to the within action. My business address is 5200 North Palm Avenue, Suite 302, Fresno,
California 93704.2225. On May 28, 2019, I served the within document(s):

DEFENDANT L’OREAL USA S/D, INC.’S ANSWER TO
SECOND AMENDED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

O By personal service. I personally delivered the documents to the persons at the
addresses listed below. (1) For a party represented by an attorney, delivery was
made to the attorney or at the attorney's office by leaving the documents, in an
envelope or package clearly labeled to identify the attorney being served, with a
receptionist or an individual in charge of the office, between the hours of nine in
the moming and five in the evening. (2) For a party, delivery was made to the
party or by leaving the documents at the party's residence with some person not
younger than 18 years of age between the hours of eight in the morning and six in
the evening.

@ By United States mail. I enclosed the documents in a sealed envelope or
package addressed to the persons at the addresses below and (specify one):

D deposited the sealed envelope with the United States Postal Service, with the
postage fully prepaid.

E placed the envelope for collection and mailing, following our ordinary
business practices. I am readily familiar with this business's practice for
coliecting and processing correspondence for mailing. On the same day that
correspondence is placed for collection and mailing, it is deposited in the
ordinary course of business with the United States Postal Service, in a sealed
envelope with postage fully prepaid.

I am a resident or employed in the county where the mailing occurred. The
envelope or package was placed in the mail at: Fresno, California.

D By overnight delivery. 1 enclosed the documents in an envelope or package
provided by an ovemight delivery carrier and addressed to the persons at the
addresses below. I placed the envelope or package for collection and overnight

delivery at an office or a regularly utilized drop box of the overnight delivery
carrier.

D By messenger service. | served the documents by placing them in an envelope
or package addressed to the persons at the addresses listed below and providing
them to a professional messenger service for service. (4 declaration by the
messenger must accompany this Proof of Service or be contained in the
Declaration of Messenger below.)

PROOF OF SERVICE
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l D By fax transmission. Based on an agreement of the parties to accept service by
fax transmission, 1 faxed the documents to the persons at the fax numbers listed
2 below. No error was reported by the fax machine that 1 used. A copy of the
3 record of the fax transmission, which I printed out, is attached,
4 O By electronic service. Based on a court order or an agreement of the parties to
accept electronic service, I caused the documents to be sent to the persons at the
5 electronic service addresses listed below.,
6
Norman B. Blumenthal, Esq. Counsel for Plaintiffs
7 Kyle R. Nordrehaug, Esq.
8 Aparajit Bhowmik, Esq.
BLUMENTHAL NORDREHAUG
9 BHOWMIK DE BLOUW LLP
2255 Calle Clara
10 La Jolla, CA 92037
1 Tel: 858.551-1223
Fax: 858.551.1232
12 Email: norm@bamlawca.com
Email: kyle@bamlawca.com
13 Email: aj@bamlawlj.com
14 I am readily familiar with the firm's practice of collection and processing
correspondence for mailing and for shipping via overnight delivery service. Under that practice it
15 | would be deposited with the U.S. Postal Service or if an overnight delivery service shipment,
deposited in an overnight delivery service pick-up box or office on the same day with postage or fees
16 | thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of business.
17 I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Califomia that the
above is true and correct, Executed on May 28, 2019, at Fresno, California.
18
19 [
2 S
20 ennifer A. Diddge
21 ] Firmwide:154672767.1 054993.1110
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
TRER VIR A P 2.
Frame,C 0704 225 PROOF OF SERVICE
5092047900
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SUM-100
(CITASggIILw J%Igﬁ:w.) (043 7oA Uso 5 A oy
E-FILED
NOTICE TO DEFENDANT:
AVISO AL DEMANDADOQ); 3/9/2018

'OREAL USA 8/D, INC., a Corporation; and Does 1 through 50

Inclusive,

YOU ARE BEING SUED BY PLAINTIFF:
(LO ESTA DEMANDANDO EL DEMANDANTE):
ANGELA CONTI and JUSTINE MORA, individuals, on behalf of

themselves, and on behalf of all persons similarly situated,

FRESNO COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT
By: R Garcia, Deputy

below,
You have 30 CALENDAR DAYS

(www. courtinfo.ca.gow'seifthelp), or

conlinuacion,

Puede encontrar estos formularios

cualyuier recuperacion de 310,000

NOTICEI You have been sued. The court may decide against you wihaut your being heard unless you respond within 30 days. Read the information

served on the plaintiff, A letter or phone call will not protect you. Your written response must be in proper legal form if you want the court to hear your
case. There may be a courl form that you can use for your response. You can find these court forms and mare Information at the California Courls
Qnline Sell-Help Center (www.courtinfo.ce.gov/seffhelp), your county law library, or the courthouse nearest you. If you cannot pay the filing fee, ask
the court clerk for a fee walver form. If you do not file your response on time, you may lose the case by default, and your wages, money, and property
may be taken without further wamning from the court.

There are other legal requirements. You may want to call an attorney right away. If you da not know an attorney, you may want to call an attorney
referral service. If you cannot afford an attamey, you may be eligible fof free legal services from a nonprofit legal services pragram, You can locate
these nonprofit groups at the Callfornia Legal Servicas Web slle (www.lawhelpcalifornia.org), the California Courls Online Self-Help Center

costs on any selllement or arbitration award of $10,000 or more in a civil case. The caurt's lieh must be paid before tha court will dismiss the case,
IAVISO! Lo han demsndado. Sino responde dentro de 30 dias, Ia corte puede dacidir en su conlra sin escuchar su version. Lea la Informacion a

Tiene 30 DIAS DE CALENDARIO después de que le entreguen esta cifacion y papeles legeles para presenter une respuesta por escrito an esta
corte y hacer que se entfregue una copla al demeandants. Una carta o una flamads telefnica no lo protegen. Su respuesta por escrito tene que astar
en formato legal correclo si desea que procesen su caso en Ja corfe. Es posible que haya un formulario que usted pueda user para su respuesta.
de la corte y mds Informacidn en el Centro de Ayuda de las Cortes de Callfornia (www.sucorte.ca.gov), en fa
bibliotaca de leyes de su condsdo o en Ja corte que fe quede mas cerca, S/ no pueds pagar ia cuota de presentacion, pida al secretario de Ja corte
que s cié un formuiario de exencién de pago de cuotas. Si no presenta su respussta a tiempo, puede perder el caso por incumplimlento y Iz corte le
podra quitar su sueldo, dinero y bienes sin mas advertencia.

Hay otros requisitos legales. Es recomendable que llame & un abogado inmediatamente. Sino conoce & un abogado, puede Hamar a un servicio de
remisién a abogados. S/ no pusde pagar a un abogado, es posibla que cumpla con los requisifos para oblener servicios legales graiuitos de un
programa de serviclos legales sin fines de lucro. Pustle encontrar estos grupos sin fines de lucro en el skio web de California Legal Services,
{www.lawhelpcalifornia.org), en ef Centro de Ayuda de las Cortes de Cafifornia, fwww sucorte.ca.gov) o poniéndose en contacto con la corte o el
colegio de abogados locales. AVISC: Por ley, Ia corte tiene derecho 8 reclamar las cuolas y los costos exentos por imponer un gravamen sobre

pagar el gravamen de la corte antes de que a corte pueda dasechar ef caso.

after this summons and legal papers are served on you to file a writlen response at this court and have a copy

by contacting your loca! court or courty bar assogiation, NOTE: The court has a statutory lien for waived fees and

© mas de valor recibida mediante un scuerdo 0 una concestén de arbitraje &n un ¢aso de derscho civil. Tiene que

The name and address of the court Is: CASE NUMBER: 4
ombre y direccion de /s corte es): thimm o Casa 18CECG00816

Ef :
gUnPERI R COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF FRESNO

B. F. Sisk Courthouse
1130 O Street, Fresno, CA

93721

The name, address, and telephone number of plaintiffs attomey, or plaintiff without an attornay, is:

1 nombre, la direccién y el nGmero de teléfono del abogado del demandante, o del demandante que no tiene aboga gs):
orman B. Blumenthal (Bar #‘65387 T ax No.- (838) 331 1232
Blumenthal Nordrehau% Bhowmik De Blouw LLP Phone No.: (858) 551-1223
BZ?E Calle Clara, La Jolla, CA 92037
ATE: Clerk, by .  Deputy
(Fecha) 3/9/2018 (Secrefario) R Garcia {Adjunto)
(For proof of service of this summons, use Proof of Service of Summons {form POS-010).)
{Para prueba de enlrega de esta citalién use ef formulario Proof of Service of Summons, (PCS-010)}.
= NOTICE TO THE PERSON SERVED: You are served
1SEAL 1. ] as an individual defendant,
2. [T as the person sued under the fictitious name of (specify);
3. X on behalf of (specify): L'OREAL USA S/D, | NC.
under: X CCP 416.10 (corporation) ] CCP 416.60 (minor)
[__1 CCP 416.20 (defunct corporation) [ CCP 416.70 (conservatee)
1 CCP 416.40 (association or partnership) (] CCP 416.90 (authorized person)
(] other (specify):
4, by personal dellvery on (dats): \
B bye v on toate: | § a g .
Form Adopted fiv Mandatary Use

Judiclal Counc)! of Cakfarmia
SUM00 [Rev. July 1, 2009}

SUMMONS Code of Civil Procedure §§ 412,20, 465
LextsNexis® Automated California Judfcr‘%%?fo Fc:i-?no;
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CM-010

o Blascntal < Bat AUy oo s
Blumenthal Nordrehaug Bhowmik De Blouw LLP
2255 Calle flara .
LaJolla, CA 92037
B oL Ebion: No: (858) 551-1223 FAxNo: (858) 551-1232
ATTORNEY FOR (Weme): Plaintiffs Angels Conti and Justine Mora

FOR COURT USE ONLY

E-FILED
3/6/12018 2:30 PM
FRESNO CQUNTY SUPERIOR COURT

SUPERIOR COURT OF GALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF FRESINQ)
sTReeT ADDRESS: 1130 O Street
manno aoorese: 1130 O Street
crry anb zip cooe: Fresno 93721
erancy nave: B.F, Sisk Courthouse

By: R Garcia, Deputy

CASE NAME:
ANGELA CONTI and JUSTINE MORA v. L'OREAL USA S/D, INC.

CIVIL CASE COVER SHEET Compilex Case Designation GASENMEER 18CECG00816
Al L) Feg (] counter [ Joinder

-{Amount {Amount JUDGE:

demanded demanded is Flied with first appearanca by defendant )

exceeds $25,000)  $265,000 or less) (Cal. Rules of Court, rule 3.402) CEPT. |

ltams 1-6 below must be complated (see instructions on page 2).

1. Check one box below for the case type that best describas this case:

Auto Tort Contract :

Auto (22) Breach of contractwarranty (08)
E Uninsured motorist (48) Rulg 3.740 colisclions (09}
Other PUPD/WD (Personal Injury/Property Other collections (09)
Damage/Wrengful Death) Tort Insurance coverags (18)
[_J Asbsstos (04 Othor contract (37)
[ Product iability (24) Real Property
L] Medical malpractos (45) Eminent domain/inverse
[ other PuPDMWD (23) condemnation (14)

Non-Pl/PD/WD (Other} Tort

Business tort/unfalr business practice (07)
L1 civil rights (08)
g Defamation (13)

Fraud (16)

Wrengful eviction {33)
Other real property (26)
Unlawful Detalner
Commercial (31)
[T Residentisl 33 .

Provisionally Complex Civil Litigation
(Cal. Rules of Count, rules 3.400-3.403)

D Antitrust/Trade regulation {03)

Enforcoment of Judgment

Migcellaneous Civil Complalnt

L inteliectual property {19) Drugs {38) Other complaint (nof specifisd abave) (42)
[} Professional negiigence (25) Judicial Roview Miscelianaous Civil Petition

Other non-PI/POMD tort (35) [ assetforfeiture (05) Partnarehip and corporate governance (21)
Employment L] Petiton e; arbitration award (11) (] other petition (ot specifiad above) (43)

Wronpful termination (36) Wit of mandate {02)

Other amployment {15) D Othar judicial review (38)

Construction defect (10)
Mass tort (40)

Securitfes litigation (28}
Environmental/Toxic tort (30)

insurance coverage claims arising from the
above listed provisionally complex case
typos (41)

Enforecement of judgment (20)

RICO (27)

2. This case is L_lisnot
factors requiring exceptional judicial management: -

a. [:j Large number of separately represented parties

b. Extensive mofion practice rafsing difflcult or novel
issues that will be time-consuming to resolve

c.[X] substantial amount of documentary evidence

Number of causes of action (specifyl: SIX (6)
This case lz’ is lanot aclass action suit.

Goomew

Date: March 6, 2018
Norman B. Blumenthal

{TYPE OR PRINT NAME)

. Ifthere are any known related cases, flle and serve a notice of related case. (You may use form

(SIGNATURE OF

complex under rule 3.400 of the California Rules of Count, If the case s complex, mark the

d. Large number of witnesses
o.[_] Coordination with related actions pending In one or more courts )

In other counties, efates, or countries, or in a federal court
f, I:_l Substantial postjudgment judicial supervision

Remedies sought (check all that apply): a.[ X} monetary b.[X) nonmonetary; declaratory or injunctive relief

C. D punitive

NOTICE

o Plainiiff must file this cover shest with the first paper flled in the action or procesding (except small claims cases or cases filed
under the Probate Code, Family Code, or Welfare snd Institutions Code). (Cal. Rules of Courl, rule 3.220.) Fallure to fils may resuit

In sanctions.
* File this cover shest In addition to any cover sheet required by local court nile.

* if this case is complex under rule 3.400 et seq. of the Califomia Rules of Court, you must serve a copy of this cover sheet on all

other parties to the action or procesding.

¢ Unlass thisis a callections case under rule 3.740 or a complex case, thls cover sheet will be used for statistical purposss only.

Form ed for Mandstory Usa
Judiclal Counell of Cellforna
CM-0I0 |Rev. Juily 1, 2007|

CIVIL CASE COVER SHEET

o 1 of 2

Cal. Rues of Court, nules 2.30, 3,220, 3,400-3.403, 3. 740;
Cel. Slandands of Judicial Admintsiration, sid, 3,10

W, colrtinfa. oo,
TovieNovic® dvinmnton Cnlifimmnin tudirin] Crsored] ans?v

————
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s#snson COURT OF CALIFORNIA + COUNTY OF FRESNO FOR COURT USE ONLY
Civil Unlimited Department, Central Division
1130 Q" Street
Fresno, Californio 93724-0002
{559) 457-1900 Flied by Court

TALE OF CASE]

AngelaConti vs L'Oreal USA $/D Inc. // COMPLEX/CLASS ACTION

NOTICE OF CASE MANAGEMENT CONFERENCE AND ASSIGNMENT | CASE NUMBER:
OF JUDGE FOR ALL PURPOSES . 18CECG00814

To All Parﬂels and fhelr AHtorneys of Record:

This case has been assigned fo Judge Jefirey Hamilton for all purposes.
All future hearings will be scheduled before this assigned judge.

You are raqqulred to oppear al a Case Management Conference on July 10, 2018 at 3:30 pjm. In Depariment
402 of the courl located at 1130 "O" Street, Fresno, Callfarnia.

You must comply with the requirements set forth in Frésno Superlor Court Local Rule Chapter 2.

Failure to appear at the conference may result in imposition of sanctions, waiver of jury trial, or other adverse
consequences.

Defendants: Appearance at the Case Management Conference does not excuse you from having to file your
respanse in proper legal form within 30 days after the Summons is served on you. You could lose the case if vou

donotfile \!/our response on time. if you do not know an attomey, and do not have one, you may call an atterney

referral service or a legal aide office {isted in the phone book). 1

DECLARATION

I declare under penaliy of perjury under the laws of the State of California that ! gave d copy of the Notice of |
Case Managemenl and Assignment of Judge for All Purposes to the person who presenfedithis case for. filing.

‘Dafe:  March 14, 2018 " Clekk, by' e

R. Garcla

. Deputy

TCV-48 R03-09 NOTICE OF CASE MANAGEMENT CONFERENCE AND
. ASSIGNMENT OF JUDGE FOR ALL PURPOSES
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SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA - COUNTY OF FRESNO Entered by:
Civil Department - Non-Limited :

TITLE (}F CASE:
Angela Conti vs. L'Oreal USA SID Inc. // COMPLEX/CLASS ACTION

Case Number:

LAW AND MOTION MINUTE ORDER 18CECG00816
Hearing Date: April 4, 2019 Hearing Type: Case Management Conference  _
Deparirnent; 501 Judge/Temp. Judge: Hamilton, Jeffrey Y,
Court Clerk: Whipple, Layla Reporter/Tape: NIR

Appe:ing Partles:
WPIainti"f: Defendant:

Coungel: Counsel:

[ ] Off Calendar

[X] Continued to 7/11/19 at 3:00 p.m. Dept. 501 fdr Case Management Conference.

[ ] Sublimitted on points and authorities with/without argument. [ ] Matteris argued and submitted.

[ ] Upun filing of points and authorities.

. [ IMoonis granted [ ]in part and denied in part. [ ] Motion is denied [ ] with/without prejudice,
[ ] Takzn under advisement

[ 1Densurrer [ }overruled [ ] sustaified With ~_ days to [ ] answer [ 1amend

[ ] Teniative ruling becomas the order of the court. No further order is necessary.

[ }Pursuant to CRC 3.1312(a) and CCP section 1019.5(a), no further order Is necessary. The minute order adopting the
terrative ruling serves as the order of the court.

[ ] Senvice by the clerk will constitute notice of the order.
[ 1Sesn attached copy of the Tentative Ruling.
[ ]Juogment debtor __ swom and examined.

[ ] Jucyment debtor __ failed to appear.
Bench warrant issued in the amountof $

JUDGMENT:
[ ]Mo-2ydamages [ ] Default [ ) Other __ entered in the amount of:
Principal §__  interest$__ Costs$__  Attorneyfees$__  Total $__
[ ) Clai'n of exemption [ ] granted [ ] denied. Court orders withholdings medified to $__ per __

FURTHER, COURT ORDERS:
[ ]Mo-les held by levying officer to be [ ] released to judgment creditor. [ ]returned to judgment debtor.
[ 1$__ to be released to judgment creditor and balance returned to judgment debtor.
[ ]Leviing Officer, County of _, notified. [ ] Writ to issue
E % gctalline to be filed within 15 days. [ ] Restitution of Premises
HE'H

CV-14b 120318 LAW AND MOTION MINUTE ORDER

L e e Y L
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SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA - COUNTY OF FRESNO FOR COURT USEONLY
Civil Depariment, Central Division
1130 "O" Street
Fresno, California 93724-0002
(559) 457-2000

TITLE OF CASE:
Angala Conti vs.L'Qreal USA S/D Inc. // COMPLEX/CLASS ACTION

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE OF MAILING S LS

| certiiy that | am not a parly to this cause and that a true copy of the:

[Minute Order]
was pluced in a sealed envelope and placed for collection and mailing on the date and at the place shown below
following our ordinary business practice. }am readily familiar with this court's practice for collecting and processing
correspondence for mailing. On the same day that correspondence is placed for collection and mailing, itis deposited
in the ordinary course of business with the United States Postal Service with posiage fully prepaid.

Place of mailing: Fresno, California 93724-0002 . (ﬂ
On Date: 04/05/2019 Clerk, by Mn/v? _, Deputy
L. Whipnfe
/
Normizn B Blumenthal Angela J Rafoth v
Blumenthal, Nordrehaug & Bhowim Litder Menderson, P.C.
2255 Calle Clara 333 Bush Street, 34th F|
La Jolla,, CA 92037 San Franelsco, CA 94104

Irene V. Fitzgerald
Littler Mendelson, PC
5200 North Palm Ave
Suite 302

Fresna, CA 93704

[ Clark's Certificate of Mailing Additional Address Page Attached

TGN-06: R08-06 CLERK'S CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
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EXHIBIT “F”
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ANGELA J. RAFOTH, Bar No. 241966
LITTLER MENDELSON, P.C.

333 Bush Street, 34th Floor

San Francisco, CA 94104

Telephone:  415.433.1940

Email: ARafoth@littler.com

IRENE V. FITZGERALD, Bar No. 266949
LITTLER MENDELSON, P.C.

5200 North Palm Avenue, Suite 302
Fresno, CA 93704.2225

Telephone:  559.244.7500

Email: Ifitzgerald@littler.com

Attorneys for Defendant, L’OREAL USA S/D, INC.

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA

COUNTY OF FRESNO

ANGELA CONTI and JUSTINE MORA,
individuals, on behalf of themselves, and
on behalf of all persons similarly situated,

Plaintiffs,
V.

L’OREAL USA S/D, INC., a Corporation;
and DOES 1 through 50, inclusive,

Defendant.

Case No. 18CECG00816

NOTICE TO PLAINTIFF OF REMOVAL OF
CIVIL ACTION TO FEDERAL COURT

ASSIGNED FOR ALL PURPOSES TO JUDGE
JEFFREY HAMILTON

Second Amended Complaint filed: April 30,
2019
Trial Date: TBD

TO PLAINTIFF AND HER COUNSEL OF RECORD:

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT on May 29, 2019, Defendant L’OREAL USA S/D,

INC. (“Defendant™), filed a Notice of Removal pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1441 and 1446 in the

United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

A true and correct copy of Defendant’s Notice of Removal is attached hereto as

Exhibit 1.
Iy
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Dated: May 2", 2019

ANGELA J. OTH
IRENEVTFITZGERALD
LITTLER MENDELSON, P.C.
Attorneys for Defendant
L’OREAL USA S/D, INC.

FIRMWIDE:164575387.1 054993.1110
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Notice to Plaintiff of Removal of Civil Action to Federal Court
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ANGELA J. RAFOTH, Bar No. 241966
LITTLER MENDELSON, P.C.

333 Bush Street, 34th Floor

San Francisco, CA 94104

Telephone:  415.433.1940

Email: ARafoth@littler.com

IRENE V. FITZGERALD, Bar No. 266949
LITTLER MENDELSON, P.C.

5200 North Palm Avenue, Suite 302
Fresno, CA 93704.2225

Telephone:  559.244.7500

Email: Ifitzgerald@littler.com
Attorneys for Defendant, L’OREAL USA S/D, INC.

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA

COUNTY OF FRESNO
ANGELA CONTI and JUSTINE MORA, Case No. 18CECG00816
individuals, on behalf of themselves, and
on behalf of all persons similarly situated, NOTICE TO STATE COURT OF
REMOVAL OF CIVIL ACTION TO
Plaintiffs, FEDERAL COURT

V.

L’OREAL USA S/D, INC,, a Corporation; ASSIGNED FOR ALL PURPOSES TO JUDGE

and DOES 1 through 50, inclusive, JEFFREY HAMILTON
Defendant. Second Amended Complaint filed: April 30,
2019

Trial Date: TBD

LSTLER MENDELSON, P C
333 Bur Stany

Hk Flonr
Sun Fiancincs, CA S4104
115 423 1940

TO THE CLERK OF THE ABOVE-ENTITLED COURT:

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on May 29, 2019, the above-captioned matter was
removed from the Superior Court of the State of California, County of Fresno, where it was
previously pending, to the United States District Court for the Eastern District of California,
pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1441, and 1446. A copy of the Notice of Removal filed by
Defendant L’OREAL USA S/D, INC., a Corporation, is attached as Exhibit 1.

117
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Notice of State Court Removal of Civil Action to Federal Court
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—

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1446(d), the
filing of a Notice of Removal in the United States District Court, together with the filing of a copy of
a Notice of Filing Notice of Removal with this Court, effects the removal of this action, and this

Court may proceed no further unless and until the case is remanded.

Dated: May _2%:2019

ANGELAFRAFOTH

IRENE V. FITZGERALD
LITTLER MENDELSON, P.C.
Attorneys for Defendant
L’OREAL USA S/D, INC.
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elofl

or other pa%ers as required by law, except as
nited States in September 1974, is required for the use of the

lerk of Court for the

I. (a) PLAINTIFFS

ANGELA CONTI and JUSTINE MORA, individuals, on behalf of themselves,

and on behalf of all persons similarly situated,

(b)

County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff
(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINT 1 FF CASES)

{c) Antorneys (lirm Name, Addiress, and Te!zphone Number)
Norman B. Blumenthal, Bar No. 068687

BLUMENTHAL NORDREHAUGH BHOWMIK DE BLOUW LLP
2255 Calle Clara

La Jolla, CA 92037

Tel- 858.551.1223

DEFENDANTS

County of Residence of First Listed Defendant

NOTE:
THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED

Attorneys (If Known)

Ar_llgf_la j. Rafoth, Bar No. 241966
LITTLER MENDELSON, P.C.
333 Bush Street, 34" Floor

San Francisco, CA 94104

Tel: 415.433.1940

L'OREAL USA S/D, INC., a Corporation, and DOES 1 through 50, inclusive,

(IN U5, PLAINTIFIF CASES ONI. ¥}
N LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF

II. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (Piace an “x* in One Box Only) 1I1. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (Piace an "X* in One Box for Plamtiff
(For Diversily Cases Only) and One Box for Defendant}
Ot U.S. Government 3 Federal Question PTF DEF PTF DEF
Plantiff (U.5. Government Not a Party) Citizen of This State O! O 1 [Incorporated or Principal Place O+ 0O
of Business In This State
2 U.S.Government 04 Diversity Citizen of Another State 02 DO 2 Incorporated and Principal Place Os 0Os
Defendant (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in lMem IH) of Business In Another State
Citizen or Subject of a O3 [ 3 Foreign Mation Os O¢
Foreign Country
1IV. NATURE OF SUIT iPiace an “X" in One Box Only) Click here for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.

E CONTRACT TORTS FORFEITURE/PENALTY BANKRUPTCY OTHER STATUTES
0110 Insurance PERSONAL INJURY PERSONAL INJURY 625 Drug Related Seizure [J422 Appeal 28 LIST 158 1 375 False Claims Act
120 Marine [ 310 Airplane [ 365 Personal Injury - of Property 21 USC 881 10423 Withdrawal O 376 Qui Tam (31 USC
3 130 Miller Act (] 315 Airplane Product Product Liability 1690 Other 28 LUSC 157 1729(a))

[J 140 Negetiable Instrument Liability [ 367 Health Care/ [J 400 State Reapportionment
1150 Recovery of Overpayment [ 320 Assault, Libel & Pharmaceutical PROPERTY RIGH IS [ 410 Antitrust
& Enforcement of Judy Slander Personal Injury 7820 Copynights [ 430 Banks and Banking
151 Medicare Act [] 330 Federal Employers’ Product Liability [0 830 Patemt [ 450 Commerce
[ 152 Recovery of Defauhed Liability [] 368 Asbestos Personal [ 840 Trademark [0 460 Deportation
Student Loans [ 140 Manne Injury Product [0 470 Racketeer Influenced and
(Excludes Veterans) [ 345 Marine Product Liability LABO SOCIAL SECURITY Comupt Organizations
3 153 Recovery of Overpayment Liability PERSONAL PROPERTY B 710 Fair Labor Standards [ 861 HIA {13950} 3 480 Consumer Credit
of Veteran's Benefits [ 350 Motor Vehicle [3 370 Cther Fraud Act [ 862 Black Lung (923) O 490 Cable/Sat TV
3 160 Stockholders’ Suits ] 355 Motor Vehicie O 371 Truth in Lending 0720 Labor/Management [ 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g)) [} 850 Securities'Commodities/
£] 190 Other Contract Product Liability [ 380 Other Personal Relations 1864 $3ID Title XVI Exchange
[ 195 Contract Product Liabitity J[J 360 Other Personal Property Damage 1740 Railway Labor Act 865 RSI (405(g)) [ 890 Other Statutory Actions
{7 196 Franchise Injury [ 385 Property Damage [751 Family and Medical O 891 Agricultural Acts
] 362 Personal Injury - Product Liability Leave Act [ 893 Environmental Matlers
_Medical Malpractice [ 790 Other Labor Litigation 3 295 Freedom of Information

i REAL PROPERTY CIVIL RIGHTS PRISONER PETITIONS [791 Emplayee Retirement FEDERAL TAX SUITS Act

"0 210 Land Condemnation [ 440 Other Civil Rights Habeas Corpus: Incame Security Act 870 Taxes {U.S. Plaintifl’ [ 896 Arbitration
3220 Foreclosure 1 441 Voting [ 463 Alien Detamee ar Defendant) [ 399 Administrative Procedure
] 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment 442 Employment [ 511 Motions 1o Vacate 871 IRS—Third Party Act/Review or Appeal of
[ 240 Tonts to Land 0 443 Housing/ Sentence 26 USC 7605 Agency Decision
[3 245 Tort Product Liability Accommodations 1 530 General [ 950 Constitutionality of
[J 290 All Other Reat Property [ 445 Amer. wiDisabilities - [} 535 Death Penalty IMMIGRATION State Siatules

Employmem Other: 1462 Naturalizaticn Application
3 446 Amer. w/Disabilities - ] 540 Mandamus & Other [J465 Other Immigration
Other [ 550 Civil Rights Actions
[ 448 Education 0 555 Prison Condition
[ 560 Civil Detainee -
Conditions of
Confinement

V. ORIGIN iiace an “X™ in One Box Only)

O! OCriginal 2 Removed from O3 Remanded from 04 Reinstated or [ 5 Transferred from 6 Multidistrict Q8 Multidistrict
Proceeding State Cournt Appellate Court Reopened Another District Litigation - Litigation -
{specify) Transfer Diirect File

29 U.5.C. §§ 201,207, and 216

Cite the U.S. Civi} Statute under which you are filing (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes wnless diversity).

V1. CAUSE OF ACTION

Brief description of cause:

Amongst other wage and hour causes of action, Plaintiff asserts claims for unpaid overtime under the FLSA

Vvil. REQUESTED IN [ CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION DEMAND § CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint
COMPLAINT: UNDER RULE 23, F.R.Cv.P. JURY DEMAND: Oves [CNo
VIII. RELATED CASE(S) ©
‘See iNSIructions).
IF ANY ¢ instructionsk JUDGE __ DOCKET NUMBER
DATE SIGNATURE OF A N ECORD
May ¥, 2019
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY =
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This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this
post: Ex-Employees Hit L’ Oreal with Class Action Over Allegedly Unpaid Wages
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